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Introduction / We are ANGLE plc

Who we are:

ANGLE plc

is a commercially
driven medical
diagnostic company
specialising in the
development of
pioneering products
in cancer diagnostics.

ANGLE’s Parsortix® system has the
potential to deliver profound improvements
in clinical and health economic outcomes

in the treatrnent and diagnosis of cancer,

Visit owr webtite for mnore Information st
wwwangleplc.com

Dparsortlx ANGLEple angleplcParsartix
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Our purpose
To revolutionise
cancer diagnosis

and treatment

Mission
To enable personalised
cancer care by providing the
complete picture of the
patient’s cancer from a
simple blood test

Vision
To make precision
medicine a reality



At a glance

Liquid biopsy improving patient outcomes and
reducing healthcare costs

The Parsortix system captures circulating tumour cells (CTCs) which cause cancer metastasis
and harvests them for analysis.

Tissue biopsy is the current standand of care but has many shortcomings (see over} and s challenged by
1) the frequent lack of tissue availability

2) tumncur heterogeneity and

3} the dynamic rature of the cancer response to treatment.

Obtaining cancer tissue for analysis

Solid tissue biopsy

Tumour tissue is cut out from the cancer

site through an invasive procedure

Tissue samples
Tissue is specially prepared so
sections can be examined — usually
formalin-fixed paraffin-embedded
(FFPE) sampiles

Read more sbout the

tissue biepsy shortcomings
overleaf

Benefits of Parsortix CTC solution

Liquid biopsy

Carncer tissue is obtained from

a simple blood test

CTCs

Living cancer cells shed
from a tumour into the
bloodstream in the process
of metastasis

Read more about the
benefits of CTCs
overieaf

Circulating tumour
DNA (ccDNA)

DINA from fragments

of dead cells shed imto the
bloodstream can contain
cncer-refated mutations

Solid tissue biopsy

Liquid biopsy

Source Primary tumour Metastatic site CTCs! ctDNA?
Sample type Intact cells Intace cells Intact cefls Fragmented DNA
Pracedure Imvasive Invasive Norrinvasive’ Non-irvashve®
Samphe accessibility Not ahways accessble Less accessble Accessible using Parsortix* Accessible
‘Tumour hetarogeneity Site of biopsy sampling Site of biopsy sampling Multi-site: sarnpling Multi-site sampling
Patient recovery time Vartes Longer None Mone
Test costs Varies Higher Lower Lower
Test turnaround time Varies Longer Sharter Shorer
Longitudinal monitoring* Oifficult Very difficult Easy Easy
Malecular DINA Yz Yes Yes Yes
analysis RNA Yes Yos Yes Difficuls

Prowin Yes Yes Yes No
Live cells Cell cuhture Yes ‘fes Yes Na

Kenograft Yes Yes Yes No
Standard of care Prowven Proven Not yet proven Mot yet proven

1 CTCs fincuisting tumour ceils) are five cancer cells circulating in the blood
2 ciDINA i call-free circulating tumour fragments of DINA from dead cells, which may be found in the plasma component of the blood
3 Tissue ablained from simple peripheral biood test
4 Aeress 1o CTCs from blood is technically challeniging given the low number of CTCs present and historically has been very dificuft. ANGLE's Parsortix system has been spedally

designed to address this ssue

5 Solid tissue biopsy information is 2 onectime snapshet and rapidly becomes outdated and does net reflect response to treatment and current mutational status. Liquid biopsy
information s dynamic as tests @n be repeated to provide real time information to monitor changes over time



The problem:
The challenge

Vhat is cancer?

How cancer spreads

Cancer is a disease in which abnormal cells divide
without control and n invade nearby tissues.

Cancer starts when gene changes make one cell or a few cells begn
o grow and miultiply. This may cause a growth calied a tumour.

How many people are affected?

The maln reason that cancer s 5o serious is its ability to spread in the
body. Cancer cells can spread locally by maving into nearby normal tissue
or spread regionally, to nearby fymph nodes, tssues, or organs. it can also
spread to distant parts of the body via the bload circulation VWhen this
happens, it is clled metastatic cancer.

The process by which cancer cells spread to other parts of the body
is called mecastasis.

Why is metastasis so serious?

0%

Of the popufation will suffer frorn cancer?

27%

The number of new cancer
diagnoses in the UK per year is
increasing, and has risen by more
than 27% since 2001?

200

There are more than 200
different types of cancer?
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What are the challenges to treatment?

Metastasis causes >90% of cancer deaths?

The “stage” of cancer at diagnosis is extremely important to survival
Cancer staging is 2 way of describing the size of 2 cancer and how far

it has spread and is important in helping deterrmine treatment. If the
cancer is “early” stage and just in one place then a local treatment, such

as surgery or radiotherapy may be sufficient treatment If the cancer is
“later” stage and has spread through the body to other organs (metastasis)
then treatment is needad that also ¢raulates throughout the whale body
such as chemotherapy, hormone therapy or targeted cancer drugs: once
cancer spreads it can be hard to control, Some types of metastatic cancer
can be driven into remission with treatment but most annot.

There Is also 2 huge variation in survival between cancer types. Some
cancers have soreening programmes of more cbvious symptoms and

«an be datected earfier (e.g. breast. colorectal, cervical, skin) and others
may have mastly slow growing cancers which ray remain early stage

{8 prostate) and therefore have higher survival rates. Other cancers may
have no cbvious symptoms and/or are aggressive and may be detected
fate once they have already spread {eg. brain, ovarfan, pancreatic) and
therefore have kower survival rates.

During carcer treatment, 1 How do we know
particularty of secandary which drug will work
(metastatic) cancer disease, there most effectively for
are many challenges which ¢an L

arise leaving both physicians a patient?

and patients with unanswered

questions such as:

Tissue biopsy shortcomings

How can we track How do we
whether drugs are monitor patients
in fact working and in remission
having a positive o assess any risk
impact? of the disease
returning?

Frequent lack of
tissue availability
from difficulty

in accessing some

Difficult to repeat
5T missing the
dynamic nature

of cancer response

The standard test for cancer cells Requires invasive
is to undertake a solid tissue surgery an d can
biopsy. This approach has many
cause adverse
shortcomings compared ta a .
liquid biopsy: reactions
Expensive to Patients experience
perform and a longer recovery

requires a lot of

hospitat resources

time which may
delay treatment

turmours {pancreatic,
lung, brain, liver
and bone cancers)

to treatment

Only samples one
site and does not
fully reflect tumour
heterogeneity



The solution:
Parsortix system

The Parsortix system

The benefits of CTCs

The Parsortix system from ANGLE uses a
patented microfluidic technology in the form
of a one-time use cassette to capture and
then harvest circulating tumour cells (CTCs)
from blood.

The cassette captures CTCs based on their less
deformable nature and larger size compared to
other blood components.

A closer look at the cassette

CTCs are caught on a step that “felds over” in a microscope slide
sized cassetie.

Cross section

Patented multifold and
separation step

Critical gap

Captured CTCs
‘White bicod gells
Red bload cally
Blood flaw

Able to capture one CTC
in a billlon blood cells,

A simple peripheral blood test can be used to provide crucial medical
information regarding a patient’s disease.
v CTCs enable the complete picture of the cancer to be understood

as they are viable, intact whole cells alowing DINA, RNA and protein
analysis as wel as cutturing.

v CTCs are bictogically specific — they cannot be present unless the
patient has cancer.

w By analysing CTCs you can identify the characteristics of the cancer
10 better determing which drugs will be more effective.

v By looking at the number of CTCs and how this changes over time,
you an predict survival rates for patients and monitor how well the
treatment is progressing.

~ A simple blood test monitoring the levels of CTCs for patients
in remission may act as an early warning system of a relapse, well
ahead of symptoms, allowing eariier treatment with consequent
better likelihood of success.

Competitive differentiation

Ulnfike many other CTC systems, the Parsortix system is applicable for alf
solid tumour cancers. Parsortix can be used without medification and
1o date has been shown to work with 23 different cancer types.
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The Parsortix system has a unique
combination of features making it
suitable for routine clinical analysis
of patient blood samples.

Ged Brady
Cancer Research UK Manchester Institute of Technology



How it works:
Capture, harvest and analysis of CTCs

ANGLE owns both a CTC harvesting technology (Parsortix®) and a downstream molecular anafysis
technology (HYyCEAD™ Ziplex®) to interrogate the harvested CTGCs.

ANGLE has well-differentiated pateni-protected products. Both systerns have proprietary
consumables, which provide a “razor blade” approach to commercialisation.

ANGLE's proprietary technologies can be combined to provide automated, sample-to-answer
results in both centralised laboratory and point-of-use cartridge formats,

Automated process requiring minimum user intervention

1 Blood collection 2 Cell capture

1001-50mi of whole blood. No pre-processing required. Blood is pumped through the ohe-time we cassette.
CTCs are captured inthe cassette.

3a Celi identification in cassette 3 b Cell harvest

Staining reagents can be pumped through the cassetie to allow CTCs can be harvested in <200pl buffer for identification use in
in-cassette idertification and enumeration of CTCs. muftiple downstream anafysis techniques.



Downstream analysis

4a Widely available

techniques

The cells harvested by the Parsortix
system can be analysed using existing
techniques already established for tissue
biopsy, induding

- Cytopathology

* Immunoflucrescence

- AsH

* PCR

« NGS

To watch our video visit:

www.angleplc.com/parsortix
technology/intreduction/

4b Proprietary HyCEAD
Ziplex system

The HyCEAD Ziplex system is a medium-
density microarray péatform designesi for
routine and focused muitiplex analysis of
DINA, RNA or protein biomarkers.

Advantages

Unlike expensive, high-density microarray
systems that overwhelm researchers with
large amounts of unnecessary data, the
HyCEAD Ziplex system uses a highly
repraducible, lower density array to
provide expreassion information on specific
genetic or protein biomarker signatures.

It uniquely combines three separate
automated functions (hybridisation/protein
binding, washingflabelling and imaging) into
2 single benchitop instrument providing
researchers with a highly flexible platform
that is fast, simple to use and cost effective.

Performance

The HyCEAD Ziplex systern was shown
1o offer key advantages over other
technclogies availble on the market
induding high sensitivity, enabling successful
use on only a small number of aancer cells
amongst a larger background population
of blood cells and the ability to multiplex

a krge number (>100) of gene expression
analyses in a single reaction,

HyCEAD Ziplex at a glance

Benchtop laboratory platform designed
for routine and focused muttiplex anafysis
of DRA, RNA and protein biomarkers.
« Low cost
¢+ Righly multiplexed
» Rapid and sensitive capture

of targets from high variety

of sample types

HyCEAD chemistry

>100

Enables simuftanecus measurement of
more than 100 genes tn a single reaction

>500

Rapid content creation for new
applications of more than 500 target
genes to date



The potential:

Seeking first ever FDA clearance for a device
to harvest cancer cells from patient blood for
subsequent analysis

ANGLE is focused on commercialising its
liquid biopsy system which has the potential
to transform cancer diagnosis and treatment.
Unique patented microfluid approach: strongly differentiated

from competition.

Two 200 patient studies in ovarian cancer
completed with best in class 95.1% accuracy

200 patient clinical verification study in process

Read mere on pages 06 and 07
Emerging multi-
Sbillion market
Positive results from 400 Read more
subject FDA diinical study an page 02

Read more on pages

" 200
400 $100bn

Parsortix
world-leading

liquid biopsy
26 id b

Leading independent cancer

centres have delivered 26

peer-reviewed publications
Read more on page 10

93,000

>93,000 blood
samples processed

Read more on

23 200

Shown to wark
with 23 different €200 instruments
cancer types to date in active use
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Strategic Report

Market opportunity

A major opportunity in an
emerging and growing market

The liquid biopsy market is estimated
to be in excess of US$100 billion p.a.

Sourte: Frost & Sulvan Movermber 2018: United States only

Market drivers

Glohal burden of cancer

Key drivers of cancer incidence
= Increasing average life span

« Smmoking, poor diet, obesity and alcohol
« Over exposure 1o sun

» lack of exercise

+ Exposure 1o carcinogens

Infections and Hiv

+ Hormones and inherited genes

Key drivers of cancer
diagnostics market

- Shift towards precision medicins
nieed for companion diaghostics

+ Health economics ~ reduced costs

Early detection (screening)

~ Therapy sefection, treatrment monitoring
and remission monitoring

Precision medicine

With advancernents in genomics and dinical
information, & paradigm shift has begun
from “one drug fits all” towards *“precision
medicine” ~ che right drug for the righe
padent at the right time,

Key drivers
« Each patient’s cancer is different
- Fach patient’s cancer changes over time

+ Eifective treatment requires
personalised care

>1in 3

People (1 in 2 for developed countries)
will get cancer®

27.5m p.a.

Estimated rise in cancer cases within
the pext two decades'

173

MNew cancer incidence
(per annum)

18.1m

2018

14.1m

2012

Living with and after cancer

43.8m

2018

32.5m

2012

Deaths from cancer
{per annum)

9.6m

2018

8.2m

2012

1 Source Intermational Agency for Research on Cancer {(Globocan 2018)

ANGLE plc Annual Repoart ang Accounts
For the exght month period ended 31 December 2019



Strategic Report

ANGLE’s focus

Current
Detection of Therapy
cancer in high selection
risk graups
Ovarian pelvic mass Braast HER-2 Abbott
Prostate ARNVT7 Qiagen

Medium term Longer term
Assessing Rernission Screening for
treatment monitoring early cancer
Assessing rninimal Repeat testing to Need to assess
residual disease ensure CTCs not aggressivenass and
present avoid fabe positives

FDA clearance a major validation opening up commercial pathway

Prospect of first ever FDA clearance for harvesting cancer cells
from blood for analysis. Expected to accelerate sales and deals.

+ Existing research use sales 1o leading translational
researchers will expand with new product development

and sample-to-answer solutions.

£6bn p.a. estimated global market for exdsting Parsortix applications
in metastatic breast cancer; ovarian cancer and prostate cancer',

+ Service-led strategy in LODT {laboratory developed test} market.

+ Product-led strategy for clinical sales of Parsortix instruments and
consumables direct to hospitals.

- Expansion into research use sales for pharma services in drug trials.

Research

Leveragesi R&D model

Proof-of-concept studies
provide evidence and drive new
applications

Pharma

Large-scale research
use sales for drug trials

Cufturing CTCs for
drug testing

Companion diagnostics

Biomarkers
PD-L1

LDTs Clinteal products
Labaoratory developed tests Product sales worldwide
in a service kboratory to hospitals
Accelerator and demonstrator
Charian Matastatic breast

Market accessible on multiple fronts with Parsortix product-based solution

1 Source: Company estimate

ANGLE plc Annual Report and Accounts
Far the eight manths ended 31 December 2019
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Strategic Report

Strategy
A clear path to success

ANGLE has a four-pronged strategy for achieving
widespread adoption of its Parsortix system in
the emerging mulii-$billion liquid biopsy market.

Our Strategy

Completion of rigorous large-scale
clinical studies run by leading cancer
cantres, demanstrating the effectheness
of different applications of the system
in carer patient care,

Read more on pages 06 and 07

Clinical studies

Partnerships

Establishing partnershkips with large
healthcare companies for market
deployment and development of multiple

other clinical applications incorporating the Published evidence

Parsortix and/or HyCEAD Ziplex systems.
Read more on papes 12 and 33

Securing regulatery approval of the system
with the emphasis on FOA clearance as the

de focts gobal gold standard ANGLE is seeking
to be the first company ever to gain FDA
clearance for a system which harvests CTCs
frem blood for subsequent analysis.

Pead mor on pages (8 and 09

Regulatory approval

Establishing a body of published evidence from
{eading cancer centres showing the effectiveness
of the system through peer-reviewed publications,
scientific data and dinical research evidence,
highlighting a wide range of patentlal applications.

Read more on pages 10 and 11

ANGLE plc Annual Report and Accounts
For the aight moanth pericd ended 31 December 2019



Strateglc Report

Strong progress has been made
in each of these areas

What we have achieved in the period

Effective execution of the strategy has

the potential to deliver significant financial
returns for ANGLE’s shareholders,
profoundly improve the outcome for cancer
patients, and reduce healthcare costs.

Andrew D W Newland
Chief Executive

Building on previous achievements

Clinical studies — ovarian cancer

Chvarian cancer clinical verification study established with
leading US cancer centre. Pre-studly phase completed successfully
200 patient study initiated in August 2019

Following COVID-19 lock down delays, completion of study
patient enrolment is expected by the end of CY20.

Regulatory approval — metastatic breast cancer

FDA dlinical study enrolment of 400 subjects completed with positive
result for primary and exploratory objectives announced, FEA analytical
studies making significant progress. Q-Submission process with
FDA completed.

Following COMID-19 lock down delays, final analytical studies

in progress with prospect of making FDA submission in Q3 CY20.

Published evidence — leveraged R&D model

Leading independent cancer centres have delivered a total of

26 peer-reviewed publications as at 31 December 2019.
There have been a further eight peerreviewed publications since
the period end.

23 separate cancer centres have published uniformly positive
results on their use of the Parsortix system.

Partnerships — Jeveraged partnership model
Disaussions progressing with multiple partners which we expect
to accelerate once FDA dearance for the system is achieved.
Progress with Abbott on combining Parsortix and PathVysion

and enabling an Abbott fquid blopsy solution. Philips collaborative
rasearch project making progress.

ANGLE ple Annuai Report and Accounts
For the gighr months ended 31 Decamber 2019

Successful US and European ovarian cancer results in two 200
patient studies. Lead study delvered besc in class 95.1% ateuracy
in dsgiminating between benign and malignant peivic masses,
significantly out-performing standard of care,

Extenstve optimisation of the HyCEAD Ziplex molecular analysis
platform successfully campleted, demonstrating exceptionally

high sensitivity.

FDA dinical study in metastatic breast cancer with four feading US
cancer centres enrolling 400 subjects. FDA analytical study in progress.
Ongoing dialogue with FDA.

Total of 14 peer-reviewed publications at 31 December 2018,

Collaborative agreements signed with three leading global healthcare
companies: Abbott, Philips and QIAGEN.

QIAGEN protacol work undertaken and a joint poster and joint
marketing material deveioped.

05



Sirategic Report

Ovarian cancer clinical application ~ abnormal pelvic mass triage test

06

Strategic aims in action

Clinical studies

ANGLE's Parsortix and
HyCEAD Ziplex systems

are being developed to triage
wornen having surgery for an
abnormal pelvic mass to identify
those with ovarian cancer.

Extensive optimisation of the HyCEAD Zipiex
system and its combination with Parsortix was
suctessfully completed.

A detailed market review was completed to
identify key user requirements for the test.
Testing of the modified and further optimised
phtforms has been successfully completed
and the performance of the improverments
confirmed in a pre-study.

A 200 patient dinical verification scudy is in
progress with the University of Rochester Medical
Center Wimat Cancer Instinae. Completion of the
patient enralment is expected by end CY20.

Onee the new performance data is available,
ANGLE intends to establish this test as a
Laberatory Developed Test in-house andfor
with third-party laboratories,

The test has the potential 1o significantly improve
patient cutcames whilst at the same time reduce
averall healthcare costs.

ANGLE plc Annual Report and Accourits
For the eight monh period ended 31 December 2019



Strategic Report

ANGLF's Pelvic Mass
Triage test achieved
higher sensitivity

and specificity than
any other test for
the same indication.

The best in class performance of
the combined Parsortix and HyCCEAD
Ziplex systems used in the US study
demonstrates the capability to
out-perform current approadhes
for the detection of ovarian cancer,

ANGLE pl¢ Annual Report and Accounts
For the aight months ended 31 December 2019

The next generation
ANGLE Pelvic Mass
Triage test has the
ability to out-perform
current clinical

practice in accurately
discriminating malignant
from benign pelvic
masses prior to

biopsy or surgery.

The improved accuracy
of the test results

in a high level of
sensitivity as well as

a substantial reduction
in false positives.

Dr. Richard Moore

Director of the Gynecologic
Oncology Division, University

of Rochester Medical Center
Wilmott Cancer Institute

2x200

patiznt studies in Europe and the US completed
and reported positively

95.1%

correct prediction of cancer with a bestin
class accuracy (area under the curve) for the
predictive assay

US$1bn

p.a. estimated market potential for Parsartix
in ovarian cancer'

5-10%

of women will develop a pelvic mass requiring
surgery at some point in their fives?

c.750k

women p.a. with an abnormal pelvic mass in
US market alone

295k

wornen diagnosed with ovarian cancer globally
in 2018*

Survival rates

S0% at stage 14
3.5% at stage IV

1 Company estimate

2 poraryobgym Acthiwipel riup

3 Intervaticnal Agency for Research on Cancer Gicboan 2018)

4 wwwoanceresearchk crplheath-professionalicancerstatistics
Statisues-Dy-Cancer-type/ovanan.cancer



Strategic Report

Strategic aims in action

Regulatory approval

FDA clearance in metastatic breast cancer

Metastasis is responsible for the
vast majority of breast cancer
related deaths.

During the period the FDA dinical study {Study)
reported positive results that the Study had
achieved its primary objective 1o demonstrate
the abllity of the Parsortix system to cypture and
harvest cancer cells from the blood of a significant
proportion of metastatic breast cancer patients,

The Study has also adhieved fts exploratory goals
by demanstrating that the cells harvested from
pagent blood could be interrogated using differert
subsequent analysis techniques.

Considerable progress has been made on the
analytical studies and the work is ongoing,

ANGLE made a substantial Q-Submission

(2 "pre~subrmission used to request formaf
cornments from FDA on key questions) to
FDA, to reduce the risk that the full De Novo
submission might be rejected, and held a
rmeeting with FOA in January 2020,

Work is expected to be comgieted to allow
submission to FOA in Q3 CY20 offering the
prospect of FOA, dearance in (21, The timing
of FDA reguatory dearance is dependent on
FDA's review and response to owr submission,

For more information on cur work for breast
cancer, go 10 our website at

www.angleplc.comitransiational-research/
womens-health/breast-cancer/

What is FDA?

Why is it important?

What are the benefits?

FEA 1s the United States agency responsible for the
repuiatory clearance process for clinical applications
{treating patients).

FDA dearance aliows a product to be sold for
disgnosis of disease in patients in the United
States, |t i3 also seen as a de facto gold standard
for performance worldwide.

Securing FDA dearance will afow ANGLE to sell
Parsortix for treating patients in the United States.
It wili also greaty facitate sales into pharmaceutical
drug trials directly and with contract research
organisations.

ANGLE ple Aphual Report and Accounts
For the eight month pericd ended 31 December 2019



Strategic Report

ANGLE is seeking to
become the first ever
company to receive
FDA Class |l clearance
for a product for
harvesting intact CTCs
from patient blood for
subsequent analysis.

US regulatory dearance by FDA is considerod
the global standard for approval of medical
devices and diagnostics. ANGLE believes

that such dearance would provide ANGLE's
Parsortix system with further competitive
differentiation, which would accelerate all
forms of commercial adoption of the
systern in both research and dinical settings.

ANGLE has sustained a high level of resources
commitment on its effort to progress towards
FDA dearance over several years. Four of

the leading LS cancer centres enrolled 400
sublects for the clinical studies including
200 met: ic breast patients
and 200 healthy volunteers: University of
Texas MD Anderson Cancer Center, University
of Rochester Medicai Center Wilmot Cancer
Instiute, University of Southern California
Norris Comprehensive Cancer Center, and
Robert H Lurie Comprehensive Cancer Center
Northwestern University. The globat healthcare
company Abbott joined the Study, enabling us
o use its proprietary PathVysion HER-2 DNA
FISH Probe Kits Analytical studies have and
are being undertaken in-house to deal with key
aspects such as 1} precision and reproducibiity
2) timits of quantification and datection

3} accuracy and Iinearity and 4} interferences
and carryover.

AMNGLE ple Aanual Report and Accounts
For the eight months ended 31 December 2019

As a breast cancer
surgeon, | am very
enthusiastic about
the potential of
liquid biopsy. Our
piHot data shows
that potentially the
same information
can be obtained
from a simple

blood test using
Parsortix as from

an invasive tissue
biopsy and indeed
may be advantageous
over invasive tissue
biopsies in regards to
the diverse sites of
metastatic disease.
Julie E. Lang

Director, USC Breast Cancer
Program, Associate Professor of
Surgery, Norris Comprehensive

Cancer Center, University of
Southern California

4

leading US cancer centres enrciled patients
for FDA, dinical studies

400

subject study in the US completed and
reported positively

US$2.4bn

p.2. estimated market potential for Parsortix
in metastatic breast cancer'

21m

women diagnosed globally with breast cancer
in 2018*

6.9m

women living with and after cancer®

20-30%
of people Inttially diagnosed at early stages
will develop metastatic breast cancer®

1 Company cstimate
2 Internatioral Agency for Research on Cancer @oboan 2019)
3 wwwinbmorginodenke-ang-inddence-ratas
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Strategic Report

Strategic aims in action

Published evidence

Medical devices is an evidence led industry, and in addition
to the clinical studies and regulatory studies described previousty,
peer-reviewed publications are a key performance metric.

Leveraged R&D model
achjeving more

New peer-reviewed
publications

ANGLE product based approach means that

we are able to deplay our system 1o leading cancer
centres, as key apirion keaders and custormars.
ANGLES unique approach to caphuring and
Farvesting CTCs Is enabling these transiational
researchers 1o undertake a wide range of research
which shows the efectiveness of the system and is
leading to new uses and applicatiors for Parsortix as
well as achieving breakthraugh research in many
areas due to the spedal attributes of the system.
This is leading to an increasing number of posters
and more importantly peer-reviewed publications.

Further, ANGLE is not funding customer work,
and indeed the sale of nstruments and cassettes
is generating revenues. We refer tothis as a
“leveraged R&D model”, because significantly
more R&D work is being undertaken than if we
had to pay for this ourselves.

During the period, there were a further

six peer-reviewed publications and numerous
posters and presentations at leading conferances.
Publications that have been released pubhicly are
avaikeble at wwwangleplc.comiitraryfpublications!.
23 separate cancer centres have published
uniformly positive reports on their use of the
Parsortix system. Leading independent cancer
centres throughout Europe and North America
using ANGLE™ Parsortix system are also working
qn devdopments in 23 different cancer types.

This deployment of Parsortix far research now
means that the systemn s widely prasented and
discussed at leading caincer conferences around
the world and, during the period, customers have
developed ground breaking new research using
the system,

Instalied base

There were 26 peer-revieweed publcations as
at 31 Seternber 2019 with six new publications
anmaunced during the eight month reporting period:
» the University Medical Center Hamburg-
Eppendorf (UKE), demonstrating the use
of Parsortix asa liquid biopsy to investigate
a key immunotherapy target in iung cancer

the Disserninated Cancer Cell Network
{DCCNet), Duesseldorf, developing a single
cell analysis workflow for breast cancer

+ the Medical University of Vienna demonstrating
he yse of Parsortix for neuroendeocrine
analysis (coresponding 16 poor overall survival)
in srmall cell lung cancer

+ Queen Mary University of London's
Barts Cancer Institute demonstrating the
potential for Parsortix te be used to avoid
unnecessary biopsies in prostate cancer
without missing clinically significant
prostate cancer

the University of Birmingham publishing,
a review showing key benefits of Parsortix
in head and neck cancer

* the University Medical Center Hamburg-
Eppendorf (UKE), demonstrating Parsortix
use in prediction and monitoring of
therapy responses for telanomna
patients

Sirce the period end there have been a further
eight peer-reviewed publications.

Parsortix samples processed

Peer-reviewed publications

c.200

instafled base of Parsortix systems in active use

10

93,000

64,000

41,000

24,000

4000 11800

26

14

2
]

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Curmulative samples processed at 31 December

2014 2015 2016 2017 2078 2019
Cumutative publications at 31 December
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Strategic aims in action

Partnerships

ANGLE has a strategy to partner
with large-scale healthcare companies
for market deployment and
development of multiple other
clinical applications incorporating
our systems.

The Parsortix system is compatible with multiple
existing downstrearn analysis techniques. In addition
ta the capture and harvest of CTCs the system
can capture and harvest other rare cefis such as
fetal cells.

The HyCEAD Ziplex system can be employed with
many other sample types, nat just CTCs, and in
rrary other sectors, not just cancer. The priority has
been on optimising this 1o work in the ovarian cancer
pelvic mass triage test which irvolves a panel of
genes. HyCEAD Ziplex is being developed for other
@ncer panels including breast and prostate and with
parners for the other areas.

Progressing partnerships with
healthcare companies

Large-scale deployment of the Parsortix system
across nurnerous Gincer types and application
areas requires ANGLE to partner with large.
global healtheare companies 1o take advantage
of their distribution and sales channels and
ESCONOITIC reseUes.

Dicussions are ongoing with companies in relevant
fields: medgtech companies, pharma companies,
cantract research organisations and reference
horataries aborataries offering clinical tests).

WWe expect to see our partnership programme
accelerate on achieving FOA clearance for the system

During the period, ANGLE has progressed its three
key partnerships with large healthcare compantes,

Abbott’s proprietary PathVysion FHER-2

DNA FISH Probe kits were utilised in ANGLE's
FDA clinical study for FISH (fluorescence in
sitw hybridization) analysis of circulating tumour
cells. The process of analysis using FISH was
successtul and ANGLE is pursuing commercial
discussions with Abboftt,

The collaborative research project with Philips

o develop liguid biopsy solutions as part of

a four-year European Union research grant
funded programma progressed during the period.
Philips has selected the Parsortix system as the
only system to be used for harvesting CTCs
within the programme. Breast and rectal cancers
are being targeted.

During the period, the co-marketing agreament

with QIAGEN progressed with a focus on the
measurement of AR-V7 in prostate cancar.

A joint poster publication was released at

2 leading international cancer conference and

joint rarketing raterial has been prepared.

Next steps are currently being evaluated.

The proposed arquisition of QUAGEN by Therma
Fisher Scientific offers some alternative opportunities.

Non-invasive prenatal testing (NIPT)

Previously, ANGLE completed a pilot study
demonstrating that the Parzartix gystem could
harvest fetal cells from the blood of pregnant wamen.
The detection of fetal abnormalities by analysis of fetal
cells as apposed to cell free fatal DNA {tiny fragments
of dead cells) could greatly extend the applicability

of the pracess whike addressing key lnitations in
existing approaches.

The NIPT market is expected to reach USS1L0 bilion
in market size by 2022". ANGLE plans to progress
cormmerciafisation of Parsartix i this market thwough
commerdal partnerships with one or more large
heaithcare companies. Discussions are in progress
with a number of such companies.

12
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Abbott is the global market leader for FISH testng
for MER-2 in solid tissue biopsies, a market estimated
1o be worth US$0S bilion per annum in 2016
{sourcer Grand View Research).

There is now the potential for Abbott to offer a
Farsortix-based proguct for HER-2 analysis from

a routine blood test. Testing of CTCs for HER-2
could provide Abbott with a repeat test for HER-2
ghving 2 4x increase in use of their PathVysion test.
Combiring Parsortix and Pathysion could command
much higher reimbursement, increasing margins
as well as the potential for exclusivity in the repeat
testing market.

Abbott is pleased

to collaborate with
ANGLE in this
important evaluation
of PathVysion in liquid
biopsy specimens.

The PathVysion HER-2
DNA FISH Probe kit is
reliable and accurate in
tissue biopsy samples
and the Parsortix
system may unlock
the potential for
PathVysion use in

a simple blood test.
Kathryn B Becker

Franchise Director Oncology and
Companion Diagnosties, Abbott

Parsortix harvested HER-2 stained cells.
13



Strategic Report

Chairman's Statement

Progressing towards FDA clearance

Major progress was made during
the period towards the completion
of the clinical and analytical studies
to support FDA clearance of the
Company’s Parsortix system in
metastatic breast cancer.

Garth R Seivey
Chairman

Strategy

ANGLE has continued with its sustained focus on
its four-pronged strategy for achieving widespread
adoption of its Parsortix system in the emerging
ruiti-bilfion doflar liquid biopsy market:

Completion of rigorous large-scale dinical
studkes run by keading cancer centres,
demaonstrating the effectiveness of different
applications of the system in cancer patient care

Securing reguktory approval of the system

with the emphasis on FDA clearance as the

e facto global gold standard, ANGLE is secking
to be the first company ever to gain FDA
clearance for a systern which harvests circulating
tumour cefls {CTCs) from the blood of patients
(nitially metastatic breast cancer patients) for
subsequent analysis

Establishing a body of published evidence

from keading cancer centres showing the

wutility of the system through peer-reviewed
publications, scientific data and dirnical research
evidence. highlighting a wide ratge of potendat
applications

Establshing partnerships with large heatthcare
companies for market deployment and
development of multiple other dinical
applications incorporating the Parsortix system.

ANGLE is in the process of establisting an
independent accredited dinical aboratory that wil
have the capahility of offering validated dinical tests.
This clinical laboratory will be used as an accelerator
and demonstrator it support of the Company's
established plan for product sales of Parsortix
instrurnents and cassettes.

Read more about our strategy on pages 04 to 13

14

During the period ANGLE
progressed dinical and analytical
studies to support a De Novo
FDA submission for its Parsortix
systemn for capturing and harvesting
drculating tumour cells from
metastatic breast cancer patients.

Strong progress was also made with the Company’s
ovariah cancer assay and a clinical verffication study
initlated patient enrolment during the period.

Meanwhile ANGLE's collaboraters and customers
continued to demonstrate Parsortix’s versatifity in
cancer transistional research developing important
new applications. This work generated six new
publications during the period increasing the body
of peer-reviewed evidence supporting the platform,

Overview of Financial Resulcs

Revenue of £0.6 milfion in the eight month period
{year ended 30 April 2019 £07 million) came mainly
from research use of the Farsortix system ANGLE
continued its investrnent in studies to develop and
validate the cfinical application and cornmerncial use
of the: Parsortix system, resulting in operating costs
of £82 million in the eight month period {year ended
30 April 2019 £11.6 million) and a loss for the eight
month period of £6.2 miion (year ended 30 April
2019: £8.9 million).

The cash balance wag £78.8 milion at 31 December
2019 {30 April 201%: £11.0 million) with R&D Tax
Credits due at 31 December 2019 of £3.4 milion
(30 April 2019: £1.9 miillior) of which £1.8 milion
was received after the period end. The cash position
was strengthened during the pericd with a successiul
placing of new shares with institutional investors
induding significant new US investors in July 2019,
which raised gross procesds of £18.0 milllon.
Proceeds net of expendes ware £16.9 mililon.

ANMNGLE ple Annuzi Repart and Accounts
For the eight month period ended 31 December 2019
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Progress towards FDA clearance

ANGLE is seeking to become the first ever company
to receive FDA dearance for a medical device

that harvests intact creulating tumour cells from

the blood of metastatic breast cancer patients for
subsequent analysis. US regulatory dearance by

FDA is considered the giobal standard for approval
of medical devices and diagnostics.

During the period, the FDA dhinical studias and a
substaritial number of the FDA analytical studies
demonstrating the performance of the Parsortix
system for the capture and harvesting of dncu'ating
twmour cells in metastatic breast cancer were
completed. These studies have been technically and
logistically extremely challenging, requiring a total of
aver 10,000 samples to be processed with Parsortix.

The FDA clirical studies were undertaken by four of
the leading US cancer centres {University of Texas

MD Anderson Cancer Center, University of Rachester
Medical Center Wimot Cancer Institute, Uriversity

of Southern California Norris Comprehensive Cancer
Center, and Robert H Lurie Comprehensive Cancer
Certter Northwestern University).

The analytical studies demonstratad the performance
of the Parsortix system in key aspects including
precision and reproducibility, limis of quantification
and detection, aceuracy and inearity, and interferents
and carryover. These studies have required resclution
of numerous technical challenges to meet FDA
requirernents, giving ANGLE a thoroughly characterised
platform and consequent competitive advantage.

On 29 October 2019, ANGLE made a substantial
Q-Submission (@ “pre-submission” used to request
forrnal comment from FDA on key questions) to
FDA. The Q-Subrission responded to a number of
questions and suggestions previously made by FDA
on ANGLES study plans and set out headline data
from both the cinical and analytical studies. ANGLE
2lso requested FDA formally respond to a series

of questions, incuding whether our responsas to
specific questions which FDA had previously raised,
were acceptable ANGLE's intention in making this
Q-Submission was to reduce the risk that the ful
FOA De Nevo Submission might be rejected.

FDA provided a written response to the
Q-Submission and held a formal face-to-face
meeting with ANGLE In January to discuss their
response, which identified some additional analytical
study work requested by FDA, as announced on

22 jarwaary 2020, Subsequent to this meeting, a

full De Novo Submission to FDA is in preparation,
requesting clearance for the Parsortix PC1 system
for capturing and harvesting dirculating tumour

<ells from metastatic breast cancer patients.

ANGLE ple Annuai Report and Aczounts
For the eight months ended 31 December 2019

Subsequent to the period end, the COVID-19 lock
down in the UK beginning in March 2020 resulted in
the immediate loss of availability of healthy volunteer
blood denors required to complete the analytical
samples rernaining to complete the Submission.

As announced on 22 June 2020, blood donations
have now recommenced znd the analytical studies
have been re-started with the aim of making the
FDA submission in Q3 CY20.

The outcome and timing of the FDA regulatory
dedision s entirely dependert on FDAS review and
response to the Company's submission,

Large-scale clinical studies

Ovarian cancer dlinical application:
triaging abnormal pelvic mass

During the period, following further successful
optimisation of the combination of ANGLES
Parsortix CTC systam with its proprietary HyCEAD
Ziplex downstream molecular analysis process, an

ovarian cancer dinical verification study was established

with University of Rochester Medical Center Wilmot.

Cancer Institute, New York, USA (URMC) and patient

enrolment initiated.

The study has been desigred to evaluate the
performance of ANGLE's predictive ovarian cancer
detection assay developed using the results from
the previous 200 subject study, which achieved
best in class results ALKC>35% accuracy, in a new
patient cohort.

Subsequent to the period end. the COVID-19 lodk
dewm in the US beginning in March 2020 resufted in
URMC ceasing elective surgeries, patient enrolment,
and research laboratory activities. As announced

on 22 June 2020, URMC has now recommenced
patient enrolment and compietion of study patient
enrolment is expected by the end of CY20.

Once the new performance data is avallabie and,
assuming comparable resuits to the previous study,
ANGLE intends to aestablish this test as a liboratory
developed test (LDT} in an accredited dinlcal
taboratory setting, The test has the poterttial to
significantly improve patient outcomes whilst at

the same time reducing overall healthcare costs.

Establishing a body of published evidence
The Comparty's strategy to secure research use
adoption of the Parsortix system by leading cancer
research centres, in onder to get indapendent

third parties driving development of new clinical
applications, is working very well.

Over 93,000 samplas have been processed using the

Parsortix system as at 31 December 2019, with over

20,000 samgles in the efght month period (year to

30 April 2019: 24,000). There were 26 peer-reviewed

publications as at 31 December 2019 with six new

publications announced during the eight month

reporting period {see www.angleplc comibrary/

publications’) inchuding

» the University Medical Center Hamburg-
Eppendorf (UKE), demonstrating the use of
Parsortix as a liquid biopsy to investigate a key
immunotherapy target in lung cancer

- the Disserninated Cancer Cell Network
(DCCNet), Duessetdorf, developing a single
cell analysis workflow for breast cancer

- the Medical University of Vienna demonstrating
the use of Parsortix for neuroendocrine
analysis (corresponding to poor overall survival)
in small cell lung cancer

= Queen Mary University of London’s Barts
Cancer Institute demonstrating the potential
for Parsortix to be used to avoid unnecessary
biopsies in prostate caneer without missing
clinically significant prostate cancer

+ the University of Birmingham publishing a review
showing key benefits of Parsortix in head and
neck cancer

» the University Medical Center Hamburg-
Eppendorf {UKE), demonstrating Parsortix use
in pradiction and monitoring of therapy
respanses for melanoma patients

To date, 23 separate carker centres from around
the world have published uniformly positive reports
on their use of the Parsortix system. Leading
independent cancer centres throughout Europe,
North America and alsewhere using ANGLE's
Parsortix system are working on developrents

in 23 different cancer types.
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Chairman's Statement
continued
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Strong progress was also made with
the Company's ovarian cancer assay
and a clinical verification study initiated
patient enroiment during the period.

Garth R Seivey
Chairmarn

ANGLE ple Annuat Report and Accounts
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Progressing partnerships

with large healthcare companies

Large-scale deployment of the Parscrtix system
3Cross numerous cancer types and appliction

areas requires ANGLE to partner with large,

global healthcare companies to take advantage of
their distribution and sales channels and economic
resources. Discussions are ongoing with companies
in relevant fiekds: medtech companies, pharma
cormpanies, contract research organisations and
reference laboratories (aboratories offering dirical
tests). Vve expect to see our partnership programme
accelerate once FDA clearance for the systemn has
been achieved,

During the period, ANGLE has progressed its three
key parinerships with the large healthcare companies
Abbott, QIAGEN and Philips, and is continuing to

seek a corporate partner 1o progress the use of
Parsortix in non-imvasive prenatal testing (NIPT).

COVID-19

The Company has had some short-term negative
impacts from government lock downs assodated
with COVID-15. Although this has created some
uncertalnty and a need to adapt the operating maodel
it Is not expected 1o have any significant long-term
irpact on the Company. As a mitigating step, the
dedision was made not 1o pay executive or staff
bonuses for the eight month period to 31 Decerrber
2019 in order to preserve cash during the COVID-19
lock down uncertainty.

Whiea the COVID-19 lock down caused some
uranticipated disruption and delays outside of

the Company's control, the Company adopted a
proactive approach to the lock down advancing

on muliple fronts and developing some new
initfatives. The business continuity plan was enacted,
disruption was minimised and employees, suppliers

and austomers were flexible and proactive in dealing

with the situation. Those employees that can work
from horne have done so, whereas laboratory staff
have moved to double shift patterns with enhanced
hygiene and operating procedures in order to provide
a safe working environment and meet government
laws and guiddlines. Research use revenues have
been disrupted, as the cancer centres we seli to

are mainly within hospital facilites that have been
dosed except for COVID-19 selated activities, but
we have taken the opportunity to work on remote
customer support measures and proactive business
development programmes.

Cancer is the second leading cause of death globaly
and is responsible for an estimated 9.6 million deaths
in 2018 with an estimated 18.1 million new cases
every year and sorme 43.8 miflion Iving with and after
cancer: The need for a simple blood test alternative 1o
tissue biopsies Is belng even further demonstrated in
the current COVID-19 situation as cancer diagnesis
and treatrnent for criticaly important metastatic
tissue biopsies are being postponed or cancelled,

Outlook

Major progress was made during the period with
the dinical and analytical studies to support FDA
cearance of the Company's Parsortix system in
metastatic breast cancer. The full De Novo FDA
Submission is in preparation so that this can be
rapidly submitted once the remaining analytical
samples needad to meet the requirements identified
in the January 2020 meeting with FDA are available
and have been anzlysed. These samples were
detayed by the COVID-19 restrictions preventing
the recruitment of heafthy volunteer blood donors
but work is now back in progress and the FDA
submission is expectad to be made in Q3 CY20.

Patiert enrciment has also recommenced and
ANGLE is again making progress with its avarian
cancer test. i is expected that patient enrclment
will complete by the end of CY20, with the aim
of supporting the establishment of a aboratory
developed test for ovarian cancer in the new year.

During the period, we raised further growth capital,
expanding our existing UK shareholder base and
adding key new US irvestors. ANGLE has a robust
balance sheet with sufficient working capital and

24 June 2020
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Business Strategy

Sustained focus on delivering our strategy

ANGLE’s ultimate objective is the
widespread adoption of the Parsortix
system in the diagnosis, treatment and
monitoring of cancer patients.

Andrew D W Newland

Chief Executive

ANGLE has been following a
consistent strategy for several years
to bring its Parsortix technology

1o market. This strategy is set

out below.

Introduction

ANGLE i a world-leading liquid biopsy company
commerdalising a platform technology that can
capture cells circulating in blood, such as cancer
cells, even when they are as rare in number as one
cell in one billion blood celfs, and harvest the celis
for analysis.

ANGLE' cell separation technology is cafled Parsortix
and is the subject of granted patents In the United
States, Europe, Ching, Australiz, Canada, India, japan
and Mexico. Three extensive farmikes of patents are
being progressed worfdwide. The system is based

on a microfiidic device that captures cells based

on a combination of their size and compressibility,

Tre analysis of the cells that can be harvestad from
patient blood with ANGLE's Parsortix system bas the
patential to deliver profound improvemerts in dinical
and health econormic outcomes in the treatment and
diagnasis of various forms of cancer

As well as cancer, the Parsartix technology has
the potential for deplayrment with several other
important cell types in the fiture, including for
example fetal cells,

18

Cancer medical applications

The treatment of cancer is highly problematic

primarily because of the heterogeneity of cancer

in multigle dimensions:

+ Each cancer patient may have different
mutations from other patients with the same
type of cancer

- Each cancer patient may have several different
types of ¢ancer cell mutation within a particular
tumour

Each patient’s cancer may mutate and change
over time

In order to treat patients effectively, doctors nead
deploy drugs that target the individual patient’s cancer
at that point in time. This approach & called “precision
medidne” and in recent years has become accepted
worldwide as the most Gkely way to improve patient
autcomes in the: fong run,

There s therefore a crudal need for ongolng
information as to the patient’s cancer status. Initially,
where the cancer tumpur an be accessed, this is
currently achieved through a sofid tissue biopsy,

for example through a breast cancer lurnpectormy.
The tissue exdsed is analysed and the oncologist
makes a dedisian on therapy based on the aralysis,
for example in breast cancer if the patient is HER2
postive (human epidermal growth receptor 2. a
protein which if positive promotes the growth of
cancer cefls) they may receive Herceptin or a similyr
drug but atherwise they will not.

The use of the sclid tissue blopsy where it can be
applied is effective and the current "gold standard” in
treatment. However it is invasie, relatively costly and
not suited to repeat testing compared with a blood
test, Importantly & @nnot always be used effectively
in difficult to access tumaours, such as brain, panareatic
and lung cancers where insufficient tissue may be
obtained for analysis or the patient ks too il for the
biopsy surgery.

Crycially, whether or not a sofid tissue biopsy can
be taken when the patent presents, biopsy of the
primary tissue cannot be repeated at a later date
when the Yissue concermed has already been exedsed
and is no longer there.

Primary capcers shed cancer cells into the patlent’s
bloodstream. These cells circulate in the blood and
are known as circulating tumour calls or CTCs,

The CTCs can then land in another part of the

bady and initiate a secondary cancer: If they an be
harvested for analysis, the CTCs have the potential to
provide, through a simple peripheral blood test as is
rautinely used in medical application, arucial medical
information regarding the changing metastatic and
rruntational status of the patient's disease

1t is widely agreed that a non-invasive liquid biopsy
that coukd harvest CTCs for analysis on a repeat
basis would have a prafound impact in understanding
the patient's cument cancer status and evolution and
ensuring the optium frestment is deployed for that
Individual patient at that particular time,

ANGLE ple Annuat Report and Accounts
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Economics of cancer patient treatment
Treatment of cancer patients ¢an be very expensive.
For example a single chemotherapy drug prescribed
may cost in excess of £50.000 for a course Newer
immunotherapy drugs may cost up to £150,000
per annum. Such drugs are presaibed because they
are thought to be the best cption avallable to traat
patients, whilst in reality they will be beneficel to
only a proportion, typically 20-30%, of patients.

In this situation, 70-80% of the drug cost may be
wasted on patients who have no medical benefit
from the treatment. Worse stil these drugs are toxic
and, regardiess of whether they receive any benefit
fom the drug, patients will often expearience severe
side effects.

Furtherrmore, % is often the case that without specific
information on the individual patient’s cancer a
cocktall of drugs is prescribed where the doctors
know that several will be ineffective for that patient
but they do not know which ones,

ANGLESs aim is to demonstrate the Parsortix
system's capabiiity to harvest CTCs for an anafysis
that will enable a determination of which patients
will benefit from which drug.

This will not only improve patient treatment and
reduce unnecessary side effects but dramatically
reduce overall patient treatment costs allowing

more efficent and effective deployment of medical
resources. This approach will support the efforts

of the National Institute for Health and Clinical
Excellence {NICE) in the UK, and similar organisations
elsewhere in the world, 1o ensure effective use of
medical rescurces.

Market size

ANGLE's ulimate objective is the widespread
adoption of the Parsortix system in the dizgnosis,
treatment and monitoring of cancer patients.
Atcarding to the World Health Organization, there
were an estimated 18.1 milion new cancer cases
workdwide in 2018, a marked rise on the 14.1 million
cases in 2012 In 2018, there were an estimated

96 million deaths from cancer (2012 82 million).

in 2018, there were an estimated 43.8 milion pecple
iiving with and after cancer (2012 325 million),
(Source: International Agency for Research on
Cancer — Globacan 2018).

The indidence of cancer continues to grow as 3 result
of demagraphic, lfestyle and ervironmental factors
and #t is estimated that one in two people in the UK
will get cancer during their bfetime (Sources CRUK).

There is a wide range of potential applications for
harvested CTCs including diagnosis, prognosts,
rutational analysis and drug selection, drug
development, assessment of treatment effectiveness,
and remission manitoring. Frost & Sullvan have
estimated that the liquid biopsy market will be worth
in excess of $100 bifion per annum in the United
States alone.

ANGLE plc Annyal Repart and Accaunts
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Commercialisation
ANGLE has a dear strategy to commerdalise iis
Parsortix technology.

The celt capture and harvesting technology has been
developed together with an automated instrurnent
1o run blood samples through the cell separation
cassette and extensive intelectual property
protection of the system is being prosecuted.

A great deal of work has been completed with

the alm of ensuring the system is robust, operates
reproducibly and can run patient samples effidently:
Foliowing this the product was released for
commendal launch with first sales registered in
December 2015. Optimisation of the system is

a continuous improvemnent process along with
developing Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for
new applications and new product development to
meet customer needs to ensure it operates effectively
with existing medtech platforms for cell analysis.

The systern is well established with an installed base
of ¢.200 instruments in active use.

Successfl evaluation of the system by major cancer
research centres as key opinion leaders (KOLs)

for the market was achieved and has led to good
adoption amongst leading translaticnal researchers.
ANGLE continues to work with a select number of
KOLs to develop 1) new uses of the system 2) new
dinical applications 3} proof that the system works
with different types of cancer. Customers hawe ase
delivered ground breaking research and identified
new uses. This raises awareness of the Parsortix
systern through peer-reviewed publications and other
published evidence as well as the cancer centres
presenting at conferences,

Regulatory authorisation for the dinical use of the
system in patient treatment in the European Union
has already been achieved and the process is ongoing
with the FDA for the USA.

\Widespread adeption of the Parsortix systemin the
dinical market crucially depends on ongoing work
with KOLs and customers to!

= Undertake successful pilot studies demanstrating
patient applications with clear medical wtility
(patient benefit)

» Select key medical applications with clear
medical utility

» Undertake successful patient studies providing
fully documented evidence of how the system
should be used for particular patient applications
in routine treatment

+ Comvert cancer centre support and peerreviewed
publications into widespread adoption of the
Parsortix system in routineg patient care

Major areas of work currently in progress are
described below,

Competitive differentiation
Major competitive differentiators of the system
successfully demonstrated indude:

+ Epitope independence with no
reguirement for the use of an antibady
to capture cells. The Parsortix system has key
advantages over antibody-based systerns that
rely on the expression of a cell surface protein
(such as EpCAM) induding:

— the system is able to capture CTCs that
have undergone the epithelial mesenchymal
transition during the process of metastasls
{and are no longer EpCAM positive)

~ the system is able to capture CTCs in cancer
types, such as ovarian cancer, which only have
waeak or no EpCAM expression

— the syster is versatile and may be used for
other cell types such as fetal cells

— the harvest is clean and does not contain
immuno-magnetic beads or other additives
needed for the antibody-based cell capture
systemns, which may compromise analysis
of the cells

- Easy harvest of cells from the system for
moiecular analysls, unlike many other systems
where cells may be captured but can get stuck
in the separation system so that they cannot
be harvested for analysis

+ Low level of background white blood
cell contamination thereby allowing either
single cell analysis or direct analysis of the
harvested cells containing both the CTCs and
a low number of white bioad cefts. Competing
systems may have far more background white
bloed cell contamination thereby making analysis
of target cells more difficult

+ Simplicity and cost effectiveness so
that beth the cne-time use consumabie,
the Parsortix cassette, and the automated
instrument that runs the blood through the
cassette are simple, easy to use, straightforward
in training and cost competitive

+ The Parsortix systermn is easily deployed
at customer sites in stark contrast to many
competing systems which, as a result of their
size and complexity, the need for expert
operators and difficulty in securing regulatory
authorisation, may be forced to rely solely on
a CLIA (certified laboratory) approach where
the customer has to send the patient sample
for analysis at a remote laboratory and cannot
process it near the patient.
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Business Strategy
continued

Optimising the system and ongoing
improvements

ANGLE continues to undertake work on the
Parsortix system with the aim of ensuring that it is
robust, operates reproducbly and can run patient
sarmples efficientiy.

AMNGLE has successfully completed extensive wark
in key areas of functionality including:

« developing, testing and then automating the
harvesting protocols to allow harvesting of cells
fram the Parsortix systern for molecular analysis

developing and refining protocals to reduce
the fevel of background white blood cell
contamination of the harvested cells. This
enables the analysis of the harvested cells
directly without the need for a separate single
cell separation step, athough this may still be
useful in some applications

The main areas of work that are currently taking
place inciude;

- developing interface protoco!s for the existing
malecular analysis platforms deployed by same
of the world's largest medtech companies

+ investigating how best the Parsortix system
can be used by majer pharma companies for
cancer drug develppment and as a “companion
diagnostic” to determine the suitability and
effectiveness of drugs for individual patients

developrment of an in-house proprietary
molecular analysis systern HyCEAD Ziplex,
which allows muitiplex gene expression for
more than 100 genes simultaneously on a
highly cost-effective basis

20

Secure regulatory authorisation

In order to be able to sell the Parsortix system for
use in treating patients i the dinical markat. it ls
necessary to secure regulatory authorisation for
the ciinical use of the system in patient treatment
in each geographic region.

ANGLE has secured CE Mark authorisation for the
use of Parsortix as an in vitro diagnostic device in
the European Unian in the treatment of patients,

ANGLE is working towards FD Class I dearance
for dinical use of the Parsortix system in the United
States. The timing of FDA regulatary dlearance is
dependent on the FDA' review and responses to
our submission.

There are no FDA deared systems for harvesting
CTCs for analysis and conly one system authorised
for the capture and counting of CTCs, which is
antibody-based. Securing FOA authorisation wil
be a key competithe differentiation of the
Parsortix system.

Patient studies by key cpinion leaders
to identify potential clinical applications
A critical element in progressing commerdalisation
of the Parsartix system is ensuring KOLs undertake
successful patient studies to demonstrate patient
applications with clear medical utility. This irvolves

working dosaly with KOLs o encourage and support,

with both human and finandial resowces, their
investigative work using the Parsortix system.

The first such KO to report was the Madical
University of Vienna, whose study in ovartan Gancer
demonstrated the potential 1o use the system to
detect evarian cancer in wormen having operations
1o surgically remove abnormal pelvic mass growths.
This is now being developed as the Compary’s first
clinical application with the objective of 2 smple
blocd test to determing which patients are ikely to
have gvarian cancer (approxinately 1098) and which
are likely to have benign growths, This application
will save heafthcare costs and improve patient
outeomes by focusing resources appropriate to the

patient congition, The dlinical study programmes have

been developed and are recruiting patients, This is

described in more detail in the Chafrman’s Statement

on pages 14 to 17,

The FDA dearance studies in melastatic breast
cancer utiise cytological examination, Ri-FCR, HSH
and RNA-seq methods for analysing cancer cells.

Summary

ANGLE has a well-differentiated patent-protected
product addressing a large developing medica)
market with a clear strategy 1o secure a substarsial
market share.

Effective execution of the strategy has the potential
1o deliver significant finandal returns for ANGLE's
shareholders, profoundly improve the autcame for
canger patients, and reduce healtheare costs.

On behalf of the Board

Andrew D W Mewland
Chisf Executive
24 June 2020
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There are no FDA cleared systems

for harvesting CTCs for analysis and
only one system authorised for the
capture and counting of CTCs, which
is antibody-based. Securing FDA
clearance wilt be a key competitive
differentiation of the Parsortix system,

Andrew D W Newland
Chief Executive

ANGLE ple Annual Report aod Accounts
for the eight moaths ended 31 December 2012
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Key Performance Indicators
Strong progress against key milestones

The Group measures its performance according to a range
of key performance indicators (KPls). The main KPls and details
of performance against them are as follows:

KP1

Perfarmance

Cash position

The c@sh position at 31 December 2019 was £18.8 mifion (30 April 2015 £11.0 milfion). The Group aarefully plans
expenditure with roliing cash flow forecasts and dght finandial controt, Since the period end, the COVID-19 vins
pandemic has impacted the businass and following a detalled review, certain expenditures have been reduced andior
deferred in order to extend the cash runway. The Group has a high level of discretionary expenditure given the nature
of its activities.

The Group utilises a collaborative cost sharing leveraged R&D model approach with key opinion leaders {KOLg) and
an outsourced appraach with third-party suppliers, avoiding long-term commitrments as far as possible. Manufacturing
of instruments and cassettes is outsourced and product can be ordered on refatively shortlead times,

Inteliectual
property

Inteflectual property strengthened with new patent filings, and the acquiskion of the HyCEAD Ziplex intellectual
property, increasing the breadth and duration of patent coverage and the range of medical applications covered,
Fatent appiications are being progressed worldwide.

24 patents protecting the Parsortix system grantad at the reporting date (30 April 2019: 23} in the United States,
Europe, Austratia, Canada, China, Japan, India and Mexico, extending patent coverage out to 2034,

Ovarian cancer
clinica!l application:

There have been two successful 200 patient studies for the detection of ovarian carwer in patients having surgery
for abnormal petvic masses and the optimisation of the ovarian assay combining Parsortix and HyCEAD Ziplex has
been completed.

triag_lng abnormal The optimised 2ssay is now being tested in a new 200 patient study being run by the University of Rochester Medical

PelVIC mass Center Wiimot Cancer Ingtitute (URMC). Since the period end, COVID-19 has resutted in URMC temporarily ceasing
ervolrment which has since been restarted.

Product The Parsertix cell capture and harvesting technology has been developed and comprises an automated nstrument

development

to run blood samples through the separation cassette.

Extensive product devalopment and system optimisation has been successfully completed to address the operational
requirements of a wide range of KOLs and customers. Product development work has been completed te develop,
test, optimise, characterise and docurment key operating protocols enabling customers to undartake analysis ina.
specific area of interest.

The Parsortix system has been derponstrated to be reliable, easy to use and produces robust reprodudble results.
There were ¢.200 Farsortix instruments in active use (in-house, KOLs and customners) at the reporting date

{30 April 2019: < Z30), QOver 93,000 blood separations have been perforrned an the systern at the reporting date
(30 April 2G19: 73.000). This experimental data provides a broad body of evidence that demaonstrates the systems
potential to be applicable te 2 wide range of cancer fypes and forms of analysis. To date Parsortix has been used
successiully with 23 different types of tancer:

Upgredes, enhancements and optimisation of the Parsortix and HyCEAD Ziplex systems are ongoing to further
enhance operational performance and product reliabiity and to develop adkditional utiity and operating protocals
based on custorner and KOL feedback.

ANGLE pls Arnuzl Report and Accounts
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KPI Performance

Published evidence Successful evaluations and studies with multiple third-party cancer centres has led to a growing body of published evidence:
» 26 as at 31 December 2019 (30 April 2019: 20) publications in peer—reviewed journals

Reguh_gory Regulatary autharisation is a requirement before the Parsortix system can be sold for use in the dinical market
. . {for the treatment of patients).

authorisation
ANGLE has already successfully secured CE Mark authorisstion for indicated clinical use of the Parsortix system as an
in vitro diagnostic device in the European Union.
ANGLE is pursuing FDA clearance for the system for harvesting cancer cells from patient blood for analysis in the first
instance for matastatic breast cancer: Chinical studies have been compieted and reported positively. Since the period end,
COVID-19 has resulted in analytical studies, which are nearly complete, being halted due to COVID-19 refated restrictions
in the UK causing the loss of avallability of healthy volunteer blood doners and the temporary dosure of the ANGLE
Guikiford laboratory. Blood donations have recently been restarted and the remaining analytical studies and documentation
are in progress 5o that the FDA submission can be made.

Four kading US cancer centres condicted the clinical studies:

+ University of Texas MD Anderscn Cancer Center

+ University of Rochester Medical Center Wilmot Cancer Institute

* University of Southern California Norris Comprehensive Cancer Center
« Robert H Lurie Comprehensive Cancer Center Morthwestern University

ANGLE Europe maintains its Quality Control system to (SO 13485:2016 and has a BSI certificate of registration
certifying our compliance with this standard and is subject to and continues to receive annual compliance audits by BSL
Work is ongoing to prepare for 21CFR820 compllance in support of FDA clearance. Work also continues in ANGLEs
Toronto facility in preparation for securing (SO 13485:2016 certification (by BSI) for ANGLE Bicsciences Inc. under the
Health Canada regufations.

Research use sales Sales have been made to multiple customers in Europe, North America and elsewhere induding exdisting KOLs, new
research users, big pharma and immunotherapy companies comprising new instrument sales and repeat orders for
cassettes and warranties. The product was launched in fate summer 2015 after uniformiy positive results pubiished
by five KOLs with first sales in Oecember 2015, Sales for the eight month period were £0.6 million (year ended
30 April 2019: £0.7 million). Since the period end, sales have temporarly reduced due to the impact of COVID-19
with customer sites being closed.

ANGLE plc Annual Report and Accounts 23
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Managing risks

The nature of madical diagnostics development and
the early stage and scale of our operations means
there are a number of risks and uncertainties.

The Directors maintain 2 risk register and have suramarised the principal

risks and uncertainties that could have a material impact on the Group.
These are set out in the table below, along with mitigation strategies.

Risk Description Mitigation
Clintical The Group is developing a dinical application in The Group employs an experienced dinical studies director; who has

i - . the triaging of abnormal pebvic masses. This is developed detailed dinical study programmes (nduding prior experience in
application in dependentt on both suctessful Farvesting of CTCs CTCs and ovarian cancer) which have had thorough intermal and third-party
ovarian cancer by the Parsortix system and idenifying a set of reviews, including by the study lead and other experts.

RINA, markers that can be detected by HyCEAD

N Y N A significant amount of preparation, including additional R&D on the proposed
g’mf—t;ddmm;m&:: gnant avenan RINA markers and study processes, has been undertaken to minimise the
' risks, The Group carefully selected this clinfcal application based on a set of key
Clinical studies may be delayed due to stow ariteria including strong pilot study date, access to leading KOLs and access
or hsufficient patient enrolment or may be o patients,

temporarily ceased due 1o factors outside of . . |
cur control such as the COVID-18 pandemic The Group assembles multiple study sites and partners where possible to

There can be oo o0 that the clinical achieve patient accrual rates in a timely fashion.
appiication will be developed into a commerdaly  The Group has undertaken independent market research to understand end:

viable product. user needs and ensure the studies produce the necessary data,
Reguiatory approval may be defayed or may The Group is taking Independent advice on reimbursement codes and
not be obtained depending on the results of commercalisation strategy.

the studies.

Data protduced may not be sufficent to support
rofiout. of the application via a clinical service
faboratory (CLIA Laboratory).

Appropriate third-party payer reimbursement
codes may be delaved or may pot be obtained
thereby limiting commerdal uptake of the
apgplication.

Vested and competing Interests may impeda
market acceptarce for either a laboratory

developed test or a regulated device.
Com petitive There are numerous competitive groups The Group manages its product development, IP position, accelerates
i seeking to develop ahernative cancer product launch and monitors customer needs and competitors internaty,
position diagnostic products in direct competition with its Scientific Advisory Board (SAB), through its relationships with
(other CTC technoiogles) and indirect key opinion feaders (KOLS), customers and prospective customers,
competition {other methods, for example, and through attendance at confererces.

ctDINA analysis). It is possible at any time that

a competing technology which out-performs The Directors befeve that the patented Parsortix technology has the ¢ al

A 10 be rmore simple, effective and affordable than competing technologies,
Parsoru_xnuyenterthamarket.&ml The Group has d pedia i <o hich puts tin
cornpetitors have greater resources which o w0 i .
may allow therm to deploy com 2] tactics strong posiion for priding and it Is antibody independent; 2llowing for a range
wiich restrict the Grou of cancers to be analysed that other CTC systems may not be able to handle.

P CTCs are the dosest solution to a tissue biopsy allowing all types of analysis
10 e undertaken and & differentiated fror ctDNA analysis,

The Group strangthened its competitve position through the acquisition
of the HyCEAD Ziplex technology as used in the ovarian cancer studies.
This further differentiates the Group and enbances the ability of the Group
o offer sample-to-answer sohstions.
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Risk Description

Mitigation

The Group is investing significantly in R8O,
dinical stydies, FDA/regulatory studies, product
development and product marketing for
research use sales and consequently is loss
rmaking and utilising cash reserves to support
operational activites. The commencement

of material revenuss is difficult to predict as

1) the Group is launching a new product

in an emerging market and suitable dinical
applications need to be identified, have successful
clinical studies completed, achieve regulatory
approwvals and achieve market acceptance, and
2) the Growp needs FDA, clearance to boost
research use sales and in particufar to pharma
in drug trials. Operating kosses are antikipated
to continue for some time.

Financial

In the event that new funds are required there
can be no guarantee that these will be avallable
on acceptable terms, at the quantum required,
or at alt, which could affect the abllity to
commercialise the tachnology and may require
operations to be scaled back, delayed or even
affect the ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group incurs significant costs in US and
Camadian Dollars and is exposed to US and
Canadian Dellar exchange rates which it i
unable to cortrol. The Group also has aritical
Buropean supplers and incurs costs in Euros and
is exposed to Euro exchange rates which it is
unable to control

Brexit in December 2020, or at such later
date to be agreed and the potential impact of
COVID-19, may have an effect on the Group
operations. Exchange rates may be adversely
affected. With the UK status as a “Third
Country”, the movement of goods between
ANGLE and European customers and within
ANGLE's Furopean supply chain may be
adversely affected.

The Board undertakes careful planning, managernent of expenditure and
rolling cash flow forecasting, has a strong focus on milestone and performance
delivery and avoids long-term supplier contracts where it can.

The research use market offers the potential for earfier revenues and sales have
been initiated In this area.

The Group Is pursuing development of a laboratory service-based offer for
research use sales to the Pharmaceutical sector praviding CTC capture and
analysis services that would support the use of CTC derived informaticn in
drug development studies, pre-clinical and dinical drug trials.

The Group is working with KOLs, SAB members and specialist consultants
to identify suitable dirical applications which offer significant revenue potential
either as a lab developed test or FDA cleared product. Ciinical applications
need 1 meet key criteria and the Group is prograssing its dlinical application
in ovarian cancer.

The Board maimtains close shareholder relations, high standards of corporate
governance and explores different sources of funding induding potential
partners, The Graup has successfully raised funds on several occasions In

the past

The Group monitors its QTency exposures on an ongoing basis. The Group
is building US and European sales to provide a natural hedge.

The Group holds a modest finished goods inventory, held in multiple locations
to help mitigate ary COVID-19 and Brexit related supply chain problems.

The Group's success depends in part on its
intellectual property (IP) in order that it can
stop others from exploiting its imventions. There
is a risk that patent pending appiications will not
be issued. lt is possible that competitors may
infringe this IP or atherwise challenge its validity,
which may result In uncertainty, Htigation costs
and/or lass of eamings,

Intellectual
property

The Group invests significantly in its IP, employs experienced patent agents and
protects its IP with confidentiality agreements, patents and patent applications
in order to reduce the risks aver their validity and enforceability. The Group has
aleo undertaken freedom-to-operate searches.

The Group had 24 granted patents protecting the Parsortix system at the
reporting date in the USA, Europe, Australia, Canada, China, Indi, Japan and
Mexico, with athers In progress, extending patent coverage out to 2034,

ANGLE ple Annual Report and Accounts
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continued

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Manufacturing

As predsion equipment. it is extremely
important that manufacturing is of a consistent
and extrernely high quality to ensure that
instruments and cassettes operate as specified
and produce consistent results and meet the
necessary manufacturing tolerances specified.

Product lead times need to be appropriate

for timely delivery whilst mairtaining product
quality. The Group is dependent on three key
singfe source suppliers. Problems at cutsourced
manufacturers and thelr suppliers could lead
to disruption in supplies, delays, product
inconsistency and product failure.

We anticipate the COMID-19 pandemic

may Impatt our supply chains. These events
may result in increased lead times, product
costs, duties and taxes and may require a
reconfiguration of supply chalns with associated
knock-on time and cost impacts,

The Group has outsourced manufacturing to spedialst organisations that can
manufacture the cassettes at the required tolerances, can assemble instruments
and have capacity for scale-up of production. Irvestment has been made in
spedialist moukding tools and velidated processes to help achieve the highest
standards. Key supphers are 15O 134852014 certifiad and subject to angoing
audit by the Group. Where possible, dasigns use standard comnponents and any
romponents on long lead times are hekd in Inventory, Designs are subject to
continuous improvement to help eliminate issues as they arise,

To manage the risk of loss or disruption of supply (eg. from COVID-19 and
Brexit), safety inventory levels have been established, (held at mutipte locations}
of critical cormponents and also finished product, thereby enabling the Group
to continue to supply for a finite period whilst manufacturing capability and/or
supply lines are restored. Dual sourcing of product from key suppliers is actively
being pursued but it is unikely that this will be fuffy achievabie in the shortterm.

Product manufacture Is subject to good manufecturing practice and regulatory
contro! and oversight. The Group also has product liabiity insurance.

Market
acceptance

Success depends an both dinicl and heatth
economic acceptance of the Group's products.
Studles are required to demonstrate the
utdity of dintcal applications and there isa risk
that the data rmay be weak, inconclusie or
negative. The medical diagnostics market is
Conservative by nature, CTCS are an emerging
technology, customers may be slow to adopt
new groducts, vested interests may impede
market penetration and products may not
achieve commertdal success. The Group may
not be able 1o sell ks products profitably if
refmbursernent by third-party payers is imited
or unavaitable. The Group may be subject to
price imits on reimbursement of products
which are outside its control, negatively
impacting revenues.

Although relatively modest, the research use slss market to leading translational
researchers i a good markst in its own right and will help gerverate additional data
on utiity, new uses and dinical applcations as well as generating peer-reviewed
publications.

The Group undertakes in-house RRD and works with partners and KOLs to

act as reference customers, to obtain data refating to dirical applications ank the
efficacy, safety and quality of the product. it menitors indusiry developments and
custormer needs through its interaction with customers and prospects, attendance
at ¢onferences and through the Group $AB and KOLs.

The Group is pursuing a lsboratory servicesbased offer for research use sales

1o the Pharmaceutical sector provding CTC capture and analysis services that
would support the use of CTC derived information in drug development studies,
pre-dinical and dinical drug trials. This will aim to promote the wider wse of the
Parsortix system and assocated technology in the development of drugs and
treatrment protocols, which may ultimately lead to the establishrment of Parsortix
as 3 companion diagnastic for partioular therapies in the oncology space.

Clinical studies are set up to generate chnical data and analysis for aceurate and
complete submissions 10 secure regulatory appraval, Health econormic studies,
advocacy and other activities will be undertaken at the appropriate tme.

The Group is working with KOLs, SAB members induding specisist consuitants to
identfy suitable dinical apphcations which offer significant revenue potental either
a3 3 lab developed test or DA deared product. Chnical applications need 1o meet
key criteria and the Group is progressing #s dinial application in ovarian cancer.
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Risk Description Mitigation
Operational In order for the Group to operate effectively The Group has a disaster recovery and business continuity plan to ensure
the infrastructure needs to be robust, efficient a rapid response in an effective and managed way 1o a variety of situations.
and scalable. This plan has been deployed in the cumrent COVID-19 pandemic due to its
impact aaross the entire operations of the business and has allowed a rapid
;jwnm;:z g[“:;;f::g:g;u‘d and effective response, ensuring a practical level of continuity of Group
or criical equi ¢ or donor or patient operations, despite ongoing restrictions across the worlkd.
enrclment, which could lead to an inability to Business critical systerns are doud-based faciktating remote working and back
undertake development work {e.g. analytical up mechanisrms are also regularly tested.
N ; b )
smmfjﬂ for FD)A ¢ e or dincal studies Staff have laptops and ongoing IT training. Staff can work remotely if required,
f ) although lsboratory and engineering staff are limited in the amount of work
Cyber-crime is increasing In sophistication, they can undertake remotely.
consequences and Inciderce, with risks including . . X .
virus and makware infection, unauthorised access Critical equiprnent has service and maintenance contracts.
and fraud. The Group uses expert [T firms to ensure it operates with appropriate cyber
dafences. There is daily offsite badk-up for rapid recovery from a problem.
The back-up s regutarly tested,
Pandemic/ Expasure to a pandemi, such as COVID-19, The Group has a disaster recovery and business continuity plan that enables
id . or an epidemic that directly or indirectly teads the rapid establishment and deployment of a Leadership Tearn (LT} to assess
epidemic to disruption of the Group’s operations in and manage disruptions to operations and task sub-teams with specific actions.

partiauiar to laboratary-based operations and
delays to clinical shudkes.

It is the LT's responsibility to ensure the Group compies with all laws and
suidance issued by Governments at any time. This may result in the Group's
offices and/or laboratories being tempararily ckosed or operated on a

It is the LT's responsibiity to ensure management practices keep staff safe
and healthy and produce updated or new procedures as required. Staff are
transitioned where appropriate to working from home and with unnecessary
travel avoided. Staff umable to work fram home are transitioned where
appropriate to spht-shift working to assist social distancing and with the use
of PPE, hygiene and enhanced procedures as appropriate {o rmanage the
work environment.

The LT wil review the impact of Government Laws and Guidefines and how
they impact climical and analytical studies, Whike the Group may be able to
mitigate certain aspects of any Government Laws and Guldelines by enhancing
or introduding new procedures, in certain situations studies may need 1o be
temporanily paused in onder ta meet such Government Laws and Guidedines
andd can only be restarted once the Government Laws and Guidelines are
updated and relaxed This may include restrictions on the collection of patient
samples needed for dinical studies and/cr healthy volunteer blood samples
needed for analytical studies.

The LT will aiso review customer needs in the context of the pandemic.
Ways of working are being adapted to provide virtual suppart to customers.
The existing customer base is predominantly leading translational researchers
based at hospitals and universities and consequently Government Laws and
Guidelines may result in their operations tempotarily being ceased, which
rmeans evaluations and ongoing reseanch work mey also be paused and sales
reduced signifiantly until Government Laws and Guidelines are eased.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

continued

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Pandemic/
epidemic
continued

The LT will review supply chain requirements. Close contact will be maintained
with key suppliers to ensure they are able to provide services and goods in

a relatively normal fashion, afthough nating they may have to modify their

ways of working. The Group aready holds significant levels of certain critical
inventories to mitlgate ary potential supply <hain problems and to <Jate has not
experienced any significant supply chain issues. Other supplies may be ordered
10 ensure the Group has a buffer stock and can continue operations.

The Group seeks 1o malntain a reasonable cash balance to mitigate against the
need to raise funding in potentially adverse market conditions. Discretionary
andfor non-mission critical expenditure can be deferred or reduced where
necessary to conserve cash unti the environment is more certain. The Group
may utilise Government support schemes where appropriate.

Regulation
and quality
assurance

The Group operates In a highly regulated
industry and needs to meet recognised quality
assurance standands that are subject to third-
party audit

The Group must cormply with a broad renge
of regulations relating to the development,
approval, manufacturing and marketing of its
products and is subject to regulatory inspection.
There is 3 risk that a regulatory audit wil find
problems that could have severe consequences
on the Group's ability to sell products it the
relevant country, lead to a loss of marketing
authorisation, a loss of reputation, a loss of
custormers, recali or remediation costs as well
as enforcement action and sanctions from

a regulator.

Major success with the cancer diagnostic
product (and other products] will require
regulatory authorisation for clinical use from
various regulatory authorities which will require
data from studies relating to the. efficacy, safety
and effectiveness of the product. Regufatory
regimes are complex and dynamic and it can be
difficult to predict their exact requirements, 5o
authorisations may be delayed and akeratons
to the regulations may also result in delays.

Ifit proves difficult to achieve authorisations,
major revenues may be delayed or without
avthorisation may not be achievable,

CE Mark regulatory authorisation has been achieved in Europe for the indicated
chinical use. FDA regulatory dearance is in progress in the United States.
Authorisations will be sought in other territaries in due course.

Tre Group conducts its operations within 15O 13485:2016 quality systern and
continues to Tnvest in s systems and people. The quality system is subject to
annual Notified Body audit (BSt). The Group uses extermnal spedalist resources
(regulatory, design, manufacturing ete) as required.

The Graup employs an experienced dinical shidios director to design and
develop clinical study programmes that will meet international regulatory
requirements as appropriate.

The Growp is currently responding to significant changes in the European
regulatory ervironment driven by the release of the 1ISO 13485:2016 standard
to which we have already transitioned and the new In Vitro Ciagnostic Device
Regulation {IVOR}, which will replace the current IVD Directive in 2022,

The Group is confident that compliance with the new WD requirements

c2n be successtully achieved,

The current CE Mark regime for VD devices is based upon a European
Regulation which has been implemented in the UK. How this regulation wil
evolve after Bresit and what the impact on the Group wil be Is not dear at this
time owing to the uncertainty of the Brexit process. The Group's UK based
Notifled Bedy 851 has put in place contingency measures such that furopean
MOR compliance certificates and Quality Systern certificates can continue to

be issued from within Europe and hence CE Mark applied. The UK government
has alse introduced outline UKCA marking guidance in the event of a no-deal
Brexit scenario,
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Risk

Description

Mitigation

Research and
development

The Group undertakes significant research

and development activity with the aim of
launching improved and new products and
services, but there remain consliderable technical
risks, which may result in delays, increased costs
or ultimately failure.

The Group uses skiled staff and third-party experts in various fields from
science and product design to engineering and manufaciuring. There is good
knowledge and experience within the Group and third-party experts in
place with established relationships. The nature of medical devices means
that aithough development can be challenging, there should generally be

a technical solution, provided sufficient resources and exqpertise are applied
to the problem. As developrments and enhancements are generally to
exdisting products there is somewhat less risk than developing a completety
rew product.

Staff, key
suppliers and
key partners

The Group's future success is dependent on

its management tearn and staff and there is

the risk of loss of key personnel, With complex
and aritical development projects, afignment

of business and project objectives, good project
planning and clear staff focus are required.

The Group also outsources certain aspects
of product development, regulatory advice
and manufacturing and is heavily dependent
on these key suppliers.

The Group is also heavily dependent on its

dinica! study partners who are responsible

for patient enrolment and on occasion core
hboratory work,

The Group manages staff requirements closely, invests in skils development
and new staff and has staff incertive schemes for retention and maotiation.
Using our competerky framework, staff are assessed regularly to ensure
they develop and maintain the skills needed for high performance. Individua!
competencies and skills are aligned with business objectives and requirernents
ard personal development goals.

Suppliers, clirical study partners and KOLS are carefully chosen and

actively managed.

VWritten agreements are in place for af key suppliers in line with Quality
System requirements and compliance assured through regular auditing.
Work with collaborators is controlled using contracts and clinical study
protecals where appropriate. Clinical study protocols are generally subject
to institutlonal sdentific and ethics approval prior to study commencement.

ANGLE pic Apnual Report and Accounts
For the sight menths ended 37 December 2019
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Strategic Report

Financial Review

The Group has a strong cash position

An over-subscribed placing during
the period increased cash resources
substantially and has allowed the
Group to progress its key studies.

lan F Griffiths
Fnance Director

Financial Highlights

£0.6 miillion at 76%

Research use revenues for the eight

month pericd of £0.6 milion (year ended
30 April 2019: £0.7 miillior) at a gross profit
margin of 76% (2019: 77%)

£8.2 million

Planned expenditure an Parsortix systarn
of £8.2 million {year ended 30 April 201%:
£11.6 miffon)

£6.2 miillion

Loss from continuing operations of £6.2 million
(rear ended 30 April 201%: loss £8.9 millian)

£18.0 million

Fundraise of £18.0 milkon {£16.9 milkon
net of expenses) in July 2019

£18.8 miillion

Cash balance at 31 December 2019
£18.8 million (30 Apri! 2019: £11.0 milfan)

30

The Group has continued to make
substantial investment in the FDA
analytical and dinical studies, the
ovarian cancer pefvic mass triage
clinical application studies, new
product development and sales
and marketing for research use
sales to advance and drive the
development and adoption of the
Parsortix cell separation system.

Change in accounting reference date
and comparative numbers

In January 2020, the Group changed its accotnting
reference date from 30 April to 31 December. As
2 corsequence, thera is an eight month reporting
periad from t May 2019 to 31 Decernber 2019.

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Incorme

Revenues for the eight month period were £0.6
milion (year ended 30 Aprit 201%: £0.7 million) with
& gross profit margin of 76% (year ended 30 April
201%: 77%). Research use sales have been made 1o
muliple customers of both Parsortix instrumenits
(includling an annually renewable service-basad
warranty) and cassettes {a cne-time use consumable).
As the installed base of instruments builds we

are séeing recurTing reveriues from cassette sakes
and service-based warranty renewals increase.

The sales pipeline is developing In the research

use market and our sales team continues 1o focus
on supporting customers as they evaluate Parsortbe
in their aboratory procedures, However, evaluations
have taken longer to dose than expected, generally
because of mitations i downstrearn analytical
technigues outside the Parsortix system, and

the grant funding environment for our research
customers remains very chaifenging.

Grant incorne for the eight manth period of

0.1 milion {year ended 30 Aprd 201%: £6:2 millior)
was recognised in the period. This primarily refates to
a collaboration with Philips on a €6.3 milion Horizon
2020 £U grant of which ANGLE will raceive £04m
over four years.

Pianned investmert in studies to develop and validate
the dinicel application and commerdial use of the
Parsortix system resulted in operating costs for the
elghl et peripd of £8.2 million (e Anced

30 April 2019: £11.6 milliory). Expenditure was also
made on Intangible assets jnchuding patents) and
Property, plant and equipmernt and this is discussed
in the Consolidated Statement of Finandal Position
section below.

This plannied expenditure indudes invesiment of
£6.0 milion (year ended 30 April 2019: £8.0 mifion}
in research and development, in partcular the FDA
analytical and clinical studies, the ovarian cancer clinical
application, where significant work was undertaken
on the optimisation of the test, iIn-house work and
ongoing work with KOLs on pilot studies and other
potential uses of the system as well as new product.
development, patent prosecution and new patent
grants, Fundamental aspects of the FDA anatytical
and dlinical studies were successhully completad in
the period with the dinical studies completing
enrolment from four leading LIS cancer centres

and announcement that the prirnary and secondary
objectives had been met. Expenditure includes

sales and marketing costs assodiated with product
promotion and attendance at conferences for
marketing purposes. Corporate costs induding
costs associated with heing a listed company

were In line with plans.

ANGLE ple Annuzl Report and Accounts
For the sight month period ended 31 Decamber 2019



Strategic Report

The adoption of IFRS 16 Leases resulted in the
capitalisation of right-of-use assets represented by
our leased office and laboratory premises and has
increased the depreciation charge and reduced the
leasing cost by £0.2 milkion, both presented within
operating costs, and increased finance costs by
£0.1 milion.

The Group made a loss before tax for the eight
month period of £2.7 miflion {year ended 30 April
2019: loss £10:9 milion). The significant research
and development expenditure resulted in research
and development tax credits of £1.5 million for the
eight month period {year ended 30 Aprl 2015
£1.% milion). The Group made a loss after tax of
£6.2 milfion for the eight month period (year ended
30 April 2019: £89 million) resufting in a basic and
diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the
parent of 382 pence for the eight month period
(vear ended 30 April 2019 656 pence).

Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

Intangible assets increased to £7.7 million (30 April
2019: £6.8 millior). Parsortix intellectual property and
product t expenditure of £1.1 million
(30 April 2019: £1.7 milion) was capitalised during
the pericd in accordance with LAS 38 Intangble
Assets, increasing the value of the intangible assets.
Amartisation and impalrment costs of £0.2 millien
(30 April 2019: £05 millior) reduced the carrying
value of the intangible assets.

Property, plant and equipment increased to

£1.5 million (30 Apeil 2019: £1.3 million) with the
expansion of prernises and the addition of some key
itemns of laboratory equipment. The prioe year saw
an increase in the bank of Parsortix instruments used
far testing and dinleal and regulatory study sites.

ANGLE ple Annual Report and Agcounts
For the eight months ended 31 Dacember 2019

The adoption of IFRS 16 Leases resulted inthe
capitalisation of right-of-use assets represented by cur
{eased office and laboratory premises of £1.5 milion
(net). A corresponding lease Eability has been created.
The present vahie of the future lease payments at

31 December 2019 is £1.6 milion,

Inventories of £0.8 milion (30 Aprit 201%: £1.0 milior)
reflect the inventory required for studies fn-house,
KOLs and dinical study sites), in building inventery
levels for research use sales prospects where systems
are placed out for an initial evaluation period prior
to sale and as a Brexdt risk mitigation strategy. As

the Group relies on a number of single-source key
suppliers then higher levels are maintained than
would otherwise be the case.

The Trade and other receivables balance is lower
than the prior period at £0.6 milliors (30 April 2019:
£0.9 million), a reflection of the impact of the change
in reporting date on the timing of payments including
the VAT and HST returns,

The tax receivatle balance of £3.4 milion (year
ended 30 Aprit 2019: £1.9 million) refiects the fact
that research and development expenditure is digible
for research and development fax credits. The tax
credit for the year to 30 April 2019 was received

in April 2020,

The Trade and other payables balance of £2.4 million
(30 April 2019 £3.7 milion} includes £0.5 miiion
(30 April 2019 £0.% miillion) in relation to the FDA
dinical studies. No banus payments were awarded
for the repoxting period or payable at 31 Decernber
2019 due to the potential impact and associated
uncertainties of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
desire of the Company to conserve cash (30 April
2019: £09 millior.

Cash
The Group ended the period with a cash balance
aof £188 milion (30 April 2019: £11.0 milion).

The Company compileted 2 fundraise of £16.9 million
net of expenses during the period. The Company was
pleased with the continued support from our major
institutional investors and existing and new investors.

Summary

The Group is carefully executing its strategy so that
business activities are in line with the avallable and
anticipated cash resources. Good progress has been
rnade against key milestones. The immediate priorities
are completing the studies to support FOA dearance
In metastatic breast cancer in the US, progressing
our optimised cvarian cancer application with dinical
studies to support the US and European launch

of our first dinical application in ovarian cancer,
building research use sales, undertaking key product
development activities and for the first time, the
establishment of a clinital laboratory as an aceelerator
and demonstrator. Now that the COVID-19 lock
down has relaxed so that blood samples can again be
collected, ANGLE is progressing all of these milestones.

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future 25 detailed in
Note 1.4 to the Fnancial Staternents,

/ch\ Gr\nmt!

tan F Griffiths
Finance Director
24 June 2020
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Corporate Responsibility Report
Environmental, Social and Governance

Envirommenc

Liquid Social
biapry {eemmunicy)

Governance

Liquid biopsy

Qur Parsortix syster captures dreulating umour
celis (CTCs), which are shed from a tumour and
cuse cancer metastasis, and harvests them for
anafysis. This is known as iquid biopsy and

is fundamentally about improving patient
outcomes and reducing healtheare costs.

The Group seeks to operate with high standards
of corporate responsibility in its business actiities,
At ANGLE we endeavour 1o rinimise olr
impact on the enviranment, make a significant
positive social contribution and benefit our
wider community while operating high standards
of corporate governance,

As our business grows we are pladng
increasing emphasis on Environmental, Social
and Governarice (ESG] aspects and developing
and reporting on our polices and actions.
Government lock downs in response to
COVID-19 ware enacted subsequent to the
period end impacting our operating procedures.
These resulted in positive environmental effects
{working from home more, less business travel
etc) but at the expense of wide ranging negative
sochl impacts {delayed or cancelled cancer
diagnosis and treatment), which liquid biopsy
could help mitigate. Ve will be reporting on
this next year

32

Environment

As a technology-based Group with most
staff In a small number of locations we beli

The Group seeks to restrict business travel
y busi wravel and promotes

our environmental footprint is small.
Nevertheless we seek to minimise the Group's
impact on the environment and o improve

our operational effidency.

Qur andicrds also take their sustainabliity
responsibifities seriously, for example, information
can be found on our head office Jocation at
wwwisurreyacukfsustainablityfestates-and-
cpesations.

Qur landlords offer waste management services
and seek o dvert landf and recpile a5 much a5
possite. The Group undertakes some additional
recycling with spedalist suppliers assodated with
old electrical equipment, coffee pods et and uses
spedalist hazardous waste disposal experts for
laboratory waste,

All of our offices now use LED lights with

a programme of updates to tungsten and some
halogen Eghting since 2016 and compieting

this year. As well as providing a better working
emviranment far stff, the most recent update is
forecast to praduce a 64% reduction in our
annual consumption of energy for fighting
purposes. Ve also use lighting sensors so that
kghts are automatically tuned off for areas not
in use. We have instatled energy saving internst
enabled thermostats, and use prograrmmed
heating controls seeking to optimise temperatures
dependent an whether pecple are present.

We aim to buy higher rated energy effident

equinment for cur labs. Ve use 100% renewable
energy at our two main sites with hydro-electricty

in Toronta. The Group uses plumbed water
coolers which reduces the consumption of single-
use plastic bottles, and plumbed bofing water taps
which are mare energy efficdent than kettles.

The Graup also uses indoor plants to help dean
the air although benefits are more sodal in mature.

o
the use of video conferendng. The Group
promotes home and flexible working where
feasible to reduce overall travel and travel during
rush hous: A number of our employees use
car-pooling and we also promote the use of the
eyde-to-work scheme.

Our Parsortic system uses a cassette that takes
advantage of the size and deformability of CTCs
with the instrument using pressure to harvest the
calls rather than a chernical approach with higher
level of antibody reagents and other chernicals that
many of our competitors use. WhilsL uur cassettes
are single use to meet medical requirsments, we
airn to use as many materials as possible that can
be recycled

Parsortix-based tests have the potential to
significantly reduce patiant travel and the
consumption of heatthcare resources. Blood can
be drawn locally by a phlebotormist and shipped
{with other goods} rather than an individual
having to drive to a dinic for a tissue blopsy

and ail that may entail in terms of using hospital
resources - fadlities, surgeon, anaesthetist, nurses,
etc, A negative liquid biopsy result, such as with
our Ovarian Cancer Pelvic Mass Triage test, may
aflow local surgery with a simplified procedure
rather than having to travel to & major Gancer
centre for surgery.

ANGLE pic Annual Report and Accaunts
For the eight month perlod ended 31 Decembar 2019
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Social (community)

Cancer has a major negative sodal impact - an
estimated one in two people born after 1960 in
the UK wil be diagnosed with cancer during thelr
lifetime. Each patient’s cancer Is different and highly
complex and their cancer changes over time.
Effective treatment requires personalised care.
The existing standard of care & a solid tissue biopsy
which s invashe can have medical cormnplications
and as described above uses a lot of healthare
resources and & expensive, Further it is difficult

10 repeat 5o missing the dynamic nature of cancer
response o treatment,

ANGLE beleves its Parsortix liquid blopsy system
has the potential to significantly improve care
for cancer patlents as it is noh-invasive and
repeatable as well as redudng the costs and
rescurces invobved in cancer healtheare.

The Directors are committed o ensuring high
standards of health and safety for employees
and visitors. The Group complies with all
applicable laws and regulations wherever it
operates angd holds all of the llcences necessary
0 operate its business, induding ethics approvals
for blood donors and patient enrolments.

The Group has a strong focus on complying
with relevant quality and other standards,
‘Wiz also have anti-bribery; antti-corruption and
anttmeney kundering polices and procedures,

AMNGLE ple Annual Report and Accounts
For the elght months ended 31 December 2019

The Guildford laboratory uses heafthy volunteer
binod donors to enable it to test multiple aspecis
of the Parsortix system and also to perform
analytical studies for its dinical applications, We
are very grateful for the blood donors who are
predominandy from the lacal vicinity.

The Group works with a number of charitable
research organisations, such as Cancer Research
UK, and has donated preducts and funded
medical research in pursuit of our mission.
We have alsa worked with each of the local
Universities near our faclities in Guildford,
Toranto and Philadelphia

The Diractors recognise the benefits of diversity
in the workforee. Appointments are based on
selecting the best candidates regardless of their
age, gender, sexuafity, disability and marital status
etc for the rofe. We recognise that a diverse
workforce provides a range of perspectives that
<an help innovation and business success, and in
particular refers the reader to QUA Prindple 8.
The Group works with Universities te support
scence and business programmes and regularly
employs students on work placements. A number
of staff are also enrolled on business related

training programimes.

Governance

The Board i« committed to high standards
of corporate governanee and adheres to the
Quoted Companies Allarce {(QCA) Corporate
Govermance Code for small and mid-size quoted
companies (the “QCA Code’}

Report on pages 41 to 48 sets outhow the Board
has approached #s duty under Section 172in onder
to meet these requiremerts, and in particular
refers the reader to QUCA Principle 2 and
Principle 3. The Corporate Governance Report
@ also be found on the Company's website
wwwangieplccom.

Section 172 Statement

In accordance with Section 172 of the
Comparies Act 2006, the Directors recognise the
importance of our wider stakeholders to
the sustainability of our business. The Directars
behave and carry out their activities to pramote
the long-tarm suceess of the Group for

the benefit of the Compary's shareholders,
emplayess, partners, austomers, suppliers and
other stakeholders such as regulatory authorities.
The Group engages with stakehotdars to reflact
thelr insights and views when making decisions
on strategy, delivering operational effectiveness,
driving initiatives and delivering outeomes.

The culture and values promoted by the
Directors areate a focus across the Group on
observing and maintaining high standards of
regulatory compliance, quality cantrol and
business conduct whilst promoting the long-
term success of the Company. The impact of
the Group's operations on the emdronment and
community and how these enhance sodal value
are desaribed above

The Strategic Repart on pages 02 to 33 i approved
on behalf of the Board by

/{6/\\ (,@W&

lan F Griffichs
Finance Director
24 Jure 2020
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Board of Directors

Experienced team delivering performance

Garth R Selvey Andrew D W Newland lan F Griffiths
Chalrman Chief Execytive Finance Director
Appainted Appointed Appointed
September 2006 March 2G04 March 2004

Skills and experience

Garth Selvey has a BSc in Physics and Electronic
Engineering from the University of Manchester and
has spent over 36 years in the computer industry
with technical, product, sales and marketing roles,

He became Managing Diractor of TIS Applications
ktd in 1984 and a mmain board Director of TIS

l2d prior to its acquisition by Misys in 1989, He
organsed the managemeant buyout of the sodial
housing division af Misys and became Group Chief
Executive of Comino Group plc when it fleated
on AlM in 1997. Comino moved to a full listing in
1599 where he remained until its sucressful public
sale to Civica pic in February 2006.

Garth joined ANGLE as a Non-executive Director
In September 2006 and became Chairman in
September 2007,

Brings to the Board
Extencive experience of the fisted sector and
leading companies.
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Skills and experience

Andrew Newiand is Chief Executive of ANGLE

ple He has an MA in Engineering Science from the
University of Cambridge and is a qualified Chartered
Accountant. He has 19 years of medical diagnostics
experience and has speciaiised in the liquid biopsy
space for the last ten years.

He has led the development of technology-based
businesses based on strong intellectual property
for over 29 years and for the tast 19 years he

has been Chairman or on the Board of several
specialist medical technology companies, After
working with the engineering conglomerate Tl

ple, e worked for KPMG from 1982 1o 1994,
from 1985 to 1987 he was basedinthe USas a
manager providing corporate finance and business
advice to high technology firms in the area around
Route 128, Boston, Massachusetts. During this
time, he led KPMG's involvernent in the IPO of
the medical technology company Cardio Cata inc.
From 1987 to 1994 he worked for KPMG in the
UK with responsibility for establishing KPMG's UK
and European High Technology Practices and Migh
Technology Consulting Group.

Andrew founded ANGLE [n 1994. [y 1939, Andrew
fed the team that founded the rmedical diagnostic
company Acolyte Blomedica. Acolyte was the first
ever spin-out of the Defence Science and Technology
taboratary {Dstl) Porton Down, which specialised
in rapid diagnosks of MRASA, the ‘hospital super-bug’.
Andrew chaired the company for several years and
successfully led the companty through three major
rounds of venture capltal investment. Andrew also
founded Provexs, the first ever spin-out of Rowett
Institze, Europe’s leading nutrition research institute,
Andrew chaired the Board of Provexis, a spedalist
nutracettical company with a heart-health product,
through 1o its successiul flotation in 2005,

Brings to the Board

Over 29 years' experience of setting up, leading and
buikiing technology-based businssses, over 19 years
leading specialist medtech businesses, and over ten
years in the liquid biopsy space.

Skills and experience

lan Griffiths is the Finance Director of ANGLE plc
He has specialised in technology commerdialisation
for over 30 years and is an expert on the development
and growth of new tedhnology-based businesses.
tar has 2 BS¢ in Mathematcs with Management
Applications from Brunel University and is qualifled
as a chartered accountant. For seven years he
warked for KPMG, initially in accountancy with a
spedial work focus, then In managemnent consulting
within KPMG's High Technology Consutting Group
where he spedialised in financial modeling, business
plannirig, corporate finance, market development
and strategy work,

lan joined ANGLE in 1995, As well a8 leading the
finance function at ANGLE ple, he has been dosely
invotved with the development and delivery of the
former LUK, US and Middle East Consulting and
Management services businesses and in developing
new Ventures, both thind-party and ANGLE's own.
Iany has been heavily involved In the start-up phase
and also the ongoing development of ANGLE's own
ventures by working closely with rmanagerment on
business plans, financial and operational managermernt,
fundralsing and commercial aspects, including both
medicat and physical sdences companies, lan ted

the financial aspects of ANGLE pk listing on the
Alternative Investment Market. He is currently leading
the financia) development of ANGLE's major medical
diagnostic business Parsortix

Brings to the Board

Qver 30 years of experience in finance and
technology-based businesses, and over ten years
in tha liquid biopsy space.

ANGLE pic Annual Report and Accounts
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Brian Howlett
Non-executive Director and
Senior Independent Director

Committees key

~

Dr. Jan Groen
Non-executive Director

Appointed
January 2013

Skilis and experience

Brian Howlett has a wealth of international
experience as a medtech leader which he i
currently applying in a Non-executive/Chairman
capadity for neuro-endovascular compary Oxford
Endovascular Ltd, and medical device coating and
surface modification company Accentus Medical Litd,
as welf as ANGLE ple. Brian was formerly CEO of
Lombard Medical Technologies PLC, an AIM listed
company specialising in stents for abdominal aortic
aneurysms from 2005 to 2009. During his tenure
significant capital was ralsed to fund the devalopment
of operations to commercialise the Aorfix stant graft
towards regulatory approvak and growing revenues
in EU, USA, Russia and Brazil.

Corporate experience incudes six years as UK
Country Leader of Boston Sdentific Ltd, between
1999 and 2005, during which tme major medical
devices such as the TAXUS drug eluting stent were
launched driving sales and profits to the point where
the UK and lreland subsidiary became one of the
leading revenue contributors to the corporation’s
Eurcpean operations. Between 1987 and 1999,
Brian was Managing Director of the UK sales and
manufacturing subsidiary of Cobe [aboratories

Inc. Inv addition, Brian spent aimost 20 years in the
pharmacestical industry, gaining strong sales and
marketing experience through a number of senior
management positions In UK, Scandinavia and the
Benelux rmarkets within Fisons plc

Brings to the Board
Extensive commerdial operations experience
of the medrech sector:

ANGLE ple Annual Report and Accounts
Far the eight menths ended 3% December 2019

Appointed
MNovember 2018

Skills and experience

Dr Jan Groen is cumently the Chief Exequtive Officer
of Novigenix 5A, an immunoTransariptomics starhup
developing products for early cancer detection and
precision medicine. jan was previously the Chief
Executive Officer of MDxHealth, a Euronext listed
genomic diagnostics company that improves the

lives of patients by redudng dingrostic amblguity in
urclogical cancers. MDxHealth's genomic tests are
setting new standards in prostate and bladder cancer
dfiagnosis, where they have helped over 100,000
patients avoid unnecessary diagnostic pracedures.

Jan's career spans over 25 years in dinical diagnostics
and life scence global markets. Jan was previously the
President and COO of Agendia, respensible for their
United States and European diagnostic operations,
respectively. Jan is co-founder of ViroClinlcs and
DxOrange and has held numerous management and
sciertific positions at Focus Diagnostics, a subsidiary
of Quest Diagnostics, the Erasmus Medical Center,
and Akzo-Ncbel. Jan has had board mandates in
several diagneostic companies. Currently he serves

on the board of SPL Medical in the Netherlands,

Jan helds a PA.D. degree in Medical Microbiclogy from
the Erasmus University Rotterdam, a BSc in Clinical
Laboratory Studies and has published more than

125 papers in international scientific journals in the
field of clinical diagnostics.

Brings to the Board

Expertise in new product development, induding
development and successful commerdalisation of

CE marked and FDA deared diagnostic products
and lab-developed tests in Europe and the USA

Chair of Committee
Member of the Commictee
Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
MNomination Committee
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Scientific Advisory Board

Wealth of experience and expertise

The Scientific Advisory Board
(SAB) is comprised of a group

of individuals that have significant
scientific technical backgrounds in
medical devices, diagnostics and
other areas refated to ANGLFE's
products. SAB members provide
strategic nput, insight and expertise
in the bloed and cancer flelds
and aiso advise the Company on
technical aspects in relation to
platform development, product
development and clinical studies
as well as providing broader
industry input.

Pr. Daniel Danila

Skills and experience

DOr. Danlel Danila is an assistant attending physician

at Memerial Hospita! Cancer Center in New York
Dr. Danila also serves as an assistant with the Weill
Comeli Medical College, Dr, Danile’s primary research
focuses on prostate cancer, Specifically, Dr. Danifa

ks exploring a hypathesis that molecular profiling of
CTCs can be used to assess biological determinants
of the growth of prostate cancer tumeors,

Dr. Danla served as the principal investigator {Pi) for
“Cireulating Tumor Cells as Biomarkers for Patients
with Metastatic Prostate Cancer: Developing Assays
for Androgen Receptor Signaling Pathway!” which
focused on analysing CTCs from patients with
metastatic prostate cancer for molecuar biomarkers
predictive of tumour sensitivity to targeted
teatrnents. Funding for the research was provided
by the Department of Defense Congressionally
Directed Medical Research Frograms, Prostate
Carcer Research Prograrn, Plysician Research
Training Award. Dr. Danila received his MD from
Carol Davila University of Medicine and Pharmacy in
Bucharest, Romania and was a research faflow, intem
and resident at Massachusetts General Hosgpital prior
to joining Memarial Sloan Ketrering Cancer Center
in 2005,

Brings to the SAB expertise in ~ development
and adoption of CTCs as predictive blomarkers 1o
help dinicians select appropriate treatments, prostate
a@ncer and wide network of comacts in the field.

36

Dr. George Hvichia

Prof. Adrian Newland

Skills and experience

Dr. Georgs Hvichia is the original iventor of the
care Parsortix technalogy and played 2 lead role in
ANGLE's Parsortix patents. Dr Hvichia i an expert
in microfluidic technology related 1o cefl and partide
separation and platform integration. Dr. Hyvidha was
the first person to recognise the combined prindiple
of separation fy size and deformabdity of rare celis in
fluids, such as blood, and that microfluidic devices could
be used to zchieve this, even though manufacturing at
the necessary tolerances was not possible at the time.
This core technology yiekls low cost, efficient, single
use and scalable migo-devices for use in the fields

of Liguid Blopsy and Pradsion Medidine.

Dr: Mvichia played a lead rede in advancing the
Parsortix technology by working in the: laboratory
and intreducing mutiple soluticns and innovations.
Drr. Hvichiz abso focused on coliecting and analysing
data from the microfluidic cassette, instrument and
assay development process, resulting in ANGLES first
peer-reviewed publication in the International Jourmal
of Cancer () in fanuary 2016. This publication
made the prestigious list of 10 most popular cancer
publications in recent years, presented at World
Carcer Congress 2018 by renowned publisher Witey
and International journal of Cancer.

Brings to the SAB expertise in — microfluidics
and biochips with ongoing thoughts and advice on
developrnent of the Parsortix system.

Dr. joseph Khoury

Skills and experience

D, foseph Khoury is 2 recognised expertin
diagnostic pathoiogy and has significant experience
in the cytalogicat and marphalogical analysis of
cancer cells as well as molecular diagnostics and
immunophenotyping, Dr. Khoury is a tenured
Professor of Pathology ard Laboratary Medicine

at The University of Texas MD Anderson Cancer
Centter in Mouston, Texas and is the Executive
Director of the MD Anderson Cancer MNetwork for
the Division of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine.
Dr: Khoury Is akso the Diractor of the MD Andersen
Clinisal Immunohistochemistry Laboratory.

Dir: Khoury is a leader in transiationsl research
facused on hematolymphaid neoplasia (a class of
turnours that affect the bloed, bone marrow, and
organs of the immune system). Dr. Khoury has
authored over 210 publications, many in prestigious
peer-review scientific and medical journals, two
textbooks, and several book chapters. He has trained
numerous dinical and research fellows. Or. Khoury
is an active member of the College of American
Pathclogists and has lectured extensively at various
Institutions and conferences globally.

Brings to the SAB expertise in ~ diagnostic
pathology and cytological and morphological analysis

of canear cells.

Skills and experience

Prof. Adrian Newiand (who i not refated to ANGLES
Chief Executive) i Professor of Haematology at
Barts Hezlfth NHS Trust and Queen Mary University
of London. Prof. Newland was alse Director of
Pathology for the Trust and Clinical Director of the
North East London Cancer Metwork urtdl 2018,
Prof, Newland was President of the Royal Colege

of Pathologists frorn 2003 to 2008 and the
International Society of Hematology from 2014

to 2016. Prof. Nawland chaired the Nationa! Blood
Transfusion Committee and was pathology fead for
NHS Landon. Prof. Newland is National Clinical
Advisor In Pathology to NHS Improvement and
Clinical Advisor to the Transforming Cancer Service
Jearn in London. He chairs the National Pathology
implernentation Optimisation Defivery Group.

Prof. Newland weas previously chair of the Diagnastic
Assessment Programme for the Natanal Institute
for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) and of the
MNICE Sifting Group for cancer drugs. Prof. Newdand
has been a member of the Scentific Advisory Panel
of the Institute of Cancer Research from 1995 until
2003 and Chair of the London Canter New Dnugs
Group since 2002 Prof. Newland was a member of
the Naticnal Chernotherapy Implementation Group
until 2018 and a member of the Expert Reference
Group on Cancer Care in Londan, the national
Cancer Cutcomes Advisory Group and the Human
Genome Strategy Group. Prof. Newland is co-chair
of the WHO Strategic Advisary Group of Experts
for inWitro Diagnostic Devices (SAGE-IVD) and
recertly completed the five year review of the 'WHO
Carcer programme. He Is curtently a non-executive
director of the UK Accreditation Service and chairs
their Healthcare Forum,

Brings to the SAB expertise in — haematology,
pathology, cancer diagnostics, accreditation and NICE.
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Dr. James Reuben

Dr. Clive Stanway

Skills and experience

Dr. Reuben is a Professor in the Department

of Hematopathology, Division of PathologyllLab
Madidne at The University of Texas MD Anderson
Cancer Center, Houston, Texas, Or Reubenisa
leading authority and has conducted significant
research on dreulating umour cell subsets, incuding
those with epithelial and mesenchymal phenatypes
and their dinical refevance to minimal residual disease
in breast cancer

Sorme related publications include “Cirgulating tumor
cells, disease progression, and survival in metastatic
breast cancer in the New England Journal of
Medicine™ “Circulating tumor cells are assodated
with increased risk of venous thromboembalism

In metastatk breast cancer patients” in the British
Journal of Cancer; and “Circulating tumaor cells in
metastatic inflammatory breast cancer” published in
the Annals of Oncology. Dr: Reuben received his PhD
in immunology from MeGill University in Mentreal,
Canada and his MBA from University of Houston,
Houston, Texas. Dr. Reuben completed his research
fellowship in the Department of Experimental
Therapeutics at The University of Texas MD
Anderson Cancer Center with Bvan M, Hersh, MD
and Emil | Freireich, MD, as mentors.

Brings to the SAB expertise in — knowladge
and understanding of CTCs, breast cancer and wide
network of contacts in the flekd.

Mr Greg L Shaw

Skills and experience

Mr Shaw s 2 Consuitant Urological Surgeon at
University College Hospital in London and is a dinical
academic with a strong interest in prostate cancer
diagniostics and treatment. Having completed an

M. in prostate cancer at the University of London
investigating circulating tumour celis in prostate
cancer, and subsequently completed four years as a
lecturer at the University of Cambridge, Mr Shaw has
published widely on prostate cancer and is currently
an honorary Associate Professor at University Collage
ard Senior Lecturer at Queen Mary College of the
University of London.

Mr Shaw leads several research programmes focused
on current weaknesses in the way prostate cancer
is treated and is interested in exploring the role
novel biomarkers may play in advancing practice

in these areas, Mr Shaw Is currently chief investigatar
for two NIHR portfolio studies investigating 1) the
effects of refinements to robotic surgery and

2) the use of drugs to prevent progression in men
on active survelliance for prostate cancer: Mr Shaw
is an expert in robotic surgery with a high case
volume, Mr Shaw Is known for his innovative
approach and commitment to quality assurarce,

Brings to the SAB expertise in ~ prostate
cancer diagnostics and treatment.
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Skills and experience

Dr. Clive Stanway is currently an independent

drug discovery and development advisor to several
compantes induding acting as a non-executive
director for GytoSeek Ltd and Atelerix Ltd.

Dr: Starmway was untl 2018 Chief Sdientific Officer
of Cancer Research UK's Commercial Partrerships
which is responsible for the development and
commerchlisation of research innavations.

D Stanway s an expert in @ancer drug discovery
and a key part of his former role was working dosely
with major pharmaceutical partners. Dr. Stanway

has extersive knowledge and experience of cancer
research, detailed understanding of the drug discovery
and development process, and worldwide contacts
with mejor pharma development groups.

Dr. Starway was engaged in raising the sdentific
orofite of Commerial Partnerships with the
pharmaceutical industry; his efforts have led to several
significant partnerships and alliances. Dr. Stanway has
2lso driven imemal Cornmerdial Partnerships projects
addressing cancer immunomodudation bringing
together different technologies and expertise leading
to a compound progressing towards a Phase 1 trial,
The annual research spend of Cancer Research UK

is in the region of £375 mikon and Commercial
Partnerships has annual revenues of approxdmately
£50 miflion. Prior to becoming Chief Scientific Officer
of Commercial Partnerships, Dr. Stanway established
and led the drug discovery and biotherapeutic
discovery activity within Cancer Research UK, which
has been or is now partnered with AstraZeneca,
FORMA Therapeuties, BMS, Artios and Merck KGaA

Brings to the SAB expertise in — cancer
drug discovery and development and major
pharma networks.

Dr. Harold Swerdlow

Skills and experience

Dr. Harokl Swerdiow is currenty Senior Director

of NGS R&D at DINA Electronics (DNAg) in
Landon, His role there involves managing Next-
Generation Sequencing (NGS) technology and
product development for an initial sepsis diagnostic
offering. Dr: Swerdlow is a leading expert in NG5S and
recently served as a tonsultant for both ONI {Oxford
Nanoimaging), 2 super-resolution microscopy
compary, and Nuclera, 2 DNA synthasis start-up
after being Head of NGS Technclogy Devalopment
at LGC Genamics. As VP of Sequercing at the New
York Genome Center (NYGC) from 2014-2017, Dr.
Swerdiow directed the Technology Innovation group
and managed the production and dinical laboratory
fadiities (with about 30 {lumina DNA sequencers).
Prior to NYGC, Dr. Swerdlow was Head of Research
and Development for the Wellcome Trust Sanger
Instifute in Cambridge, UK (2008-2014). In that role,
Dr. Swerdlow directed the R&D deparmment and
heiped build the Sangar institute’s next-generation
DNAsequencing production faclity o one of the
world’s largest.

Previously, Dr. Swerdiow was the Chief Technology
Officer of Dolomite Ltd. a teader in microfluidics and
microfabrication. Prior 10 Dolomite, Dr. Swerdlow
was an inventor of the core tachnology relating to
INGS at Solexa Etd., a company which he joined

in 2000 when it had only three employees. From
then until 2006, as Senior Director of Research,

Dr. Swerdlow helped launch Solexa’s first product,
the Genome Analyzer DINA sequencing platform.
At Solexa, Dr. Swerdiow was responsible for
nstrurent engineering, integration of the next-
generation DINA, sequending system and early
applications work, along with assisting in the
development of manty of the system’s biochemical
components. Or. Swerdlow was a key membar of
the Sendor Maragement team that delivered Solexa's
first genome sequence, an end-to-end proof-of-
principle, Following its NASDAQ listing, Solexa was
acquired by liumina Inc. for US$600 million and
Solexa’s technology became the care of lluminas
world-lgading NGS products.

Brings to the SAB expartise in — next generation
sequencing, genomics and systemn integration.

Prof. Ashok Venkitaraman

Skills and experience

Prof. Ashok Venkitaraman holds the Ursula Zoelner
Professorship of Cancer Research at the University
of Camnbridge, and is Director of the Medical Research
Council's Cancer Cell Unit and Joint Director of the
Medical Research Coundl Hutchisan Cancer Research
Centre Prof Venkiaraman's research has helped to
elucidate the connections between diromosome
instability and the genesis of epithelial cancers.

Prof. Venkitaraman has been instrumental in
establishing the Cambridge Moleculer Therapeutics
Programme, an initiative that links chemists, physicists,
structural biologists, cancer biologists and dinicians

at the University of Cambridge. Prof. Venkitaraman
has been a member of the Sdentific Advisory Boards
of Astex Therapeutics Ltd, Carnbridge Antibody
Technology (AstraZeneca affiliate), Massachusetts
General Hospital Cancer Center and currently chairs
the Scientific Advisory Board of Sentinel Oncology
Ltd. Prof. Venkitaraman has also been a John H Blaffer
Lecturer at M [ Anderson Cancer Center: Prof.
Venkitaraman was elected a Fellow of the Academy
of Medical Sdences, London, in 2001, and a member
of the European Meleculr Biclogy Crganization
{EMBO) European Acadermy, Heidelberg, In 2004

Brings to the SAB expertise in — cancer cell
biology and personalised cancer care.
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Directors’ Report
For the period ended 31 December 2019

The Directors present thei Report and FAnancial Staterments for the eight month pariod ended 31 Dacember 2019 for ANGLE ple (the “"Company’} and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “ANGLET). ANGLE ple, Company registration nurmber 04985171, is a public limited company, incorporated and doricied in England
and quotad on the Landon Stock Exchange Altermative Investrent Market (AlM). ANGLE ple also has a Leve! 1 Amertcan Depositary Receipt (ADR} program that
trades on the OverThe-Caunter {OTC) marketin the United States. The Remuneration Report on pages 4% to 51 is a voluntarfly prepared repart.

The Directors whe held office as at the date of approval of this Directors’ Repart confirm that., so far as they are each aware, there is no refevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Principal activities

The prindipal activity of the Comparny i that of a holding company. The Group's principal trading activity s undertaken in relation to the development and
commercialisation of the Parsortix cell separation system, with deployment inliquid biopsy — non-invasive cancer diagnostics.

Review of the business and future developments

The Strategic Report (including the Chairman's Statement and the Fnandal Review) on pages 02 to 33 reports on the Group's performance during the past finandal
period and its prospedcts.

The nformation that fulfils the requirerments of the Business Review is contained within the Strategic Report §ndkuding the Chaieman’s Statement and the Rnandal
Review) o pages 02 to 33 and is incarporated into this report by reference.

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)
The Group's main KPls and detalls of performance against them are set out on pages 22 and 23.

Resuits and dividends
The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incoma for the periad is set out on page 55.

The Group made a loss for the eight month pericd of £6.2 milion {year ended 30 April 2019: loss £89 millior).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of 2 dividend for the period (year ended 30 April 201%: £rl). The Board perlodically reviews the Company’s dividend
palicy in the context of its financial position.

Research and development

Total expenditure on research and development in the period amourtted o £6.0 million (year ended 30 Aprl 2019: £8.0 milior), Expendtiure on research and
development expensed through the Consolidated Statementt of Comprehensive Income amounted to £5.0 millon in the period (year ended 30 April 201%:

£64 millon), induding both third-party research and development costs and own staff costs. Additional expenditure on product developrment was capitalised

on the Consolidated Statement of Financiat Position, in accordance with 1AS 38, and amourted to £1.0 million in the period (year ended 30 Aprll 2019: £1.6 millior).

Directors and their incereses
The following Directors have held office since 1 May 2019

| F Griffiths

} Groen

B Howlett

A D W Newland

GR Selvey ‘

The Directors' interests, including benefidal imerests, in the Ordimary shares and share options of the Company ane shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
an pages 50 and 51.

Directors' and Officers’ liability insurance
As permitied by the Companies Act 2006, the Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries are indernnified under the Group's Directors’ and
Officery’ lability insurance in respact of proceedings which might be brought by a third-party. No cover is provided in respect of any fraudulent or dishonest acts.
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Significant shareholdings
The following fund managers and sharehoiders had an interest in 3% or more of the Company’s ordinary share ¢apital, according to the Link Asset Share Fortal,
ag at 16 June 2030

Fund manager/shareholder Number of shares Holding
Jupiter Asset Managerent Lirrited®* 27,350,438 16.14%
Fidelity International Uimited (FIL)* 14,241,348 B.24%
Dermot Keane 12,777,083 7.3%%
Conifer Management LLC 12032522 £96%
Legal and General 10369092 6.00%
Andrew D W Newtand 7,054,686 408%

*  Fund manager does not hodd all of the voling rights 2 somee ane rezained and votad by the beneficial owner.

Risk management
Details of the Groups finanda! risk management objectives and polides are disdosed in Naote 14 to the finandal Staternents, along with further information on the
Group's use of finandal instruments,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Directors consider that the Group is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties which it seeks to ritigate and the principal ones are set out on pages 24 to 29,

Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsiole for preparing the Strateglc Report, Directors’ Report and the Finandal Statements in accordarke with applicable law and regulations.

Company kaw requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company Finarial Statements for each finandal pericd The Directors are required by the Al Rules of
the London Stock Exchange to prepare Group Financial Statements in accordance with Internatiorad Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union (“EU") and have elected 1o prepare the Company Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU.

The Group and Company Finandal Statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly their finandal position and performance; the
Companies Act 2006 provides in refation to such finandal statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to firancial statements ghing a true and fair view
are references to their achieving a fair presentation,

Under comparty law the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they 2re satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Company Financial Statements, the Directars are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the EU: and

+ prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 10 presume that the Group and the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting reconds that are suffident to show and exphain the Group's and the Company’s transactions and disdose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financia! position of the Group and Compary and enable them to ensure that the Fnandal Statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Comparny and hence for taking reascnable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularites.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the carporate and financial information included cn the ANGLE plc website. The Group's website
is intended to meet the legal requirements for the UK and not to meet the different legal requirements relating to the preparation and dissemination of financial
information in other countries.
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Directors’ Report
For the period ended 31 December 2019

continued

Past reporting date event
As reported in Note 24, the Chalrmman's Statement and alsewhere, the Company has had some short-term nhegative impacts from government lock downs assodiated
with COVID-~19. Although this has created some uncertainty and a need to adapt the operating modef ft & not expected to fave any significant kong-term impract

on the Company.

Going concern
The Directors have considered the uncertainties, risks and potential impact on the business associated with COVID-19 and are carefully managing the discretianary
expenditure in fine with awilable cash resources.

The Directors have prepared and reviewed the financial projections for the 12 month period from the date of signing of these Financdial Statements with discretionary
expenditure carefully conrolled. Based on the level of existing cash and expected R3D tax credits, the projected income and expenditure (the timing of some of which
s at the Group's discretion) and other potential sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have adeduate rescurces
to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the going concer bagls has been used in preparing the: Financia! Statements. Notes 1.4 and 24 provide
additional information.

Auditor
The audtor RSM UK Audic LLP, Chartered Accountants, has indicated its willingness to continue in office.

Annual General Meeting

The Anrwial General Meeting {AGM) of the Comparry will be held at 2:00 pm on Thursday 27 August 2020 at ANGLE pic, 10 Nugent Road, Surrey Research Park,
Guildford, Surrey GUZ 7AF (n fine with the UK Governiment’s COVID requinzments to maintain social distancing this wil be a dosed meeting and shareholdars will not
be permitted to attend the AGM in person. Shareholders will be able ta join the AGM remotely with questions invited to be submitted before the meeting, The Notice
of Annual General Meeting is enclosed within this report on pages 88 to 91.

On behalf of the Board

Andrew D W Newland
Chief Executive
24 Jure 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance
The Compary’s shares trade on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM} of the London Stock Exchange.

The Board s committed to high standards of corporate governance and adheres to the Quoted Companies Alliance (QCA) Corporate Governance Code for smalt
and mid-size quoted companies {the “QCA Code™).

The Board has voluntarily applied the QCA Code since 2014, with elements of the UK Corporate Governance Code prior to that. Since 28 September 2018,

AlM comparies were required to comply or explain against a recognised corporate govermance code. The QCA Code was revised in April 2018 ("QCA Code 2018
and sets out 10 broad principles of corporate governance, states what are considered to be appropriate corporate goverrance arrangements for growing companies
and requires companies to provide an explanation about how they are meeting the principles through certain prescribed disdosures,

The Board has considered how each principle is applied and provides below an explaration of the approach taken in relation to each and how they support the
Company's medium to long-tenm success,
In accordance with Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, the Board recognises the importance of our stakehalders to our business. The Board has thought carefully

about how to formalise is consideration of the impact of its decisions on key stakeholders and has updated the report below on how it applies the 5172 duties under
the Comparies Act 20086, in particular as it relates to QCA Principles 2 and 3.

Chairman’s Statement

As Chairman of the ANGLE plc {{ANGLE") Board, it is my responsibility to ensure that the Board is performing its role effectively and has the capacity, ability, structure
and support to enable # to continue to do so.

W believe that 2 saund and wel understood governance structure is essential to maintain the integrity of the Group in all its actions, to enhance performance and

to impact positively on our sharehclders, staff, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders.

ANGLE applies the QA Code 2018 as the benchmark for measuring our adherence to good govermance principles. These principles provide us with a dear

framework for assessing our perfarmance as a Board and as a Company, and the report below shows how we apply the Code's ten guiding principles in practice
and also incorporate Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

Strategy and business model (QCA Principle 1)}
The Group's strategy and business model is explained within the Strategic Report on pages 02 to 33, and is summarised below.

ANGLE is a wordHeading liquid biopsy company commerdalising 2 platform technology that can capture celfls dreulating in Blood, such as cancer cells, even when they
are as rare in number as one cell in one billion blood cells, and harvest the cells for analysis.

ANGLE's cell separation techrology is called Parsortix and Is the subject of granted patents in multiple jurisdictions. The system is based on a miarofluidic device that
captures cells based on a combination of their size and compressibiity:

The analysis of the cells that can be harvested from patient blood with ANGLE's Parsortix systern has the potential to detver profound improvernents in clinical and
heaith economic outcomes in the treatment and diagnosis of various forms of ancer.

ANGLE has made strong progress in its four-pronged strategy for achieving widespread adoption of its Parsortix system in the emerging muiti-billion dollar liquid

biopsy market

1) Completion of rigorous large-scale dinical studies run by leading cancer centres, demcnstrating the effectiveness of different applications of the system in cancer
patient care

2) Securing regulatory approval of the system with the emphasis on FDA dearance as the de face gobal gold standard. ANGLE is seeking to be the first company
ever to gain FDA dearance for a systern which harvests circulating tumour celts from blood for subsequent analysis

3) Establishing a body of published evidence from leading @ncer centres showing the effectiveness of the system through peer-reviewed publications, sdentific data
and clinical research evidence, highlighting a wide range of potential applications

4) Estahlishing partnerships with large healthcare companies for market deployment and development of multiple other dlinical applications incarporating the
Parsortix system,

ANGLE interxs to establish an independent accredited clinical laboratory that will have the capability of offering validated clirieal tests, This dlinical laboratory will be

used as an accelerator and demonstrator in support of the Companys established plan for product sales of Parsortix instrurnents and cassettes.

ANGLES ultimate objective s the widespread adoption of the Parsartix system in the diagnosis, treatment and monitoring of cancer patients.
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Corporate Governance Report

continued

ANGLE is seeking to become the first ever companyy to receive FDA Class || dearance for a product for harvesting intact dreulating tumeur cells from patient blood
for subsequent analysis, US regulatory dearance by the FDA is considered the gobat standard for approval of medical diagnostic systerns and ANGLE believes that such
clearance woukl provide ANGLE's Parsortix system with a further compertitive differentiation, whith would accelerate all forms of commercial adoption of the system
in both research and dinical settings.

Large-scale deplayrnent of the Parsortix systermn across numerous cancer- types and application areas requires ANGLE to partner with large, global healthcare
companies to take advantage of their distribution and sales channels and econormic resaurces,

Meeting shareholder needs {QCA Principle 2)

The Company seeks to maintain and enhance good refations with its sharehalders and analysts. The Group's Interim and Annual Reports are supplemented by regular
published updates to Investors on commercial progress. All investors have access to up-to-date information on the Group via its website, wwwiangleplc.com, which
tras an investor relations section providing contact details for investor refations queries, detaiis on the Comparty's share price, share price graphs and share trading
arthvity. The Company also distributes Group announcements electrorically. Sharehokders and other interested parties wishing 16 receive announcements vig ermail
are invited 1o sign up 1o the “Email Alert” fadiity in the Irvestor Relations, Regulatory News section on the Campany’s website.

The Oirectors seek to buiid on a mutuel understanding of objectives between the Company and its sharehoiders, especially considening the specialist and
rmedium-tenm nature of the husiniess. Institutional shareholders, private dient brokers and analysts are in contact with the Directors through a regfar programme

of briefing presentations and meetings to discuss issues and give fecdpack, primarily following the announcement of the interim and prefiminary results, but aso
throughout the year as required. The Board also uses and recebves formal feedback through the Company's joint stockbrokers, financial public relations advisor

and other advisars. Investor forums and presentation seminars and shows provide other channels of communication to sharehciders, analysts and potential investors,
Individual shareholders are welcarme to and regularly make contact with the Campany via emall or telephone,

All shareholders ane encouraged to make use of the Cempany's Annual General Mesting (AGIM) to vote on resolutions (see Prindiple 10) and to raise any questions
regarding the strategy, management, operations and corporate governance of the Group. The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Normination Committees
are available to answer any questions from shareholders at the AGM.

finnCap and WG Partners act as joint brokers to the Compary, to further improve the quality and quantity of Investor relations activities.

Along with the usual presentations and webinars the Compary held a umber of non-deal readshows in the period and a deal roadshow resulting in a successful
furdraise in July 2019 which was oversubscribed and marked a successful Intreduction 10 the US market with the addition of twe significant US investors.

During the period we changed our IR website tools providers to improve the shareholder experience with easier to use investor todls, and have seen an increase
of 5% in subscribers to our emal alert fadiity.

The addition of a Cerporate Responsibility Report on pages 32 and 33 is in response to shareholder requests to better understand how the Group deals with
environmental, sactal and governance (ESG) issues.

Manage our responsibilities to wider stakeholders (QCA Principle 3)

The Board recognises its prime responsibility under UK corparte law is to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole. We conduct
business in an ethical way and take seriously our responsibiities 1o our employees, dinical study partners, contractors, key opinion leaders, trading partners, research and
faboratory customers, suppliers and regulatory authorfties.

We recognise that our employees are a core fundamental component to our success. We hold regular all-employee meetings to distuss business progress and provide
updates on Initiatives. These meetings also include opportunities for staff to present on cngoing projects. One of the goals of these meetings is to ensure that staff feet
vahed and engaged with the wider Group.

ANGLE provides tralning and development programmes, inclusive and interactive appralsal systems, mertt-based promotions, flexible and famiy-friendly employee
polides and 2 range of employes and family benefits. Waven throughout all inftiatives and programrmes i a philosophy which promotes an open cufture for discussion
and honest feedback. Employees are encouraged to be creative and offer ideas across the Group. Group-wide competitions have been held to encourage creativity and
camaraderic. An exarmple of this in the period was a compatition for the naming and branding of our product fines.

The Company places importance on the developmant of iternal candidates for managernent roles and utilises a combination of competency and developrrent plans to
progress this. During the perfod we introduced a Management Charter which formafises the ANGLE cufture and carifies our expectations to and from staff, and puts
in place a structure to ensura we achieve it This has defvered a number of new initiatives across the Group during the period nduding a refined structured promotions
process, a coaching programme to support managers and the development of a New Manager training course to be delvered in the new year. Local teams have
engaged staff in a number of team building events.

ANGLE operate 3 high standard of quality ranagement t6 ensure we comply with the appropriate regilations in the various territories in which we operate.
The Group uses external spedilists where heeded in relation to areas such as the quality systems and health and safety.
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The complex nature of our products and product development process mears that dose working relationships with 2 number of key suppliers are essential to ensure
we recelve the highest quality products and services. An 1SO 13485:2016 quality system is mandatory for key suppliers, This involves seaior staff dearty communicating
requirements and working closely with suppliers to develop appropriate products and services, Ve ensure there are dear processes for change control to avoid fssues
and dear biling arrangements and we airm 10 pay suppliers based on the terms agreed. As a result we receive high quality goods delivered on time and to specification.
It puts us in a position to negotiate discounts, for example, bulk discounts on cassettes with the first large-scale frame order in the period.

W work dosely with key apinion leaders (KOLs) and customers who have access 1o patient samples, who provide feedback on their use of the system, incuding
prablems encourntered, development needs such as new processes and workflows and working with different downstream analysls systems. Our success, competitive
advantage and reputation are deperdent on understanding these needs and providing solutions. The refationships are managed by key account managers. KOLs,
customers and the Group regularty present at sdentific conferences. We have a leveraged R&D model driving an increased number of peer-reviewed publications
enabled by the Parsortix system in order to be at the forefront of CTC research 2nd clinical adoption.

Six peer-reviewed publications were issued in the efght month peried by KOLs and customers (year ending 30 April 2019: 10). Most notably these induded

2 publication from UKE Harmburg demansirating the utility of the Parsortix system for determining PD-L1 status of dirculating tumour cells, and a publication from
Barts Cancer Institute (LX) demonstrating the capability of Parsortix system to detect dlinically significant prostate cancer to reduce over-diagnosis and over-treatment.
We presented at five eonferences in the period ANGLE customer; University of Basel presented their breakthrough research an CTC clusters at the ACTC
conference in Corfi.

WVe cperate in a highly regulated area of business. National governments and regulators (Competent Authorities) implement highly souctured product certification
regimes to national, supra-national and international standards. Such certifications are necessary by law to manufacture and market research and dinical devices,

Notified Bodies are designated by Competent Authoritles to perform assessments to agreed standards. ANGLE is subject to those assessments where appropriate
to the products manufactured and rmarketed by the Company.

Wi employ consuitants with high levels of regulatory knowladge, experience and contacts to ensure our working knowledge is comprehensive, up 1o date and
appropriate to our needs. Guidance documents and tralning are identified to enable us to keep up to date with regulatory developments across different regulatory
bodies and different standards domains.

Through engagement, wa ensure that we understand the regulatory landscape so that we can identify and comply with alt applicable product standards in &l relevant
tervitories. We engage with regulatory authorities, through tefephane, emall and face-to-face meetings, to ersure we obtain their views, understand the regulations
and their impact on our work plans and submissians.

During the period we have maintained 1SO 134852016 accreditation (Europe) and CE marking (IVDD) for the intended use and are working towards securing
1SO 13485:2016 acereddation (Canada) and are in the final stages of completing our submission for FDA clearance for the intended use. We have developed
a regulatory roadmap to support future product strategy:

Ritk managemsant (QCA Principle 4)
The Board is responsible for identifying the major business risks faced by the Group and for determining the appropriate course of action and systems to manage
and mitigate those risks.

The nature of medical diagnastics development and the early stage and scale of our operations means there are a number of risks and uncertainties. The Directors
maintain a risk register and have summarised the principal risks and uncertainties that coukd have a material impact on the Group. The Principal Risks and Uncertainties
are reportad on pages 24 to 2%.

The Board manitors the key areas such as dinical applications, competitive postion, financial, intellectual property, marufacturing, market acceptance, operational
regulation and quality assurance, research and development, staff key suppliers and key partners. An ongoing assessment is made of their potential impact and
mitigation strategies and actions. New potentially material risks which arise between reviews, such as Brexit and the impact of the COVID-12 parkermic, are added

1o the risk register, discussed at Board level as they arise and followed up by the Board as appropriate.

The Audit Committee has adopted formal terms of reference (ee Principle 9) and considers finandal reporting, corporate governance and internal centroks. its review
of financial reporting includes discussion of majar accounting issues, policies and compliance with Intemational Firancial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the law (Cornparies
Act 2006), review of key management judgements and estimates, review and Update of the risk register; risk identification and assessment and risk management and
mitigation activities and going concemn assumptions.

Internal control systems are designed to meet the particulr needs of the Group and the risks to which it is exposed The system of internal control is designed 1o
manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, rather than to eliminate &, and by its nature can only provide reasonabie but not ahsolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

An irternal audit funcion is not considered necessary or practical due to the size of the Group and the chose day-to-day control exercised by the Executive Directors
and senior management. The Board will cortinue to monitor the requirernent to have an intemal audit function.
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The key procedures that the Directors have established with a view to providing an effective system of internal contral are as follows:

Management structure

The Board has overall resporsibility for the Group ant focuses on the owerall Group sirategy {see Principle 1) and the interests of shareholders {see Principles 2

and 10), There is a schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board (see Prindiple 9). The Board has an organisational structure with clearly defined
responsibilities and lines of accountabilty and each Executive Director has been given responsibiity for specific aspects of the Group's affsirs (see Prindples 5 and 9).
Intermal firancial risks are controlled through authorisation proceduresflevels and segregation of accounting duties.

Quality and integrity of personnel

The integrity and competance of persoanel are ensured through high recruitment standards and subsequent training. We assess employee competence at alf levels,
identify development requirements and provide training and development support, dligned with business and personal abjectives. High-quafity, motivated personnel are
seen as an essential part of the control emvironment.

Budgets and reporting

Each year the Roard approves the annual budget which includes an assessment of key risk areas, Performance is manitored and relevart action taken throughout
the year through regular reporting to the Board of variances from the budget and preparation of updated forecasts for the year together with information on the
key risk areas.

Investment and divestment appraisal
Al material investrnent and divestment dedisions require appraisal, review and approval by the Board.

Internal controls

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal controls and has a pracess for the continuous identification, evaluation and management of the:
significant risks the Group faces. Assessment considers the extermal environment, the industry in which the Group cperates, the interral environment and non-finandial
risks such as operational and fegal risks. The risks identified are ranked based on significance and likefihood of accurrence. The Board reviews the controls in place to
nitigate those tisks and improvemants are made where required. The Group conducts its operations within the ISCr 13485:2016 quality management system and
continues 1o imvest in its systems and people in light of Group strategy and risk assessment 16 ensure the appropriate operational controls and measures are in place
and working effectively. The quality syster is subject 1o annual Notified Body audit (BS). The Group uses externat specialist resources (regulatory, design, manufacturing
etc) as required. Day-to-day responsibilty for the implementation of effeciive internal contrel and risk monitoring rests with senior management.

Metries and quality objectives continue to be actively impiementad ang monitored as part of a continual improvement programime. A number of incrementa)
impreverents have been made in the year driven by planned intermal quality system auditing and risk assessment and other langer Improvements have been identified
and are being progressad. Improverments have incuded 1) data security (password) minimum criteria requirernents and training 2) segregation of dutles review and
cefinement; 3) electronics systems for supglier and equipment control within the quality system; 4) piloting of electronic forms, document signatures and signing
authorities; 5) improvements to purchasing procedures and intound goods inspections; and 6) implemented a new dashboard reporting system across the Group.

Maintain a well-functioning Beard {(QCA. Principle 5)

“The Board of Directors is led by the Chairman, has overall responsibility for strategy (see Principle 1) and is resporsible to shareholders for the governance of

ANGLE phe and for the effective operation and management of the Graup. Its aim is to provide Teadership and cantrel in order to ensure the growth and development
of a successful business, whife representing the interests of the Company’s shareholders §es Principles 2 and 1G).

Compusition
The Board comprises the Chairman, two Non-executive and two Executive Directors. The QCA Code recommends there are at least two non-executive direciors.

Different Directors hold the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive and there is a dear division of responsibikies between them. The Chairman is responsible

for corporate governance, for overseeing the running of the Board, ensuring that no individual or group dominates the Board's decision making and ensuring that the
Non-executive Directors are properly briefed on matters. The Chief Executive has responsibility for implementing the strategy of the Board and managing the day-to-
day business activities of the Group through his management of the Executive Directars and senior maragers. The Finance Director also acts as the Comparty Searetary
as the size and nature of the business activities do nat justify a dedicated person or 2 need 16 outsource the activity; in this role he supports the Chairman directly on
governance matters as well 25 dedling with legal and regulatory compliance:

The Board's compostion s geared toward the Group's current stage of developmertt and priorities and will be refreshied as appropriate. The skill set of the Board
therafore indudes experience in non-executive directorchairman/CEO roles, listed companies, investor relations, fundraising, medical diagnostics, technology
developrnent. product development and commercialisation, lab-developed tests, CE Mark and FDA cleared product approvals and reimbursement. Individuat Directors
possess 3 wide variety of skills and experience and biographical details of the Elirectors are set out on pages 34 and 35.

There are currently no fermale or ethnic minarity directors, The Board is confident both that the opportunities in the Company are not exduded or limited by any
dwersity issues (induding gender) and that the Board nevertheless contains the necessary mix of experience, skills and other persena) qualities and capabifities necessary
to deliver its strategy. This area will cantinue 1o be monitored.
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Independence

The Chairman and Non-executive Directiors are considered by the Board to be independent of managernent and free of any relationship which could matenially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. They do not have a significant shareholding {see page 39} aor represent a major shareholder, they receive

na remuneration from the Company ather than directors' fees and occasional consuftancy fees (see page 50}, they have no day-to-day ivotvement in running

the business and have never been emplayees of the Company, they have ne personal financial and/or material interest in any other matters {c be decided, such as
contracts, and they have no conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships or advisory roles. Bach Board meeting starts with a dedaration of Directors’ interest
to identify patential or actual conflicts of interest. The Board considers that the Non-executive Directors are of suffident cafibre to bring the strength of independence
to the Board. The Board has nominated Brian Howilett as Senior Independent Director: Issues can also be raised directly through the normal channels of the Chairman,
Chief Executive and Finance: Director and where necessary the Non-exeautive Directors can be approached directly.

The Chairman joined the Board in September 2006. The Chairman was independent at the time of his appointment and under the previous QCA code he counted as
an independent director. The Board considers that the Chairman's long standing knowledge and detziled experience of the business are extremely valuable and that the
length of tenure does not affect his independence of judgement.

Committees of the Board
The Board maintains Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Cammittees. All Committees operate with written terms of reference (see Principle 9).

Ensure Directors have necessary, up-to-date skills (QCA Principle 6)
Individual Directors possess a wide variety of skils and experience.

Detziled biographical information on the Individual Directors are set out on pages 34 and 35.

The key skilis they bring o the Board are:

- Garth Selvey, Chairman — extensive experience of the listed sector and leading companies.

+ Andrew Newland, Chief Executive — over 29 years of experience in setting up, leading and building technology-based businesses, over 19 years leading spedalist
medtech businesses, ardd over ten years in the liquid biopsy space.

~ Tan Griffiths, Finance Director — over 30 years of experience in finance and technalogy-based businesses, and over ten years in the liquid biopsy space.

- Jan Groen, Non-executive Director — expertise in new product development. including development and successful commercialisation of CE marked and FDA
deared diagnostic products and lab-developed tests in Europe and the USAL

* Brian Howdett, Non-exacutive Director — extensive commerdial operations experience of the medtach sector.

The Non-exequtive Directors also serve on other boards in the medical diagnostics sector which gives a broad range of skills, capabiiities and experience. All Directors
are able to ke training and/or independent professional acivice in the furtherance of their duties if necessary. Directors keep their skil set up to date through attending
industry events, seminars and research. The Executive Directors will typically undertake spedific training during the year. All Directors also have access to the Compary's
Nominated Advisor, legal advisors, finandal advisors and other independent professional advisors as required. Professional advisors provide briefings and update notes
on necessary legidation from time to time.

No individual Directer or Committee of the Board received any external advice in relation to their Board duties in the year

There is an induction process for new directors including briefing by the Nominated Advisor and the Company.

Evaluate Board performance (QCA Principle 7)

The Campany supports the concept of an effective Board leading and controling the Company. The Chairman discusses and deals with any concermns with an individual
Diirector, or the Board as a whole, on Board performance as they arise. Additionally, the Board undertakes a periodic farmal evaluation of its performance, its Directors
and its Committees, the [ast one baing in 2018. The review, led by the Chairman, involves each Boand member providing feedback and comments on the others and
where necessary spedific actions are identified {o improve certain areas.

The evaluation ariteria take into account the Financial Reporting Councl's guidance on board effectiveniess. The criteria against which board, committze and individual
effectiveness is considered comprise the Board structure (composition, constitution, diversity and succession planning — see Principle 5), the dynamics and functioning
of the Board (annual Board meeting schedule, quality of information, Interactions and communications with the Executive Directors and senior management team,
cohesiveress and the quality of participation in Board meetings), the Beards role in strategy and the financial reporting process. Evaluation procedures are evolving

o ensure they are relevant to the Group's stage of development and Board dynamics. Due to the experience and size of the Board and the size of the Comparry,

the Board does not consider it negessary to have evaluations facilitated by an external consuttant but will keep this under review,
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Promote a values-based corporate culture (QCA Principle §)
The Board places emphasis on ts values-based corporate culture and ethical behavieur which are crudal to the Group's reputation in the highly regulated field in which
it operates. The Group's success depends on maintaining a supportive, innovative and can-do culture when working with supphiers and customers.

The Group manages a highly regarded quality management systern which has a very strong influence on culture The Group's competency framework sets values-based
expectations at 2l levels in terms of the way we communicate and behave towards each other and external stakeholders. Our competency framework links to our
performance maragement system and, in turn, to our rewards strategy.

The Group operates a flat structure with all staff having the ability to discuss matters with Directors and senior managers. The management teams mest regularly

10 promete communications and teamwork, The majority of projects take a team based approach, Staff regularly work at different offices, Recruitment practices are
heavily focused on recruiting people with similarty sirong values, We have expanded our HR team to ensure a gonsistently open and ethical approach to recruitrment,
management and employee communication throughout cur offices.

The Group has established a Management Charter which formalizes and clarifies expectations that managers at alt tevels take responsibility for supporting and
promating an ethical values-based cqulture. Senior managers are coached in the development and mainterance of an open and ethical cutture. This Charter forms
the basis of our management development programme and is part of management objectives.

The Group has taken further steps to promote a supportive culture. These include improving healthcare benefits, training Mental Health First Aiders, subseription
for employees to Thrive: Mental Wellbeing app and team buikding evenits.

The highly skilled and diverse nature of the Group influences culture which, at the most recent review, s characterised by

» Quulifications, with 87% (April 2019: 87%) of staff having higher education qualifieations incuding Degrees, Masters and Doctorates as wel as Chartered
Accauntants and MBAs, with the majority of stafl having multiple qualifications,

= Gender split, with 48%:52% (April 2019 47%:53%) MaleFamale.

+ Different nationalities, with 31 (Apri 201%: 25) different countries represented,

Maintain fit for purpose governance structures (QCA Principle 9)

Roles and responsibilities

Chairman: the Chafrman & responsible for the leadership of the Board and ensuring the effective running and managemient of the Board, He is ako responsible for the
Board's oversight of the Company's affairs, which inchudes ensuring that the Lirectars receive accurate, timely and dear information, ensuring the effective contribution
of the Non-executive Directors and implementing effective commurication with shareholders,

Chief Executive Officer: the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-day management and the exsautive leadershin of the business, His other
resporsibities indude the progress and devalopment of objectives for the Cormpany, managing the Cornpany’s risk exposure, Implementing the decisions of the Board
ankd ensuring effective communication with sharehelders and regulatary bodies.

MNon-executive Directors’ independence
The Board considers the Non-executive Directors to be sufficiently independent to provide appropriate oversight and saruting (see Principle 5).

Service contracts and letters of appeintment

The two Exacutive Directors Andrew Newland and fan Griffiths have service contracts with the Company dated 9 March 2004 and effective from 17 March 2004,
as amended from time to time. The contracts are not set for a speific term, but incude a roling 12 month notice period by the Compary or the individial. In the
event of a change in contral, the Executives have the right to terminate their employment without the requirement to work their notice period.

The Chairman Garth Selvey has a letter of appointrent dated and effective from 7 September 2006. The Non-executive Director Brian Howlett has a letter of
appointment dated and effective from 7 Jaruary 2013. The Non-exeautive Director Dr. Jan Groen has a letter of appointment dated and effective from 1 November
2018, These latters are issued in place of senvice contracts. These appointments are not set for a specific term and are tenminable at will without notice by either party.

Re-election and election of Directors
In accordance with the Company's Artides of Assodiation. Directors are subject to re-election every three years, and newly 2ppointed Directors are subject to elaction
at the first Annual General Meeting (AGM) after their appaintment.

All Oirectors were re-glected by the shareholders at the AGM held on 30 October 2019 and accordingly no Directors are seeking re-election at this AGM.

Committees of the Board

The Board malmains Audtt, Remuneration and Nomination Comemittees. Al Committees operate with written terms of reference, the details of which can be found
on the website. Thelr minutes are crculated for review and consideration by the full Board of Directors, supplemerted by oral reports on matters of particular
sgnificance from the Comimittee Chairmen at Board meetings.
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Audit Committee

The members of the Committee are the Non-exetutive Director Brian Howlett (Chairman of the Audlt Comnittee), the Chairman Garth Selvey and the
Non-executive Director Jan Groen. The Audit Committee mests at least twice a year to review the interim and annual accounts before they are submitted to the
Board The axternal auditors, Finance Director and Chief Bxecutive may attend by invitation. Provision s made to meet with the auditors at least once a year without
any Executive Director present.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and considers financial reporting, corporate governance and internal controls. is review of finandial reporting
indudes discussion of major accounting issues, polides and compliance with International Finandial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the law (Companies Act 2006), review
of key rmanagement judgements and estimates. review and update of the risk register, risk assessment and risk management activities and golng concern assumptions.
It also reviews the scope and resuhs of the extemal audit and the independence and objectivity of the auditors and makes recommendations to the Board on issues
surrounding their remuneration, rotation of partnersistaff, appointrment, resignation or removal. The Audit Committee also considers and determines relevant action
in respact of any control issues raised by the auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring the provision of non-audit services provided by the
Group's auditors and assesses the likely impact on the auditor’s independence and objectivity when corsidering an award of any materiat contract for additional
services. The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services are disdosed in Note 3; the fees for non-audit services are not deemed to be significant enough to impair
thelr independence and objectivity. A new ethical guide for auditors came into force with effect from 15 Manch 2020 which tightens up on the non-audit services that
auditors can provide. The Audit Committee will be considering the potential impact of this on the services provided.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Committee are the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Remuneration Committes) and the Non-executive Directors Brian Howlett and
Jan Groen. The Remuneration Committtee mests as requirad. The Chief Exgcutive and Finance Director may attend by invitation but are not present when matters
affecting their own remuneration arrangements are considered.

The Commiktee has adopted formal terms of reference and the Committee reviews and sets the remuneration and terms and conditions of empleyment of the
Executive Directors and senior management It also agrees a policy for the salaries of all staff and is responsible for the development of the Campany’s rermuneration
scheme. The decisiors of the Committee are formally ratified by the Board,

The Comparny is not required by efther the AlM Listing Rules or the Companies Act to produce a remuneration report but provides the information in the

Annual Report and Accounts because of its commitrment to maintaining high standards of corporate govermance. The Compary's Remuneration Policy is the
responsibility of the Remuneration Committee The Rernuneration Policy, in so far as Tt refates to the Directors, is subject to an advisory vote by sharehalders every
three years, and was last approved at the 2018 Annual General Meeting (AGM). The Directors” Remuneration Report is subject to an advisary vote by shareholders
at each AGM.

The Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 51 provides details of the Rermuneration Policy and the Directors' Remuneration.

Nomination Committee
The members of the Commiittee ane the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Nomination Committee} and the Non-executive Directors Brian Howlett
and Jan Groen. The Nominztion Comrittee meets as required The Chief Executive and Finance Director may attend by imvitation.

The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and is responsible for reviewing the structure, see and compasition of the Board, planning for succession
and for identifying and recommending to the Board suitable candidates for both executive and non-executive Board appointments.

Information
Management supply the Board andfor Committees with appropriate and timety information, including a business update and rmanagement accounts so that trading

perfarmance can be regularty reviewed.

Matters reserved for the Board
The Board has a schedule of matters spedfically reserved to i for decision, induding the review and approval of:

+ Group policy and long-term plans and strategy for the profitable development of the business;

+ Interim and annual Financiat Statements;

* major investments and divestments;

» other significant financlng matters such as fundraising, material contracts induding clinicat studies and product development, acquisitions and capital itern purchases;
+ cash flow forecasts, annual budgets and amendments; and

+ senior executive remnuneration and appointments.

Share dezling code
The Company has adopted and operates a share deafing code governing the share Jealings of the Directors and applicable employees to ensure compliance with
the AIM Rules.
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Commitment
Directors are required to aflocate sufficent time to the Company to discharge their responsibiliies effectively. The Chainman Is required to commit apprandmately
3-5 days per month. Non-executive Directors are required to commit approximatety 2-4 days per monith. Executive: Directors work fifl-time.

Directors’ attendance

The Board has at least efght main Board meetings per year with additionat special meetings as required, the special meetings typically being telephone reetings to cover
spedfic Items. Certain Directors may be appointad as a Committes of the Board of Directors. Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the
eight month pericd ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Garth Brian Jan Andrew lan

Selvey Howlett Groen MNewtand Griffiths
Bourd &6 6/6 6/6 66 616
Committee of the Board* n INfA N/A /73 33
Auidit (i 11 1 N/A N/A
Remuneration 33 33 kK] INJA, NIA
Neminatian oo oo jelis) N/A NIA

*  The Board appoiniad Garth Scivey or Andrevw Mewiand togother with zn Griffiths as a Committee of the Board of Dintttors in relation 1o the fundrarse during the pemod.
Scoring represents individual Directors' atiendance for these mestings when they were members of the Board or Committee,
In addition, the Board has other non-Beard meetings to discuss strategy and key business areas with the senior management team.

Communicate governance and performance with shareholders (QCA Principle 10)

The Board communicates regulary with sharefiolders providing updates on Group performance to sharehaiders viz imterirt and anrual finandial reports, rading
updates, investor presentations and a regular news flow of significant developments for the Group (see Princiole 2). The website includes bistorical finandal reports
and governance related material

The Anrual General Meeting (AGM) presents an opportunity for shareholders to vote on the various resolutions proposed.
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Remuneration Report

The Company is not required by either the AIM Listing Rules or the Companies Act to produce a remuneration report but has volurtarily provided the informiation
below because of its commitment to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s Remuneration Policy s the responsibility of the
Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration Policy

The Company’s aim ks to attract, retain and incentivise the Executive Directors, senior managernent and staff in a manner consistant with the goals of good

corporate governarce In setting the Company's Remuneration Policy, the Remuneration Committee considers a number of factors including the basic salary, benefits
and incentives available to Executive Directors, senior management and staff of comparable companies and for new senior recruits based on executive search spedalist
advice. The Company's remuneration packagas awarded to Executive Directors and sendor management are intended to be competitive, indude a significart proportion
of performance related remuneration and align employees” with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Policy was approved as an advisory vote by shareholders at the 2018 Annual General Meeting (AGM) and remains effective for three years.

Basic salary and benefits

Salary levels are reviewed annually. The Committee believes that bask: salary and benefits should be competitive in the relevant emphayment market and reflect
individual responsibiities and performance. Medical health insurance, life cover, income replacement and pension berefits are also provided to employees once they
have met eligibility ariteria. Executive Directors and senior management are efigible for employer pension contributions on the same basis as eligible staff in the: relevant
jurisdiction. Basic salary may be taken in part as a pension payment. Basic salary and pension are considered together as a “Combined Figure'.

Annual Bonus Plan

The Annual Bonus Plan allows a bonus payment of up to 50% of the Combined Figure upon the achievernent of defined targets relating 1o business progress and up to
a further 50% in the case of exceptional achievement. The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to settle an element of any benus in the form of share options,
“Bonus Options”, exercisable at par value and not subject to performance conditions.

Share options

The Cornpany has an Enterprise Managament Incentive {EMI) Scheme and Unapproved Share Option Schemes as a means of encouraging ownership and aligning

the interests of staff and external sharehotders. Reflecting the need to attract, incentivise, reward and retain high cafibre staff to deliver the business strategy, the
Remuneration Committee has established a limit for the Company’s share option schemes of up to 16% of the issued and to be issued share capital from time to time,

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Comparty has a Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP} as a means of further encouraging ownership and aligning the interests of senior managemerntt and shareholders

to achieve key strategic goals and bulld long-term value. The Compary's Non-executive Directors are not eligible to partidipate in the LTIR. The LTIP provides for awards
of options to acquire shares for nil consideration subject to performance conditions. “LTiF Options'. Performance conditions, targets and weightings will be set by the
Rermuneration Committee at the time of an award to ensure they are stretching and aligned with the Company's strategy to build shareholder value. Details in respect
of each award wil be disclosed at the time of award and alse in the subsequent Annual Report and Accounts. LTIP Options have a performance and holding period

of not less than five years, with a minimum performance period of three years and an additional holding period. Awards vest only to the extent that the performance
canditians and targets have been met at the end of the relevant performance period and will be capable of sale once the holding period is completed, The LTIP
contalns normal “good leaver”, “bad leaver” and change of control previsions. Malus and dawback provisions will apply under certain circumstances. Awards will be
made from within the overall 16% limit described in share options above.

Discretionary incentives
“The Group may operate with discretionary incentives efther in addition to or instead of the incentives described above in any particular year, dependent on the reeds
of the business.

Non-pensionable
None of the awards under the Annual Bonus Plan, Share Option Schemes, Long-Term [ncentive Plan or discretionary incentives are pensionzble.

Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Directors receive a fixed fee for their services. The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors is deterrnined by the Board as a whole within the
overall lirits stipulated in the Artides of Association. Non-executive Directors are nat eligible to participate in any of the Company's incentive schemnes.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Directors' interests — shares
The Directors’ interests, including beneficial interests, in the Ordinary shares of the Company were as stated below:

Ordinary shares of £0.10 each
31 December 2019 1 May 2019
| F Griffiths 673,832 673832
1 Groen - -
B Howlett 10,000 10000
A D W Newland 7.054,686 7054686
G R Sehvey 20,000 20000
Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate remuneration received by Directors wha served during the period was as follows:
8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 Apnil 2013
SalaryfFees Benefits Pension Borws Total Tkl
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chairman
G R Seivey 17 - - - 17 23
Executive
| F Griffiths 94 2 10 - 106 258
A D W Newlard 160 4 - - 164 403
Non-executive
} Groar™* 17 - - - 17 12
B Howdett 17 ~ - - 17 23
Total 305 ] 10 - 321 ny

* ] Groens prior period fees cover the period from his appoiniment as a Direcior oa 1 Novernber 2018,
Benefits include amounts in respect of private medical insurance and taxation advice.

Performarnice bonuses were not awarded in the current finandal periad under the terms of the Annual Bonus Plan due to the potential impact and assodiated
uncertainties of the COVID-19 pandemic and the desire of the Company to conserve cash, notwithstanding the fact that the Executives were deemed to have met the
performance critera in relation to a propartion of the performance bonus.

Performance bonuses were awarded in the prior finandal year under the terms of the Annual Bonus Plan. The Executives were deemed to have met the perforrmance
eriterfa in relation to a 70% performance bonus, major factors of which were progressing the FDA clearance studies with positive results from the dinica) study,
completing the optimisation and progressing the ovarian dinica] application, progressing the corporate partnerships and a successtul fundraise.

| F Griffiths sacrificed salary during the cumrent period and in the prior year. The Comparnty elected ta make contributions to his personal pension,

Directors' interests — options
The Directors' interests in options over the Ordinary shares of the Compary were as stated below.

LTIP Options

A Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) was established during the prior year and approved by the shareholiders at the Annual General Meeting on 30 Cctober 2018,
The Remiuneration Comimittee approved a grant of nil-cost options to Executive Directors on 20 Decermber 2018 over a maxirurn of §,000,000 Crdinary shares
of £0.10. The LTIP Qptions have performance conditions as set out bekow, a performance period of three years and an additiona! holding period of two years.
Subject 10 the rules of the LTIP, awards will vest only to the extent that the performance conditions have been met at the end of the performance period and the
underlying shares may only be traded once the holding period is completed.
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The intention of the LTIP s to reward tangble increases in shareholder value. The performance conditions for the LTIP Options relate te the compound annual
growth rate (CAGR) of the share price over the three-year performance periad. The mid-market share price on 20 December 2018 was £0.385 per Ordinary share.
As different levels of performance are achieved the number of shares that vest increases up to a maximum, as set out below:

Multiple of
share price Proportion Andrew lan
Share price CAGR (at 3 years) vesting Newland Gniffiths Total
<40% <27 0% 0 0 0
> 40% »>27 20% 720000 480,000 1,200,000
>55% >37 50% 1,800,000 1,200000 3,000,000
>75% > 54 1002 3,600,000 2400000 6,000,000
Share options
At Ar3l Vested - Earfiest
Date of 1 May December capableof Exerdse  exercise Expiry
Name grant 2019 Granted Lapsed Cancelled Exerdsad 2009 exercse  price (£) date date
| F Griffiths 30082011 466019 - - - - 466,019 466019 02575  Notwe (1) 29/0872021
@201 187315 - - - - 187315 - 07550  Note (2) 1711172021
0512012 33981 - - - - 33,981 33,981 02575 Nate (1} 290872021
0512012 312685 - - - - 312,485 - 07550 Note (2) 1711172021
111/2014 500000 - - - - 500,000 - 08625 Note (3) 09/11/2024
1241172015 46,980 - - - - 46,980 46,980 01000  Note (4) 111122025
2541172016 500,000 - - - - 500,060 - 06450  Note (5) 241112026
2,046,980 - - - — 2,046,980 546980
A D W Newland 30482011 603344 - - - - 603,334 603334 02575  Note (1) 29/08/2021
18M112011 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 - 07550  Note () 17/1172021
05112012 346466 - - - - 345,666 346666 02575 Nete (1) 290812021
101112014 1,000,000 - - - -~ 1,000,000 — 08625 Not=(3) 09/112024
124172015 73826 - - - - 73,826 73826 01000  Note (4) 1171112025
251172016 1,000,000 - - - — 1,000,000 - 06450  Note (5) 241172026
4,023,826 - — - — 4,023,826 1023826

(1} Viesting is subject 1o 2} a performance condition Lhat the Company’s share pice together with any dividend payments has risen by at least S0% at some paant from the mrket price on 30 August 2017, and b) a service
condition with options westing o¥er 3 three-year period, These conddions have been met and the opians are fuly vested and apable of exercise.

(2 Viesting is subject 0 ) the performance conditions that § the Company's share: price tnust have increased to £200 at some paint since the date of grart and () the Parsortix separation device muat have boen
demorstrited 10 tuccassiully Capture circulating Tumor calls from cancer pasient biood (this condition has Sean et and b} 3 service condition with options vesting aver 2 three-ear period (this conditon has been med.
£3) Vesting is subject to the performance conditions that 3) the Company's share price must have increased to £2.00, £2.25, £2.50 ard £275 at some point since the date of grant for cach quarter of the alocation

and 1) a dmafevent condion with opvons vesting after five years or on the sie of the Parsortix business, whichever s carkest.

(4 Opbons were granted 2s Borudt Opibons in accordance with the Remunertion Commimee’s decretion to settle an efement of the Anfual Bonus in the form of share opons. The Borws Options vested immediately
and are exencisable at por vae,

(5) Vesting is ubject to 2} 2 perfarmance coedition that the Company's share price has risen by at least 100% 4t sama point from the rmarket price on 25 November 2016, and b} 2 serce eondition with options vesting
over b three-year period.

Nao share options were issued to Directors in the current or prior periods. No Directars’ share options were forfeited, lapsed, cancelled or exerdised in the current
or prior periods.
Naote 9 provides additional infermation on share options and LTIP Options.

Shareholder return
The market price of the Company’s shares on 31 Dacemnber 2019 was £0.627 and the range of market price during the period from 1 May 201% until 31 December
2019 was between £0.556 (jow) and £0835 (high).
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of ANGLE plc

Opinion

We have audited the Finandal Staternents of ANGLE plc (the *Parent Company’) and its subsidizries {the ‘Group’) for the pericd ended 31 Decernber 2019 which
comprise the Consofidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consofidated and Company Staternents of Finandal Positian, Cortolidated and Cornpany Statements
of Cash Flows, Consclidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity and Notes to the Finandal Statements, inchuding a summary of significant accounting
policies. The finandial reporting framewark that has been applied in their preparation is applicble law and International Ainancial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company Financial Statenments, as applied in accordance with the prenisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

- the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affars &s at 31 December 2019 and of the Group's loss
for the period then ended:

* the Group Rnancial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

+ the Parent Cormpany Finandal Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted Dy the European Union and as applied In sccordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and

+ the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable Jaw: Cur responsibiiities under those standards

are further described in the Auditor's responsibifties for the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 2re independent of the Group and Parent
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are refevant to our audit of the Finandial Statements in the UK, inchiding the FRC's Ethical Standard as
apphied to SME listed entities and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibifities in accordance with these requirements, Ve believe that the audk evidence we have
obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide a basts for our opinicn.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the I5As (UK) require us to report 10 you where:

+ the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the Financial Statements is not appropriate; or

» the Directors have not disdosed in the Rinandal Staternents any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doybt about the Group’s or the Parent
Compary's ability to continue to adopt the going concem basls of accounting for a peried of at east twelve moniths from the date when the Financial Staterments
are authorised for issue.

Summary of aur audit approach

Key audit matters Group
« Nene
Parent Company
* None
Materiality Group

- Qverall materiality: £422,000
* Performance materiality: £316,000

Farent Company
- Owerall materialty: £422,000
= Performance materiality: £316000

Scepe Our audit procedures covered 100% of revenue, 100% of net assets and 100% of loss before tax.

Key audit matters
Ve have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain thresholds which help us to determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When
evaluating whether the effects of misstaternents, both individually and on the Financiai Statements as 2 whole. could reasonably influence the econcernic decisions of the
users we take into account the qualitative nature and the size of the misstatements. Based on our professicnal judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Group Parent Company
Overall materiality Orveral materiafty: £422,000 Overall materiality: £422,000
Basis for determining 5% of loss before tax 0.7% of net assets. The parcentage applied to the
overall materiality benchmark has been restricted to Group overall materialty.
Rationale for Loss before tax is an appropriate measureas itisa As this is the Parent Company of the Group,
benchmark applied key performance indicator and reflects the scale of it does not carry out trading operations.

activitias of the Group,

Net assets are of most relevance 1o users of the
Financial Statements in respect of the Parent Compary:

Performance materiality Performance materiality: £316,000 Performance materiality: £316,000

Basis for determining 75% of overakl materiality 75% of averall materiality

performance materiality

Reporting of misstatements Misstatements in exress of £21,100 and Misstatements in excess of £21,100 and misstatements

to the Audit Committee misstatements below that threshold that, in cur view, below that threshold that. in our view, warranted
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds, reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
The Group consists of ten legal entities but operates as a single business, Qur audit work was therefore carried out on the basis that the Group was a single
component and was subject to full scope audit by RSM UK Audit LLP covering 100% of revenue, 100% of net assets and 100% of the loss before tax.

Other information

The Diractors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the infarmation induded in the Annual Report, other than the Fnandial
Statements and our Auditor's Report thereon. Qur opinion on the Finandial Statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
exphicitly stated in our report, we do not express ary form of assurance condusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Staternents, our responsthility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Finandal Statements or our knowledge obtalned in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material Inconsistencies or apparent muterial misstatements, we are required to determine whether there s a material misstatement In the Finangial Statements or

a material misstatement of the cther information, If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we condude that there & a material misstaternent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given In the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the finandal period for which the Financial Statements are prepared Is consistent with
the Firancial Statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have: been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and thelr environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not

identified material misstatermnents in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ arequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited
by us, or

+ the Parent Companty Financial Statements are not In agreement with the accounting recards and returns; ar

» cortain disciosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of ANGLE plc

continued

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities staternent, sat oyt oh page 39, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Anandal Statements
and for baing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Rnandal
Statements that are free from matenial misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error:

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Cirectors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parert Compary's ability to continue 4s a going concem, disclosing,
as applicable, ratters refated to poing concern and wsing the geing concern basis of accounting unless the Diractors etther intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audic of the Financia! Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statemnents as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud
ar errot, and to isste an Auditor’s Report that indudes our opinion. Reasonatve assurance is a high leval of assurance, but & nat a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will ahways detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decsions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Finandal Staternents is located on the Finandal Reporting Coundls website at
tpdiwwwircorguk/auditorsresponsibifities. This description forms part of our Auditor's Report.

Use of aur report

This report s made solely to the Company’s members, as a bedy, Ih accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state 10 the Company’s members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an Auditor’s Report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsiiity to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body,

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

,’Zg\J\ALm/A-S\V\,-Jd

Colin Roberts (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Third Fleor

One London Square

Cross Lanes

Guidford

Surrey

GUTIUN

24 June 2020

54 ANGLE ple Annusl Report and Accounts
For the eight month period ended 31 December 2019



Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the period ended 31 December 2019

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 219
PNote £00G £000
Revenua 2 581 678
Cost of sales 3 {142) {155)
Gross profit 439 523
Other operating Income &1 175
Operating costs 3 {8.204) (11,597}
OCperating profit/(loss) (7.704) {10899)
Net finance income(costs) 7 {26} 28
Profit/{loss) before tax (7,730) (10.871)
Tax (charge)credit a 1,482 1939
Profit/{loss) for the period (6,248) (83932)
Other comprehensive income/(Joss):
fternss that ray be subsequently redassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 249 72
Other comprehensive income/(Joss) {24) 72
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) for the period (6272) (8.860)
Profit/loss) for the period attributable to:
Owners of the parent {6,248) 8542)
Non-cantroling imerests - 10
Prafit/(loss) for the period (6,.248) (8532
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the periad attributable to:
Owmers of the parent {6,272) (8,822)
Non-controling interests - (39)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (6.272) (8.860)
Earnings/(loss) per share actribucable co owners of the parent g
Basic and Diluted (pence per share) (3.82) (6.56)
All activity arose from continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

31 December 201% 30 April 219
Note £000 £000
Assets
Intangible assets 1 7,701 6833
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,508 1347
Right-of-use assets 13 1.514 -
Invertories 15 748 988
Trade and othar receivables 16 §27 M2
Taxation 3,398 1900
Cash and tash equivalents 10,766 11010
TFotal assets 34,302 23020
Liabilities
Lease liabilities 13 (1,553) -
Trade and other payables 17 (2,425) (36849)
Total lrabifities (3,978) {3684}
Net assets 30,324 19336
Equity
Share capita! 18 17,277 14,349
Share premium 67,272 53272
Share-based paymarts reserve 1,518 1,266
Other reserve 2,553 2553
Transiation reserve 82 106
Retained earnings (58,276) {52.109)
ESCT shares 20 (102) (102)
Total equity 30,324 19,338

‘The Consolidated Finandal Statements on pages 55 to 83 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 24 June 2020 and signed on 18 behalf by:

. @ﬁ% M A L)

lan F Griffiths Andrew D W Newland
Directar Oirector
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended 31 December 2019

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 Apri 2019
£000 £000
Operating activicies
Profit/(oss) before mx from continuing operations (7,730} (10.871)
Adpustments for:
Depredation of property, plant and equipment 432 622
Depredation of right-of-use assats 21% -
(Profitylass on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 8
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 240 452
Share-based payments 333 332
Exchange differences {27 {14)
Net finance {ncome)/costs 26 (28)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capitat (6,494) (2.499)
(Increase)/decrease in wentores 90 (583)
(Increase)/decrease in rade and other recelvables 303 (91)
Increase/{decreass) in trade and other payables (841) 08
Operating cash flows (6,942) (9.565)
Research ardd development tax credits received - 22351
Overseas tax payments (59) -
Net cash fromi(used in) operating activities (7,001) {7314)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (529) {219
Purchase of intangible assets (1,431) (1.133)
Interest received 40 28
Net cash fromv{used in) investing acthities (1,920) (1.324)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of share capital 16,921 11,996
Interest paid e -
Principal elements of lease payments 231) -
Interest elenents of lease payments (13) -
Net cash fromi{used i} financing activities 16,675 11,996
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,754 3358
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 14,010 7645
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 2 7
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18,766 11.010
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 31 December 2019

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Share- Total
based share Non-

Share Share payments  Other Translation  Retained ESOT  haolders controlling Towl

capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve  eamings shares equity  interests equity

£000 £000 £000 £006 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00G £000
At 1 May 2018 14709 43449 1,072 2,553 (14) (42,129} {102) 146,538 (654) 15,884
For the year to 30 April 2019
Consolidated profiv(oss) 8,942 (8.742} 19 {8932
Other comprehensive Income/flossy
Exchange differences on transtating foreign operations 120 120 48) 72
Total comnprehensive incomel/(loss) 120 (8,942) (8822) (38) (B3s0)
Issue of shares {net of costs) 2540 9456 11,996 11,998
Share-based payments 332 332 332
Released on forfeiture (138) 138 - -
Agquistion of non-controliing interest 100 368 {1,176) (708) £92 {18)
At 1 May 2019 14349 53,773 1,266 2,553 106 (52109 (102) 19,336 - 19336
For the 8 months to 31 Becember 2019
Consolidated profivfioss) (6.248) (6:248) - (6248)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Exchange differences on translating fareign operations (24) 29 - (24)
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) (4)  (6248) (6,272) - (6272
Issue of shares (net of costs) 2928 13999 16927 16927
Share-based payments 333 333 333
Released on farfeiture 78 78 - -
Released on exervise 3} 3 - -
At 31 December 2019 17,277 67,272 1,518 2,553 82 (58,276) {102) 30,324 - 30324

Share prentium

Represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of rominal value, net of directly attributable share issue costs,

Other reserve

The other reserve Is a "merger” reserve arising from the acquisition of the former holding company.

Translation reserve

The transhation reserve comprrises curmulative exchange differences arising on consolidation from the transation of the Finandal Statements of intermational operations.

Under IFRS this is separated from retained earnings.
ESOT shares

This reserve relates to shares held by the ANGLE Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) and may be used to assist in meeting the obligations under employee

rernuneration schemes.

Non-controlling interests

Represents amounts attributed to hon-controlling (minority) interests for profits or losses in the Consolidated Statement of Cormprehensive ncome and assets or
liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. During the year ended 30 April 2019 the Company acquired the remainder of the criginat inventor's shares.

Share-based payments reserve

Thee share-based payments reserve is used for the corresponding entry to the share-based payments charged threugh 2} the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income for employee incentive arrangements relating to ANGLE ple equity and b) the Carsclidated Statement of Finandal Position for acquired

Intangfble assets in investments comprising intellactual property (IP). Transfers ane made from this reserve to retained earnings as the related share options are

exercised, forfeited, lapse or expire.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2019

1 Accounting policies

1,1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Irternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in issue that have been endorsed by
the EU for the eight month period ended 31 December 2019 (induding comgaratives for the year ended 30 April 2019). They have also been prepared in accordance
with those parts of the Comparias Act 2008 that apply to companies reporting under [FRS,

The Finandal Statemenss of the Parent Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and are presented on pages B4 to 87.

As announced by RNS on 30 lanuary 2020, ANGLE changed its accounting refererce date to 31 December and therefore these accounts are for an ejght month
period to 31 December 2019 with comparatives for the year ended 30 Apnl 2019,

Accounting standards adopted in the period
The following standards relevant to the Group have been amended or implemented during the period:

IFRS 9 Amendment on Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

1AS 19 Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty aver Income Tax Treatrnents

Various Annual Improvernents of IFRS standards 2015-2017 Cyde (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12, 1AS 23)

The Consolidated Financial Statarments have been prepared in accordance with these changes where relevant. Their adoption has not had a materia! impact on the
Consolidated Finandal Statements, with the exception of IFRS 16 Leases. Apart from these changes, the accounting policies set out in the Notes have been applied
corsistendy to both reporting perods presented in these Consotidated Financial Statements.

IFRS 16 Leases, which has been issued by the LASB to replace |AS 17 Leases. came Into effect for accounting periods commerxing on or after 1 January 2019,
The Group has adopted the starkiard and indudad relevant disclosure for the fisst ime in these Financial Statements. The Group has not restated comparatives
for the previous reporting period as permitted under the specific transiional provisions in the standard.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets reprasenting its leased property rights, and the corresponding lease liabifties representing its obligations to make
lease payrnents over the remaining lease terms. Previously under IAS 17. a liability was not recorded for future operating lease payments, which were disclosed
as commitments.

The effect of IFRS 16 was to recognise right-of-use assets and comresponding lease liabilities of £1.7 milion at 1 May 2019 {the date of initial application). The right-of-use
assets and the corresponding lease lahilities are shown separately on the Statement of Finandial Position, There s no impact on reserves as at 1 May 2019,

Lease costs are recognised in the form of depredation of the right-of-usc assets and interest on the lease Bability which will be discourted at either the iterest rate
implidit in the lease ar, when this is not determinable, the expected incremental borrowing rate for the Group for the item under tease. Under AS 17, operating lease
réntals were expensed on a stralght-line basis over the lease term within operating costs.

“The Group's incremental bormowing rate was estimated at 5.75% at the date of adoption of IFRS 16.
The following is a recondliation of the Firnancial Staternent line tems from 1AS 17 to IFRS 16 at 1 May 2019,

| May 2019 IFRS 16 1 May 2019

under IAS 17 adjustments under IFRS 16

Desaription Reasen for change £000 £000 £000
Right-of-use assets Recagnition of right to use assets for rented items previously dassed as operating leases - i718 1,718
Current assets Adjustment for previcusly recognised prepayment relating to property lease (€] 3 -
Current liabilities Adjustment for previcusly recognised aconuaks refating to property lease ? 9 -
Current Eabilities Recognition of current portion of lease liability for rented kems - 348 348
Non-current fiabilities Recagnition of lease liability due greater than one year for rented items - 1370 1,370
Profitioss) before tax Adjustment for previously recognised prepayment and accruaks relating to property lease (12 12 -

The fokowing Is a recondliation of total operating lease commitments at 30 April 2019 (as disdosed in the prior year accounts) to lease liabillties recognised at 1 May 2019.

£000
Total operating lease commitments disciosed at 30 April 2019 784
Lease payments relating (o renewal periads not inchuded in operating lease commitments® 1362
Effect of discounting using the weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 5.75% {(420)
Bxampt low-value or short-term leases ®
Total lease liability recognised under IFRS 16 at 1 May 2019 1718

(1) The Group has two lease comtracts that indude extensionterination options. It has been detarmined that the extansion options are reasonably certain 1o be exercised taking the leases beyand the termination option/
rotice period, AS these extensions wWoert pot contrachal, they wene not disciosed as comimitrents b the prios year sccounts, See Note 122
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

1  Accounting policies continued

1.1 Basis of preparation continued

Accounting standards adopted in the period continued

Note 13 provides additional information on the impact of IFRS 16 for the reporting period.

Tre Group has elacted to account for shortterm leases and leases of low-vahie assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease fability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expenge in profit or loss on a straight-ine basis aver the lease term,

No other new accounting standards that have become effective and adapted in the period have had a significant effect on the Group's Finandal Statements.

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
The following pronouncements which have been issued by the IASB are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The Directors have not yet
assessed the impact of the adoption of these Standards and Interprerations for future periods.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to LAS 39 and FRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendmenis to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to [FRS 10 and 1AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or joint Venture
Amendments to References to the Concepturl Framework in IFRS Standards

1.2 Accounting convention
These Finandal Staternents have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The basis of consofidation is set cut in Note 15.

1.3 Presentation of Financial Statements

The finangal inferration, in the form of the primary statements contained in this report, fs presented in accondance with Internationat Accounting, Standand

(AS) 1 Presentation of Finandial Statements. The Group has reviewed the itams disclosed separately on the face of the statumient of comprehensive income

and the components of financial performance considered by management to be significant, or for which separate disclosure woukd assist, both in a better understanding
of financial performance and in making projections of future results, This has been done taking into account the materiality, nature and function of components of
incame and expense.

14 Going concern
The Financiaj Staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Group will be able to continue its operations for the foreseeable future.

The Group's business activities, together with the factors fikely to affect its future development, performance and finandia! position are set out in the Chairman's
Statement and ekewhere in the Strategic Report on pages 02 to 33. The principal risks and uncertainties are stated on pages 24 1o 29. In addition Note 14 to

the Financial Statements indudes details of the Group's exposirre 1o iquidity risk, capital risk, credit sisk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, The Chalrmar's
Starement and Note 24 to the Finandial Statements provides Information on the impact of COVID-19 on the business,

The: Dicectors have considered the uncertainties, risks 2nd potential impact on the business assotiated with COVID-19 and are carefully managing the discretionary
expenditure in line with available cash resources.

The Directors have prepared and reviewed the financhal projections for the 12 month perlod fram the date of signing of these Finandal $tatements with discretionary
expendiure carefully controlled. Based on the level of existing cash and expected RED tax aredits, the projected income and expenditure &he timing of some of which
is at the Group's discretion) and other potentilf sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have adequate rescurces
to continue in business for the foreseeable fiture. Accordingly the going concern basis has been used in praparing the Finandal Statements.

1.5 Basis of consoiidadion
The Consolidated Financial Staterments incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiary undertakings
Subsidiary undertakings ane enitities controlied by the Group, generally as a result of owning a sharehoking of more than half of the voting rights. The Group controls an
entity witen it is éxposed 1o, or has rights 1o, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the abiity to affect those returns through #ts power over the entity.

Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated an the basis of the acquisition method of accounting. Under this method of accounting the results of subsidiaries sold
or acquired are incuded in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income up o, or from the date control passes. Subsidiary undertakings’ accounting polides
are amended where necessary to ensure consistency with the pofides adopted by the Group.

Non-controfing interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are idernified separately from the Group's equiity therein. The interests of non-controling
sharehokiers may be initially measured at fir vatue or at the non-controliing interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquired entity’s identifiable net assets,
The cholce of measurement Is made on an acquisition by acquisition basis, Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-gontroling interests is the amount

of those interests on initial recognition plus the non~conuoling Interests' share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is atiributed to non-
controling interests even i this results in the non-controling interest having a deficit balance,

Intra-group transactions and balances are eiminated fully on consolidation and the consolidated accaunts reflect extarnal transactions only,
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1.6 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each acquisition & measured at the aggregate of the fair values

{at the date of exchange) of identifiable assets, liabiities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired entity.

Identifiable assats are recognised if the asset is separable or arise from contractual or other legel Aights and its fair velue can be measured reliably, The excess of the cost

of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the iderttifiable net assets, incuding intangible assets, is recorded as goodwill If the cost of acquisition is less than
the Rir value of the net assets acquired the difference is recognised directly in the income statement as a "bargain purchase’, Acquisition-related costs are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-rneasured to fair value at the acquisition date
{ie. the date at which the Group attains control} and the resulting gain or loss, if any, Is taken through the statement of comprehensive income.

1.7 Revenve
Reverie for the sale of instruments, cassettes and reagents “products” and instrument hire, fee-for-service, support and maintenance “services” is measured at the farr
value of the consideraticn reteived or receivable for the sale of products and services net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts and excudes intercompany sales.

Sale of products

Reverue from the sale of products is recogrised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the products are transferred to the customer, This is usualy
when a Group company has defivered products to the customer, the customer has accepted delivery of the praducts and collection of the related receivables

is reasonably assured.

A small number of customers may request "bil and hokd” ammangements, where the Group holds the goods sold to the customer on their behaff until the customer

is ready to receive them. Revenue is only recognised on a bill and hold basis when a formal contract is in place, the goods are on hand and are separately identified

as belonging to the custormer and are unable to be redirected to an alternative customer, are ready for delivery, and the customer has acknowledged formal acceptance
of the bill and hold transaction,

Sale of services
Revenue from services provided is recognised aver the period during which the service has been performed

Income from suppart and maintenance Js recognised in the period in which the related chargeable costs are incunred and when the service is completed or where
applicable on a straight-ine basis over the period of the contract to match the benefits to the customen

Research and develapment fees
Revenue from third-party-funded contract research and development agreements is recognised as research and development services are delivered. Where services
are in-progress at the reporting date, the Group recogrises revenues proportionately, in line with the percentage of completion of the service,

Licence fee income

Revenue in respect of licence fee income is recognised when the agreement is signed, where the Group is entitled to receive the income, all obligations have been
fulfilied and the agreement Is non-cancellable,

Contract liabilities

Advance payments received from customers are credited to contract liebilities and the related revenue i released to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in accordance with the recognition ariterta described above.

1.8 Cost of sales

Cost of sales for products (Note 1.7) includes the direct costs incurred in manufacturing and bringing products to sale in the market (shipping, installation, training
and evaluation). Cost of sales for services (Note 1.7) indudes the direct costs incurred in providing the service (time, travel and parts) and are reflected in costs
of sales as they are incurred.

1.9 Other operacing incoma - grants
Grant income s disdosed as “Other operating income™ on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Grant income receivable or received in respect of revenue expenditure is refeased to the statement of comprehensive incomne as the refated expenditure is incurred
when there is a reasonable asurance that the grant money wil be received and any conditions attached to it have been fuffilled. Grant income receivable is hetd on the
statement of financial position as contract assets and grant incorme recaived In advance of expenditure is held on the statement of financial position as contract fabilites.

Grant income receivable or received in respact of capital expenditure is recognised as contract fiabilities in the statement of financial position and is released to the
statement of comprehensive income on 2 straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the related assets.
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1.10 Employee benefits

Share-based payments

FRS 2 Share-based Payment has been applied to all share-based payments.

Share-based incentive arrangements which allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company may be provided to employees. subject to certain aiteria,

The fair value of options granted is recognised as a cost of employment within operating costs with a comesponding increase in equity. Share options granted are
valued at the date of grant Using an appropriate option pricing model and taking into account the terms and conditions upon which they were granted. Market refated
performance conditions are taken into account in calculating the fair value, while service conditions and non-market refated perfortnance conditions are excluded from
the fair valug caleulation, although: the latter are includad in initial estimates about the number of instruments that are expected to vest. The hir value is charged to
operating costs over the vesting period of the award, which Is the period over which 2l the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. Qptions are Rully vested and
capable of sxercise when the employee becomes unconditionaly entitled to the options. The annual charge is roedified to take account of revised estimates about the
rumber of instruments that are expected to vest, for example, options granted to employees who leave the Group during the performante or sefvice condition vesting
period and forfeit thelr rights to the share optlans and in the case of non-muarkat refated performance conditions, where it becormes unlikely they waill vest.

For cptions granted to employees under unapproved share-based payment compensation schermes, induding the Long-Term Incentive Plan, 1o the extent that the share
price at the repirting date % preater than the exergise price then a provision i made for any ernployer’s Natlonal Insurance Contributions, or equivalent. Share option
agreements in the UK and Canada indude 2 tax indemnity that allows employer’s Nationa! Insurance Contributions, or equivalert, to be recovered from the Option
holder and where this is likely to be applied a receivable for such taxes is also recorded, otherwise a charge is mada to the statement of comprehensive income.

Pensicn obligations
Pension costs are charged against profits as they fall due and represent the amount of contributions payable to the Group's defined contribution pension scheme
or ermployee personal pension schermes on an individual basis. The Group has no further payrment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Compensated absences
A tiability for short-term compensated absences, such as holiday, i recognised for the amount the Group may be required to pay as a result of the unused entitlernant
that has accumulated at the reporting date-

1.1 Taxes
Tax on the profit or loss for the peried comprisas current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taeble income for the period, using tax rates {ind laws) that have baen enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,
The Group undertakes research and development activities. In the UK these activities quallfy for tax refief and result in tax credits.

Deferved tascis provided for in full on all temporary differences resulting from the carrying value of an asset or fibility and its tax base, except where they arise from
the inttial recognition of goodwill or from the inftia) recognition of an asset or liabllity that at the date of inftial recognition does not affect accounting or taxeble profit
or loss on a transaction that is not a buslness combination. Deferred tax is datermined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax kablity is settded or deferred tax asset reabsed.

Deferred tax liabilities are recogrised on ary increase in the fair value of investments to the extent that substartial shareholdings refief or unutifised losses may be
unavallable. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tasable profit will ba available against which the temporary differences
can be wifised.

1AS 12 Income Taxes requires the separate disclosure of deferred tax assets and liablities on the Group's statement of finandal position. If there is a legally enfarceable
right to offset aurrent tax assets and liabilties, and they refate to taxes levied by the same tax authority, and the Group intends to settle current tax Exbilities and assets
on anet basis, or their tax assets and fiabilities will be realised simultaneously, then deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on iwestments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controfled and it is probable that the temporary differance will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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1.12 Intangible assets

Intellectual property {1F)

IP assets {somprising patertts, know-how, copyright and licences) are recognised as a purchase at eost or where acquired by the Group as a result of 2 business
combination are initially recognised at fair valua (Note 1.6 — In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations), and are capitalised

Internally generated IP costs are written off 23 incurred except where IAS 38 criteria, as described in research and development below, would require such costs
to be capitalised.

The Group's view is that capitalised IP assets have a finite usefud life and to that extent they should be amortised over their respective unexxpired periods with provision
made for impalrment when required, Capitalised IP assets are not amortised untl the Group is generating an economic return from the underfying asset. Amortisation
is calculated using the swraightline method to aflocate the costs of IP over their estimated useful economic lives. Estimated useful economic ife is based on remaining
patent life or specific terms of licences or agreements, or in the absence of any observable date, ten years, The amortisation period applied to these assets ranges from
85 10 19 years. Amortisation is induded within operating costs.

Computer software
Under 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, acquired compurer software should be capitalised as an intangible asset unless it is an integral part of the refated hardware (such as the

operating systern) where it remains 2s an item of property, plant and equipment.
Internally developed computer software will be capitalised in accordance with the research and development accounting poficy. If the software is developed for in-house
use the capitalised amount is reclassified from research and development to computer saftware.

Amortisation s cakeutated Lsing the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the software over its estimated useful economic Iife and is included within operating
costs, The useful economic ife is estimated at three years, unless there are specific circumstances that dictate this should be far a shorter or longer period.

Research and development

Research expenditure is written off as incurred,

Develapment expenditure is written off as incurred, except where the Directars are satisfied that a new or significantly improved product or process results and other
refevant LAS 38 criteria are met 2s to the technical, commerdal and financial viabifty of individual projects that would require such costs to be capitalised. [n such cases,
the identifiable directly atiributable expenditure is capitalised and amortised.

The Group's view is that capitalised assets have a finite useful Sfe and to that extent they should be amortised over their respective unexpired periods with provision
made for impaiment when required. Assets capitalised are ot amortised until the assodated product is available for use or sale. Amaortisation Is caloutated using the
straight-line method to aliocate the costs of development over the estimated useful economic Eves. Estimated useful economic life 1s assessed by reference to the
remaining patent ffe and may be adjusted after waking into consideration product and market characteristics such as fundamental building blocks and product life oxde
specific 1o the category of expenditure. The amortisation period applied to these different categories ranges from 5.0 to 135 years. Amortisation is induded within
aperating costs.

Other acquired intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired by the Group as a result of a business combination that are separable or arise from contractual or other legal rights and can be reliably
measured are inftiafly recognised at fir value (Note 1.6 — in accordarce with IFRS 3 Business Combinations) and are capitalised.

The Group's view is that these acquired intangible assets have a finite usefu! ife and to that extent they should be amortised over their respective unexpired periods
with provision snade for impairment when required. Acquired intangible assets are not amortised until the Group is generating an econormic return from the undertying
intangible asset. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate the costs over their estimated useful economic lives. Estimated useful economic life
is based on specific terms of contracts and agreements. Amortisation is induded within operating costs. The acquired intangible assets that may be recognised and the
amortisation period appled is:

Brands and trademarks Over the expected useful life of an actively used andéor marketed brand or trademark
Critical supplier contracts and refationships, Over the term of the agreement or the expected useful life of the refationship
including exclusive agreements

Custorner contracts and relationships Over the terrn of the contract or the expected useful life of the relationship
Technology™ Over the remaining life of the key patents or the expected usefud Ife (3 to 10 years)

*  Technology inchudes patents, kicensed [P copyright on software and designs, devloped and in-pe products, completed and in-process reseanch and devsioprnant. docurmented srade saorets such as techiil know-now,
mamfactunng and operating procedures, methods and processes.
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1.12 Intangible assets continued

fmpairment of intangibie assets excluding goodwiil

The Group is required to review, at jeast annually, whether there are indications (eversts or changes in circumstances) that intangible assets have suffered impairment
and that the carrying ameunt may exceed the recoverable amourtt. If there are indications of impairment then an impaimment review is undertaken,

An impalrment loss is recognised within aperating costs for the amount by which the carrying amount in the cash-generating units (CGUS) exceeds its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the assets of the CGUs on a pro-rata basis, The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs 1o sefl and the value-in-use, In the event that an intangible asset will no longer be used, for example, wien a patent is abandoned, the balance of unamortised
expenditure ts written off, Vwhere intangible assets have suffered an impairment, they are reviewed for possibie reversaf of the impairment at each reporting date,

impairment reviews require the esdmation of the recoverable amount based on value-in-use calaulations. intangible assets relate typically to in-process development
and patents and require broader assumptions than for developed technology. Key assumptions taken into consideration relate to technalogical, market and finandal
risks and indude the chance of product launch 1aking into account the stage of development of the asset, the scale of milestone and royalty payments, overall market
opportunities, market size and competitor activity, revenue projections, estimated useful lives of assets (such as patents), contractual relationships and discount and
terminal value rates to deterrine present values of cash flows.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an intangible asset at the date of acquisition and represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Graups interest in the fair value of the identifiatile assets, fabilities and contingent tiabiities including those intangible assets identified under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. After initial recopnition, goodwill is stated at cost kess any accumulated impairment lasses.

Goadwill is deemed to have an indefinite usefuil life and is not amortised, but is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if everts or changes in
drcumstances indicate 2 potential impairment. Goodwill arising on a business combination is altocated to the assodiated cash-generating units (CGUs) expected to
beneflt from the acquisition and any synergies of the combination. This is then assessed against the estimation of the recoverable amount based on fair value less costs
to sel caleulations of the CGUs for impalrment. Where the recoverable amount of the CGLs is less than the carrying amount, induding goodwl, an impairment loss
is recagnised in operating costs. The impairment loss is alfocated first to reduce the carTying amount of any goodwill afocated to the CGls and then to assets of the
CGUs on a pro-rata basis. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in 2 subsequent period.

1.13 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or impaimment value, Cost indudes the eriginal purchase price and expenditure
that i directly attributable to the acquisition of the items to bring the asset to its working condition. Assets acquired through a business combination are initialty
recognised at their fair value. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset over its expected useful
economic iife. Assets frefd under finance feases, if any, are depreciated over their expected useful economic life on the same basis a5 owned assets, or where shortes
the lease term. Assets are reviewed for impaimment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The folowing rates are used:

Computer equiprment 3333%  Straightline
Fdtures, fittings and equipment 2000%—3333%  Straightdine
Laboratory equipment 2000% -~ 5000%  Straight-iine
Meoulds and tockng Utilisation basis Volume
Leasehold improvernents Termofthelease  Straight-ine
1.14 Leases

At the inception of a contract the Group assesses whether the contract is, or containg, a lease. A kease is defined as a contract that conveys the right to use an
underlying asset for 3 period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies a single recognition ang measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-termn leases and leases of kow-value assets. The lease fiability represents the Group's obligation to make lease payments and the right-of-use asset representing

the right to use the underlying asset.

In respect of short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, the Group has elacted to recognise the payments as an expense in the statement of comprehensive

income on a strajght-line bask over the lease term,
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1.4 Leases continued

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-Use assats at the commencement date of the lease (the date the underlying asset is available for use). The right-ofuse asset is measured
as cost, which i made up of the initial lease liabifty, any direct costs incurred, and leasa payments made at or before the commencement date net of ary lease
incentives recebed,

The Group depreciates right-ofuse assets on a straight-ine basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful ives of the assets over the term

of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment and are adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabiities.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises fease lmbiities measured at the present value of lease payments, unpaid at the date, to be made aver
the lease term.

In calaulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of i=ase liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lzase payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease fiabilities is re-measured if there & a modification, a change inthe lease term, a change in the lease
payments (eg. changes to future payments resuhing from 2 change in an index or rate used to deterrning such lease payrnents) or a change In the assassment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Right-of-use assets and lease llabilities are separataly identifled as fne tems on the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group appiies the short-term kease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property and equipment e leases that have a 12 month or less lease term
from date of commencement and do not contain a purchase optior). The Group also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
and laboratory equipment that are considered low value. Lease payments relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term,

1.15 Instruments loaned to customers

in order to support the devalopment of the sales platform and use of the Parsortix system in the clinical rarket, the Parsortix instruments may be placed on long-term
loan with leading cancer research centres {key cpinion leaders) so that they can provide valuable feedback on the operation of the instruments and suggest new

uses and protocols, act as reference customers, identify dinical applications and provide dinical data. Where thess instruments are expected to be placed for a period
longer than six rmonths, the instruments are fransferred at book value to property, plant and equipment and depreciated over three years. Yvhere instrumerts are
placed cn a short-term loan for a customer evaluation and it is expacted that the instrument will be sold at the end of the loan pericd, the instruments are nduded
within inventories.

1.16 Inventories

Inventories comprises finished gooxds (instruments, cassettes and production parts) that are avaiiabie for sale and use internally or with partners, raw materials and

work in progress. Irventories are inftially recognised at cost and subsequently held at the lower of cost and net reafisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost method Cost indudes miaterials and direct labour: Inventary acquired through business combinations are initially recognised at their fair value. Net realisable
value s the estimated selling price, less af estimated costs of completion and costs to be inqurred in marketing, seliing and distribution. Provision s made, if necessary,

for any costs of modifications requined to bring the asset to a working condition due to new standards andfer regulations, or for slow-moving or obsolete inventary.

If net realisable value i iower than the carrying amount, a write down provision is recognised within operating costs for the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds its net rezlisable value.

inventories of finished goods used for research and development projects are initially recogrised at cost, as all inverttaries are held together and available for sale. and
subsequently charged to research and development expenditure as they are used.

1.17 Employea Share Ownership Trust

‘The Group has an Employee Share Crwnership Trust (ESOT) to assist with meeting the obiigations under share option and other employee remuneration schemes.
The ESOT s consolidated as f it is a subsidiary and accounted for as Treasury (own) shares. Shares in ANGLE plc held by the ESCT are stated at weighted average
purchase cost and presented in the statement of finandal position as a deduction from equity under the heading of “ESOT shaves”. Gain ar loss is net recognised
on the purchase or sale of ESOT shares and consideration paid or received is recognised directiy in equity. Finance and administration costs relating to the ESOT
are charged to operating costs as incurred.
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1.18 Foreign currency

The Consclidated Financial Statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the Campany's functional and presentaticnal currency. The Graup determines the
functional currency of each entity and items included in the Financial Statements of each enfity are measured using that functional currency, The functional curendies
of the Group's operations are Pounds Sterling, US Dollars and Canadian Dollars.

Trarsactions denominated in foreign currendes are recorded at the rate rufing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and fiabiiiies denomirated in foreign
currencies are Transiated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currendes and held at cost use the exchange rate at the date of the initlal transactions. Non-monetary
assets and labiities denominated in foreign currencies and held at fair value use the exchange rate at the data that the fair vakuz was determined,

Profits and kosses ort bott: the individual transactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income:

On consolidation, the staterments of comprehenshve income of the forelgn subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the period and the statement
of financial position at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The exchange differences arising as a result of transkting staterents of comprehensive income

at gverage rates and restating Opening net assets at dosing rates are taken 1o the transktion raserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumuative amount
recognised in the transiation reserve relating to that particutar forelgn operation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income.

1.19 Financial instruments
Financial assets and labilites are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group becames a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits In the statement of firandia! position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and shortterm deposits as defined previousty and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily corwertible into cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding short-term borrowings.

Deposits
Deposits in the statement of financial position comprise longer-term deposits with an eriging maturity of greater than three months.

Bank loans, loan notes and borrowings
Al loars and bormowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs assodated with the borrowings. After initial recognition,
these are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Qther assets

Assets, other than those spedifically accounted for under a separate policy, indude trade and other recefvables and are recogrilsed at amortised cost. Recehables may be
impaired by means of a provision, to take into account any dificulties in recovering the outstanding arounis. Provisions for impairment are determined by comparing
the carrying vahse and the fikely realisable vafue, which s defined as the present value of the estirmated recoverable amounts.

For trade receivables, expected credit losses ara measured by applying 2n expected loss rate 10 the gross camying amount. The expected loss rate comprises the risk
of a default occurring and the expected cash flows on default based on the ageing of the receivable. The risk of a default occurring always takes into consideration

aff possible default everts aver the expected fife of those receivables (“the Ffetime expected aedit losses™), Different provision rates and periods are used based on
groupings of historic credit loss experience by product type, customer type and loction.

Other labilities

Liabilities, other than thase specifically accounted for under a separate policy; indude trade and othet payables and are stated based on their amortised cost at the
amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of gnods or services received up to the reporting date.

1.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation of uncertsin fiming or amount 23 a result of past events, and it is probabke that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation ard a refiable estimate of the cbligation can be made. The provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the amount to
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted back to presertt value if the effect is materfal, Changes in provisions are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive ircome for the reporting period.
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1.2 Operating segments

The Group determines and presents Operating segments based on the reparting information that i provided to the Board of Directors to allow it to make operating
decisions. The Board of Directors is resporsible for all significant dedisions and collectively is the Chief Operating Decision-Making (CODM) body as defined by IFRS 8
Operating Segments.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn incorme and incur expenses, induding income and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components, An operating segment’s results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors
to make decisions about resources 10 be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.

1.22 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

“The preparation of the Fnancial Statements requires the use of estimates, assumptions and judgesments that affect the reported amounts of assets and fabilities at
the date of the Finandal Staternents and the reported amounts of reveniues and expenses during the reparting period. Although these estimates, assumptions and
judgements are based on the Directory’ best knowledge of the amounts, events or actions, and are believed to be reasonable, actual results ulimately may differ from
those estimates,

The estimates, assumpticns and judgements that have a significant. risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and abilties are described below.

Valuation and amortisation of internally genarated intangible assets (Notes 1.12 and 11)

IAS 38 Intangible Assets contains spedfic criteria that if met mean development expernditure must be cipitalised as an internally generated intangible asset. The carrying
value of the capitalised product development at the reporting date is £3.9 milion (30 Aprl 2019: £3.0 millior). judgements are required in both assessing whether the
ariteria are met, {for example, differentiating between enhancements and maintenance) and then in applying the rules (for example, determining an estimated useful

life). Intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives, Useful ives are assessed by reference to observable data {for example, remaining patent bfe) and taking into
cansideration specific product characteristics {for esample, product ife qyde) and market characteristics (for example, estimates of the period that the assets will generate
revenus). Each of these factors s periodically reviswed for appropriateness. Changes to estimates in useful lives may resuit in significant variations in the amortisation charge.

Impairment of intangible assets (Notes 1.12 and 11}
The Group s required to review, at least annually, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment and whether the carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount.

The Group is required 10 review, at least annually, whether there are indications (eventts or changes in drcumstances) that intangible assets excluding goodwill have
suffered impairment and that the carrying amount may exceed the recoverable ameurt. if there are indications of impairment then an impairment review is undertaken.

The recaverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value tess costs to sell and its value-in-use for the cash-generating unit giving rise to the intangible assets.

“The valug-in-use method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate in order to cakulate the present value of these cash
fiows. When reviewirg intangible assets for impairment the Group has to make various assumptions and estimates of individual components and their potential vaiue
and potential impairment impact. The Group considers that for each of these variables there is a range of reasonably postible alternative values, which results in a range
of fair valus estimates. None of these estimates of fair value is considered more appropriate or relevant than any other and therefore determining a fair value requires
considerable judgement.

Share-based payments (Notes 1.10 and 19)

In calculating the fair value of equity-settled share-based payments the Group uses an options pricing model. The Directors are required to exercise their judgemnent

in choosing an appropriate options pridng model and determining input parameters that may have a material effect on the fair value calculated. These input parameters
incude, among others, expected volatility, expected life of the options taking into account exerdise restrictions and behavioural considerations of employess, the number
of options expected to vest and liquidity discounts.

Research and development tax credit (Note 8)

The Directors make thei- best estimate of qualfying R&D expendiiure to clculate the RED tax credit. The interpretation of qualifying expenditure requires judgement.

Leases — caleulating the incremental borrowing rate {Notes 1.14 and 13)

As the Group cannot readily determing the interest rate implicit in the lease, it uses its Incremental borrowing rate (1BR) to measure lease fiabiities. The [BR

is the rate of interest that the Group would have 1o pay to borrow over a simiar tenm, and with a simifar sequrity, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of

a simikar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar ecanomic environment. The rate was determined following discussicns with our main commercial bank with regard
10 cur particutar circumstances. The rate therefore reflacts what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no abservable rates are available
fsuch as for subsidiaries that do not enter into finanding transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using obsarvable inputs (such as market Interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-spedifi estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Leases ~ extension and/or termination options (Notes 1.1, 1.14 and 13)

The Group has bao lease contracts that include extension and/or termination options. The Directors exercise significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and/or termination options are reasonably certain to be exerdsed, and agreed that it was reasonable to assume that both of these lease contracts would

be extended beyond the termiration gptionnotice paricd due to significant fit-out and renovations 1o create spedalist laboratories and the prohibitive cost of finding
equivalent alternative aceommodation. The impact of induding the extension andfor tenmination options is 1o increase both the Garrying value of the right-of-use assets
and the non-current tease llablity at the reporting date by £0.9 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

2 Operating segment and revenue analysis

Operating segment

The Group's prindpal trading activity Is undertaken in relation to the commerdialisation of its Parsoriix cell separztion system and fis HyCEAD Ziplex multiplex apalysis
system. There are separate work streams on the Parsortix and HyCEAD Ziplex systerns however the HyCEAD Ziplex system s used a5 the downstrearn analysis tool
primarily in combination with Parsortix in the ovarian cancer dinical appiicavon. There is significart overiap of work between the teams irwolved in R&D and commerdial
activities and as a result the Directors believe that these activities are best shown as one operating segment. All significart decisions are made by the Board of Directors
with implementation of those dedisions on a Group-wide basis, The Group manages all overseas RBD and cormnmerial activities from the UK

Segmental analysis is not considered necessary for one operating segment, as the segment information i substantiafly in the form of and on the same basis as the
Group's IFRS information.

Segmental reparting will continue ta be reviewed and considered in light of the ongeing development and growth of the Group's businesses,

Revenue analysis

The Group revenues are 1o the research use markat and invoive a mix of customers focated in various territories. These are early-stage revenuas with a modest
custorner base.

Significant customers
The Group had ore significart customer (revenues in excess of 10% of total revenues) which cantributed 10% of Group revenugs in the reporting period (year ended
30 April 2019: two significant customers contributing 13% and 12%).

Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group derives revenues from the sale of products and services in the following geographical regions:

8 months ended Year ended
31 Dacember 201% 30 April 2019
Product Service- Product- Service-

relzted related Tatal refatad refated Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Europe 288 &7 355 499 110 &0%

North America / RoW 180 46 226 43 20 69
Total 468 113 581 548 130 678 r

Ali of the revenues are recognised in line with the Group's accounting policy (Note 1.7) and have been generated from contracts with customers,

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Services in-progress but not et Invoiced result in a contract asset and services paid for in advance but not yet delivered result in a contract liability and are recognised
in ine with the Group's accounting policy (Note 1.7). At the point where completed work is involced the contract asset is derecognised and a corresponding receivable
is cecognised,

Contract assets at the reporting date of £3000 (30 April 2019 nil) were subsequently invoiced.

Sales of Instruments include a service-based warranty which is renewable annually. Revenue assocdiated with the unespired warmranty period and service is deferred
at the reporting date,

8 months ended Year ended

31 December 2019 30 April 2019

Contract iabifities £000 £000

Ar1May 47 57
Recognised in period, relating to amounts invoiced in prior pericds 39 {47

Deferred at period end relating to amounts invoiced in the current period 46 37

At period end 54 47

The Group has applied the practical expedient to disclosure of performance obligations at the reparting date because all contracts with customers have an criginal
expected duration of one year or less,

The standard mredit period allowed for trace receivables is 30 days, afthough this may be extended auch that invoices became payable after completian
of a key milestore.
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3 Costs
8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Cperating costs
Employment costs (Note 5) 3,303 4737
Depreciatian of property, plant and equiprment (Note 12) 432 622
Depredation of right-of-use assets {Note 13) 219 -
(Profifioss on disposal of property, pant and equipment 13 8
Arnortisation of intangile assets {(Mote 11) 240 408
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 11} - 47
Operating lease costs {Note 1.1} - 372
Operating lease costs — shortterm (Note 13) 27 40
Auditor's remuneration (see below) 23 65
Third-party research, development and dinicat study costs 1,949 2445
Patent and legal costs 74 17
Inventories used in research and development. 445 325
Listed company costs 281 463
Forelgn excharige 35 42
Cther operating costs 1,053 1.855
Total operating costs 8,204 11,597
Cost of sales
Inventories 106 122
Other 36 33
Total cost of sales 142 155
Totat costs 8,346 11,752

Operating costs are shown net of product development and patent ¢osts capitalised in accordance with 1AS 38 (Note 11),

Third-party research and development costs indude the cost of dinical shudias (patient enrolment, core lab work etc), key apinion leader research agreements,
instrument design, sdientific advisory board fees and laboratory supphies.

Auditor's remuneration

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 Aprl 2019
£000 £000
Audit services

Statutory audit of parent and consolidated actounts €5 57
Statutory audit of subsidiares 10 8

Naon-audit services
Tex cormpliance services 18 -
Total 93 65

The Group has taken advantage of the exempition from audit for certain subsidiary undertakings. Audit work is still required on the exempt subsidiaries to support the
Group audit opinion and these costs are included with the “Statutory audit of parent and consolidated accounts”
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4  Directors’ emoluments

8 months ended Year ended
11 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Aggregate emolurients for qualfying services Eaki 709
Employer pension contributions {MNote &) 10 10
Sub-total per Directors’ Remuneration Report {page 50) 329 719
Emplayer's National Insurance contributions 36 7N
Total 357 810
The above indludes the following ameunts paid in respect of the highest paid Director;
Emcluments for qualifying services 164 403
Employer's National Insurance contriblitions 21 54
Total 185 457
Disclosures refating to individisal Directors’ emcfuments are given in the Directars’ Remuneration Report on page 50.
5 Employment
Employment costs
The aggregate of employment costs of employees (inchuding Directors) for the perod was:
8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
€000 £000
Wages and salaries 2,830 4764
Sodial security costs 309 467
Pensicn contribution costs {Note 6) 65 101
3,204 4832
Share-based payment charge (Note 19) 333 332
Total staff costs 3,537 5164
Staff costs capitalised 25 product development (2349) 427
Total staff costs in operating costs (Note 3} 3,303 4737

The key management personnel are the Directors and their remuneration i disdesed in Note 4 and within the Oirectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 50 and 51.

Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees (nduding Directars) during the period was:

B8 moenths ended Year ended

31 December 2019 30 April 2019

Number Number

Research and development, engineering, manufacturing, quality control and regulatory 67 50
Commerdal and administrative 20 12
Total 87 62
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6  Pension costs
The Groop incurred UK pansion contribution charges for the period of £44,832 (year ended 30 April 2019: £84,889) for payment directly to personal persion pian
schemes and £19,686 to the ANGLE auto-enrolment pension schesme (year ended 30 April 2019: £13,923).

Contributions to personal pension plan schemes for the period of £5,858 (30 April 2019: £5048} and to the ANGLE auto-enralment pension scheme of £17518
(30 April 2019, £17.714) were payable at the reporting date and are included in trade and other payabies (Note 17).

One Director has recetved contributions under a defined contribution pension scheme (year ended 30 April 201%: one) - see Directors Remuneration Report
on page 50.

7  Net finance income/{costs)

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Finance income
Bank interest 40 28
Finance costs
Lease fabilities finance charges (Note 1.1) {64) -
Other interest charges @ -
Net finance income/(costs) (26) 28
8 Tax
‘The Group undertakes research and development activities, in the UK these activitics quakify for tax relief resulting in research and development tax credits.
8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Current tax:
Ressarch and development tax aredit receivable for the current period {1,553) (1.86%)
Prior year adjustment in respect of research and development tax credit i 70
Deferred tax
Originaticn and reversal of timing differences - -
Tax chargef{eredit) (1,482) (1,93%)
8 menths ended “Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 20119
£000 £000
Profit/(loss) before tax 7.730) {10871)
Caorporation tax:
Tax on profit/loss) at 19.0% (year ended 30 April 2019 19.0%) (1,469} (2.065)
Factors affecting charge:
Permanent differences - 1n
Excess of depredation {over)/under capital allowances {40) 3
Enhanced research and development refief (873) {82%)
Share-basad payments 63 63
Unutilised kasses carried forward 74% 909
Other tax adjustments 17 k3]
Prior year adustment 71 (€]
Tax charge/{credit) (1.482) (1.939)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

8  Tax continued
The rate of tax used in the above recondiliation Is the weighted average rate of tax applicable to the profitiosses of the consolidated entities in thelr respective countries.

The Group has accurmulated losses avallable to crry forward agginst future trading profits of £41.5 mflion (30 Aprif 2019 £365 mifffion). No deferred tax asset has
een recognised in respect of tax iasses since it is uncertain at the reporting date as to when fiture profits will be available against which the unused tax Josses can be
utlised. The: estimated value of the deferred tax asset not recogrised, measured at a welghted sverage rate of 18.9% (30 Aprs) 2019 2005%) & £7.5 milion (30 April
2019 £7.4 millior).

The Finarice (Na 2) Act 2016, which pravides for raductions in the main rate of carporation tax from 20% ta 19% effective from 1 Aprd 2017 and to 17% effective
from 4 April 2000, was substantively enacted on 26 October 2016, However; on 17 March 2020, the rate reduction to 17% was repealed and the rate remains at 19%
with effect from 1 April 2020.

9 Earnings/(loss) per share
The basic and dikrted earnings/(los) per share is calculsted by diiding the after tax loss for the efght month period attributable to the owners of the parent
of £6.2 milion (year ended 30 Aprit 201%: £8.9 million} by the weighted average member of shares in the perind.

In accordance with 145 33 Eamiings per Shars, 1) the “basic” weighted average rember of Ordinary shares ciculation excludes shares held by the Employee Share
Ownership Trust (ESOT) as these are treated as treasury shares and 2) the “diluted” weighted average number of Ordinary shares ealouation considers potentially
dilutive Ordinary shares from insruments that could be converted. Share options are potentially dilutive where the exercise price is less than the average market price
during the period, Due to the losses in both the 2019 reporting pericds, share options are non-diitive for those periods as adding them would have the effect of
reducing the loss per share and therefore the diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share.

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 Aprii 2019
£'000 £000
Profitfoss) for the period atiributable to owners of the parent (6,248) (8942)
Number Number
of shares of shares
Weighted average number of Ordinary thares 163,795,270 136511727
Weighted average number of ESOT shares {113,259) {1132%9)
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares — basic 163,682,011 136,398468
Effect of potential diutive share options - -
Adjusted weighted average number of Ordinary shares — diluted 163,682,014 136398468
Eamings/@ass) per share actributable to owners of the parent
Basic and Diluted {pence per share) (3.82) (656)
10  Investments
The Company has investments in the following subsidiaries:
Class of Holding
Company nama Principal activity share held %
ANGLE Biosclences Incorporated? Medical diagnostics Cormmon 100
ANGLE Europe Limited edical diagnostics Ordinary 100
ANGLE North Americs Incarporated Medica! diagniostics Commen and Preferred 100
ANGLE Technclogy Limited™ Medical diagnostics Ordinary 100
ANGLE Technology Ventures Limited Medical diagnostics Ordipary 100
ANGLE Partnerships Limited® Daormant Ordinary 100
ANGLE Technology Licensing Limited Dermant Ordinary 100
ANGLE Technology LLC Darmant Membership units 100
ANGLE Technology Ventures LLC Dormant Membership units 100
(1) Subsidlary heid drectly
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10 Investments continued
The Group structure is in the process of being further rationalised.

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption from audit in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for ANGLE Technolagy Limited ang
ANGLE Technology Ventures Limited.

ANGLE Biosciences Incorporated i incorporated and registered In British Columbia, Canada. Its registered address is 725 Granville Street, Sulte 400, Vancouver, British
Columbia, V7Y 1G5, Canada.

ANGLE Furope Limited, ANGLE Technclogy Limited, ANGLE Technology Venitures Limited, ANGLE Partnerships Limited and ANGLE Technology Licensing Limited
are Incorporated and registered in England and Wales. Their registered address is 10 Nugent Road, Surrey Research Park, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 7AF, LK.

ANGLE North America incorporated, ANGLE Technology LLC and ANGLE Technology Ventures LLC are registered in the US. ANGLE North America’s registered
address js 1150 15t Avenue, Suite 1010, King of Prussia, PA 19406, USA. ANGLE Technology LLC and ANGLE Technology Ventures LLC registered address is Rees
Broome, PC, 1900 Gallows Road STE 700, Tysons Comer, VA 22182

11 Intangible assets

Acquired
intangible Intellectual Product
Goodwil assets property  developrment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 May 2018 2,207 1,213 809 2385 6614
Additions - - 95 1558 1653
Disposals - - - & 3
Excharge movements - 1 12 79 92
At 30 Aprll 2019 2,207 1,214 918 4019 8356
Additions - - 57 1,053 1,110
Exchange movernents - 2 3) 23 {24)
At 31 December 2019 1,207 1,216 97¢ 5,049 9,442
Amorisation and impairment
At 1 May 2018 - 87 181 758 1,026
Charge for the year - 143 42 220 405
o - - - ® e
Impairment - - 47 - 47
Exchange movements - - 6 42 48
At 30 April 2019 - 230 276 1017 1523
Charge for the period - 9% pi3 119 240
Excharige movements - ! & an )
At 31 December 2019 - 327 299 1,115 1,741
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 2,207 889 671 3,934 7,701
At 30 April 2019 2,207 984 640 3002 6833

The goodwill arose on the acquisition of the assets of Axela Inc. on 1 November 2017. it represents the highly knowledgeable, skiled and spedafised workforce,
cost savings and operating synergies expected to result from having a farger R&D base in North America, the abiity (o access new markets, the advantages of the
combination of Parsortix and HyCEAD Ziplex rechnologies enabling sample-to-answer tests, capturing more of the value chaln and competitive differentiation.
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11 Intangible assets continued

Googwill is deemed to have an indefinite usefu! life, is carried at fair value and s reviewsed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
droumstances irkdicate a potential impairment.

Goodwil acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating units {CGUS) that are expected to banefit from that business combination.
The goodwill has been alacated to the combined Group as a single CGU for the purpeses of the impairment review, since this is the lowest level within the entity

at which management monitors goodwill and the related cash flows are primarily generated from a combined existing and acquired technology produsct offering.

The whale Group Is experted to benefit from the business combination.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been assessed by reference to the fair value less costs 1o sell of the single CGU, which camprises the combined Group. The fair
value of the Group can be estimated by reference to the market capitalisation of AMGLE ple, which at 31 Decernber 2019 stood at £108,3 mitlion, and which after
taking into accourt any possible costs of disposal exceads the carmying amount of the CGU by a considerable margin

“Acquired intangible assets™ also relates to the acquisition of the assets of Axela Inc. and comprises the fair value of the identifiable intangible assets arising at the date
of acquisition. This comprises mainly the technalogy but also sorme modest amounts for customer contracts and refationships and aritical supplier contracts and
redationships. Identifiable intangible assets are amortised over their expected wseful econormic ife.

“Product development” relates to internally generated intangble assets that were capitalised in accordance with I1AS 38 Intangible Assets (Note 1.12). A reglighle
amount refating to other computer software has been combined In the total Capitalised product development costs are directly attributable costs comprising

cost of materials, specialist contractor costs, labour and overheads. Product davelopment costs are amartised over their estimated useful fives cammencing when
the related new product is in commergal production. Development costs not meeting the 1AS 38 criteria for capitalisation continue to be expensed through the
staterment of comprehensive incorme as Incurred, Product development includes a carrying value of £2.6 milfion (30 AprE 2019: £2.3 million) in relation to the

FDA development work,

The carrying value of intangible assets exduding goodwill is reviewed for indications of impalment whenever events or changes in droumstances indicate that the
carrying value may exceed the recoverable armount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and tts “value-in-use”. The key
assumptions 1o assess valug-in-use are the estimated useful econamic fife, future revenues, cash flows and the discount and terminal vahie rate to determine the et
present value of these cash flows. Where fair value less costs to sell exceeds the carrying vakue then no impairment is made. Where fair value fess costs 1o seflis fess
than the carying valuse then an impairmenit charge k made.

Amertisation and impalrment charges are charged to operating costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Labaratory Foctures,
Leasehold Computer equiprment fittings and
impraverments equipment and tooling equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 May 2018 250 65 2,060 86 2,461
Additions 69 35 198 67 369
Disposals - ® (19} - o)
Transfers (ta)from inventaries - - 08 - (18)
Exchange movements - - 30 1 kil
At 30 Aprit 2019 319 92 2,254 154 2,816
Additions 1 20 451 3 475
Disposals - - (13) - (13)
Transfers (to)/from irventories - - 66 - 66
Exchange movements - - 5 {1 4
At 31 December 2019 320 112 2,760 156 3,348
Depreciation
At 1 May 2018 50 26 842 68 986
Charge for the year 51 26 s 24 627
Disposals - @& (1) - (19)
Transfers (o)from inventories - - (131) - 3
Exchange movements - - 0 1 11
At 30 Aprit 2019 101 44 1,231 93 1,469
Charge for the period 42 2 350 18 432
Transfers (to)ffrom inventories - - 59 - &9
Exchange moverments - - ©) m @
At 31 December 2019 143 66 1,521 110 1,840
Net book value
At 31 Decernber 2019 177 46 1,239 46 1,508
At 30 April 2019 218 a8 1020 61 1347

Laboratory equipment indudes a carrying value of £308,207 (30 April 2019: £350,531) in relation to Parsortix instruments being used n-house and on long-term loan
o key opinion leaders, inchuding instruments for the FOA and ovarian cancer chinical studies. Tooling indudes amounts in relation © maoulds for the productionisation of
cassettes, enabling higher volume production, kower pricing and compliance with medical device manufacturing quality requirements.

Depredation charges are charged to operating <osts in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income.
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13 Leases
The Group has lease contracts for office accemmodation and spedialist laboratories. These lease contracts generally have lease terms batween 4 and 10 years,
with earlfer break clauses in some cases. The Group's abfigations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title.

As sat outin Note 1.1, the Group has used the “madified retrospective approach” (0 the imgplementation of IFRS 16 under which a lessee does not have to restate
comparative information, Accordingly, no comparatives are stated in the notes below.

The carrying amounts of right-ofuse assets recognised and the mavements during the period are shown belaw:

Right-of-use assets 31 Decerber 2019
Laboratory and office premises £000
At| May 2019 1,718
Depredation @19
Exchange movements 135
Total 1514

The carrying amourits of lease lizbilities and the movernents during the period are shown below:
31 December 2019

Lease lrabilities £000
At May 2019 1718
Payments in the period (244)
Aceretion of interest 64
Exchange movemnents 1%
Total 1,553
Non-qurrent 1,201
Cyrrent 352
Tota) 1,553

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of £243,798 for the period.

The Group has tw lease contracts that incdude extension andlar termination optians, The Directors exercise significant judgerrent in determining whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exardsed (see Note 1.22) and agreed that it was reasonable to assume that both of these lease
cortracts would be extended beyond the termination option/notice period due to significant fit-out and renovations T create spadialist laboratories and the prohibitive
cost of finding equivalent alternative accommodation.

The Group also holds certain leases with lgase terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value office equipment. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and lease
of low-value assets’ recopgnition exemptions for these leases. Payments made under such leases are expensed on 3 straight-fine hasis and the expense recorded in the
period relating to such leases was £27,351.

Maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments.

Within 1 102 2105 More than

year years years 5 years

£000 £000 €000 £000

Undiscounted lease payments at 31 December 2019 375 432 742 274
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14 Financial risk management
Overview
The Group is exposed, through its normal operatiors, to 2 number of firaridal risks, the most significant of which are aredit, liquidity and irvestrent {market) risks.

The Greup's finandial instruments comprise cash, trade ard other receivables and trade and other payables which arise directly from its operations, and from time
1o time treasury deposits, overdrafts and finance teases,

ft is the Group's policy that no trading in financial derivatives shall be undertaken.

Financial assets

finandial assets of the Group comprise cash at bank and in hand as well as treasury deposits, trade and other receivables (Note 16). It is the Group's pokcy 1o place
surplus cash resources on deposit at both floating and fived term deposit rates of interest with the objective of raintaining 2 balance between accessibility of funds and
competitive rates of return. Fixed term deposits are for varying periods ranging from cne to six months, to the extent that cash fiow can be reasomably predicted.

Financial liabilities

Financial fabifities of the Group in the normal course of business comprise trade and other payables {Note 17), overdraft fadilities and finance leases. It is the Group's
policy to use various financial Instruments with floating and fixed rates of interest with the objective of maintaining a balance between continulty of funding, matching
the Babiity with the use of the asset and finding flexible funding options for a reasonable charge.

The Group currently does not utikse overdraft facilities or finance leases. The Group has no fong-term borrowings or undrawn committed borrowing facikties.

The Group is currently not exposed to any interest rate risk on its financial iabilities.

Liquidity risk

The principal risk to which the Group Is exposed is iquidity risk, which is that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group
seeks to manage Iquidity through planning, forecasting, careful cash ranagement and managing the operational risk.

The nature of the Group’s activities means it finances Its operations through earnings and the ssue of new shares to investors, The princpa! cash requirements are
in relation to funding operations and meeting working capital requirements.

The Compary may ako find it difficult to raise additional capital to develop its business depending on progress with meeting milestones and/or market conditions.
Sensitiity analysis examiring 2 smell percentage increase and decrease in liquidity is of imited use and accordingly no analysis has been shown

Capital risk management

The Group defines the capital that it manages as the Group’s total equity. The Group's objectives when managing capltal are to:

» safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concerr;

+ have available the necessary finandal rescurces to atlow the Group to meet milestones and deliver benefits from its cperational acthities; and

* optimise the retum to investors based on the level of rigk undertaken.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or pay dividends or retum pital 1o shareholders through share buybadks.

The Group’s capital and equity ratios are shown in the table below:

31 Decemnber 2019 30 April 2019

£600 £000

Total equity attributabke to owners of the parent 30,324 19,336
Total assets 34,302 23020
Equity ratio B88.4% 84.0%

Credit risk

Tha Group's credit risk is attributable to its cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables and other receivables. The Group's risk on cash and cash equivalents
Is imited as funds are held in banks with the highest eredii ratings. The risk for trade receivables is that a customer fails to pay for goods or services received and
the Group suffers a financial loss. The Group's objective with respect to aredit risk is to minimise the risk of default by customers, For private and overseas dients
Group policy is to assess the credit quality of each customer and where appropriate seek full or part-paymant in advance.

The maximum exposure to aredit risk at the reporting date is represanted by the carrying amount of the assets desaribed above.
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14 Financial risk management continued
Interest rate risk
Therz is currently no interest rate risk on financial assets and habiites,

Cash held an deposit of £18.1 milion earms interest at fixad rates of between 003% and 0.95% (30 Apa? 201%: £10.2 million 0032 and 140%). Feed rate deposits
of £102 milion at 30 April 2019 were mis-dassified as floating rate deposits.

There is currently o interest rate risk on financial labilities a5 the Group has no interest bearing loans and borrowings,

Alf amounts, exciuding lease fiabiffies, have maturity dates of less than 12 months (30 April 2019: £nif was greater than 12 months). Contractual maturities in respect
aof lease obiigations are disdosed in Note 13 on page 76.

Foreign currency risk
The Group has overseas subsidizries whose income and expanses ara primarlly denominated in US Dollars (USE) and Canadian Doliars {CAD). As 2 result the
Consolidated Finandial Statements will be affected by movements in the USDSterling and CADSterling exchange rates,

The rmajority of the Group's operating revenues and expenses are In Sterling, Euros, USD and CAD: Sales are priced in Sterling, Euros and LISD although the Group
mazy have a Emited amount of revenues denorminated in other currencles. The Group monitors its currency exposures on an ongoing basis and is buillding US and
European Sales which provide a natural hedge. Excess exposure, if any, may be managed for all significant foreign currendies using forward currency contracts or
CUITEnCy SWaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of a 5% variation in currency exchange rates on the profit/{lass) for the period is as follows:

8 months ended 8 moanths ended Year ervded Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2019 30 April 2019 30 Aprit 2019
usp CAD Ush CAD
£000 £000 £000 £000
Profit/flass) - 5% strengthening (100) {86) {167y {109
Profit/los) — 5% weakening 11 95 184 120
Hedging
The Group did not hedge fts financial transactions in the periods ending 31 December 2019 or 30 April 2015.
Currency profile
The Group's finarkial assets and finandal fabifites which are stated at amortised cast fave the foliowing currency profile:
34 December 2019 30 April 2019
Sterling UsD Euro CAD Tota! Sterling UsD tue  CAD Total
o000 000 £000  £000 £460 £060 £000 CO00 €000 £003
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables - 40 188 - 228 28 22 73 - 123
Cash and cash equivalents 18,288 192 10 176 18,766 10421 178 315 96 11010
Total 18,288 232 298 176 18,994 10449 200 388 96 133
Financla) liabllities:
Lease liabilities ~ non-current 692 122 - 387 1.201 - - - - -
Lease Iabiities — current 139 44 - 169 352 - - - - -
Trade and other payables 836 801 188 17 1,942 1.398 294 1311 215 3218
Total 1657 967 138 673 3,495 1,398 254 3 215 3218

Bair values of financial assets and Kabilities
The Directors believe that the fair value and the book value of financial assets and finandal labilities are not materially different. Trade payables and receivables have
a remaining iife of less than ohe year 5o their value on the consolidated statement of financial position is considered 1o be a fair approximation of fair value.
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15 Inventories

31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Raw muaterials and work in progress - 18
Finished goods 788 970
Tl 788 988
16 Trade and other receivables
31 December 2819 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Current assets:
Trade receivables 139 123
Other receivables 167 358
Prepayments and contract assets 321 461
Total 527 942

Other receivables principally comprise recoverable taxes (VAT and HST).

All trade and other receivable accounts are short-term. The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivables to approximate their fair value and
that all the above finandial assets are of good credit quality and no changes have been experienced since initial recognition. Receivables are unsecured and interest free,

unless past their due date when interest may be charged.

The Group has applied the IFRS % smplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, and the expected credit loss rates are based on historical experience that

the risk of loss is low. On this basis any credit loss provision would be negligible and ro provision has been made.

31 December 2019 30 Apri 2019
£000 £000

Age profile of trade receivables:
Not past due 114 41
0~ 30 days past due 24 25
30 - 60 days past due 1 14
> 60 days past due - 43
Total 139 123

The standard aredit period allowed for trade receivables is 30 days, afthough this may be extended such that invoices become payzble after completion of a key milestone.

17 Trade and other payables

31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000

Current Kabilities:
Trade payables 914 1540
Orher taxes and sodal security costs 294 246
Other payables 23 2
Accruaks and contract fabilties 1,194 1,876
Total 2,425 3684

Accruals incude amounts for professional fees, vacation, salary and borwases (Note 23), Contract liabilities include amounts for pre-bifed revenues (Note 2).
All trade and other payables are short-term. The Directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables ane a reasonable approximation of fair value,

The contractual raturity of all the amounis above are within one year of the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

18 Share capital
The share capital of the Comparry is shown below:

31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
172,771,483 (30 April 2019: 143486,522) Ordinary shares of £0.10 each 17,277 14,349

The Company has one dass of Ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.

The Company issued 29,268,294 new Ordinary sharas with a nominal value of £0.10 at an issue price of £0,615 per share in a subscription of shares reallsing gross
proceeds of £180 milion. Shares were admitted to trading on AIM in july 2019,

The Compary issued 16,667 new Qrdinary shares with a nominal value of £0.10 at an exerdise price of £0.385 per share as a resuft of the exerdise of share options
by an empicyee. Shares were admitted to trading on AiM in December 2015.

19 Share.based payments
The key disclosures that anable the user of the Financial Statements fo understand the nature and extent of share-based payment charges through the statement
of comprehensive income in relation to ANGLE ple shares are detailed below,

The share-based payment charge for the Company Employse Share Option Schernes and Long-Term Incertive Plan (LTIF} was £332817 (year ended 30 Apnilt 2013
£331,553)

Company — Share Option Schemes

The Company operates Share Option Schemes as a means of encauraging awnership and aligning interests of staff and external shareholders, The Company also
operates an LTIP for Executive Directors. These are a key part of the remuneration package and granted at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee taking
into account the need ta motivate, retain and recrult high calibre executives and staff.

Each scheme is governed by a specific set of nules and admiristered by the Directors of the Company. Options are generally granted at the market price of the shares
on the date of grant, except for “Bonus Options” and “LTIP Options™. Options graned may have 2 service condition and/or a non-market performance condition
andlor a market performance condition (such as a target share price). If the performance conditions are nat met. the options do not vest and will lapse at the date
specified at the time of grant. Options are forfeited if the employee |eaves the Group before the awerds vest unless the conditions under which they leave are such
that they are considered % be a “good leaver™; in this case same or all of their options may remain exercisable for a fimited perfod of time, subject to any performance
condition having been met, Options lapse if they are not exercised by the date they cease to be exercisable, LTIP Options also have an additional holding period

of up 1o two years such that the minimum performance and holding period is five years.

EMI Share Opticn Scheme and Unapproved Share Option Schemes

The Company has an Enterprise Management Incertive (EMJ) Share Option Scheme and Urapproved Share Option Schemes for the United Kingdom, Canada and the
United States. Share aptions are granted under 2 service condttion andfor a non-market perfarmance condition and/er a rnarket performance condition. Options cease
to be exercisable after ten years from the date of grant or on an earlier specified date.

The movement in the number of employee share options is set out below:

31 December 2019 31 December 2019 30 April 2019 30 April 2019

Number Weighted Number Weighted

of share average of share average

options exarcise options exardise
# price (9 # price (O

Quistanding at 1 May 13,795,806 05432 10,325,806 06235

During the period:

Granted - - 4345000 03935
Exerdsed {16,667 0.3850 - -
Forfeitedtzpsed {883,333} 04221 {&75,000) 07477
Qutstanding at period end 12,895,806 0.5517 13795806 05432
Capable of being exercised at period end 4,715,805 0.4640 3497475 04699

The options cutstanding at 31 December 2019 had a weighted average remaining contractual iife of five years and ten months (30 Apnit 2019: six years and
ning months).
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19 Share-based payments continued

The Company uses a Trinomial option pricing mode! as the basls to deterrnine the falr value of the Company's share options.

The foliowing assumptions are used in the model to determine the fair value of share opticns at the respective date of grant that are still cutstanding at

31 December 2019

Share price life of Cutstanding

Exercise at date Expected Risk free option Expected Vesting share

Date of grant price (£) of grent (£) volatility interest rate (years) dividends conditions options
30 August 2071 02575 02575 45.00% 1.06% 35 Nil ) 1,189,353
18 Novernber 2011 Q07550 07550 40.00% 062% 25 Nil @ 1197315
5 Nowember 2012 02575 03750 40,00% 03s% 30 Ni (n 380647
5 Novermnber 2012 0.7550 03750 4000% 0.23% 20 Nil (03] 312,685
11 Decamber 2013 07300 07300 40002 097% 30 N 3 450,000
18 July 2014 07500 07506 40.00% 1.40% 30 Nil “ 40,000
10 November 2014 08625 08625 4000% 153% 50 Nil (&) 1,500,000
10 November 2014 0.8625 08625 40.00% 103% 30 Nl [G)] 20,000
31 March 2015 0.8625 07850 40.00% 067% 30 Nil & 390,000
12 November 2015 01000 07550 4000% 0.68% 20 Nil ©) 120,806
1 March 2016 05650 05650 40.00% 042% 30 Nit ) 150,000
25 November 2016 06450 05450 40.00% 0.30% 30 Nil [§)] 1,100,000
25 November 2016 06450 06450 40.00% 030% 30 Nit (6] 1,500,000
1 Movemnber 2017 04000 04000 40.00% 057% 30 Nil 8 500,000
1 Novemnber 2017 04000 04000 40,00% 057% 30 Nit 4 450,000
16 November 2017 04025 04025 40.00% 055% 30 Nil () 100,000
20 August 2018 04900 04900 40.00% 077% 30 Nt @) 100000
20 Decernber 2018 03850 0.3850 40.00% 0.75% 30 Nil &) 1355000
20 Decernber 2018 03850 03850 40.00% 0.75% 30 Ni [ 2,000,000
Total 12,895,806

Expecied volatikty was derived from cbservation of the volatility of quoted shares in similar sectors to the Company and cbiservation of the historic volatility of the
Comgpany’s shares, adjusted for any unusual historic events and expected changes to future volatility. The expected life used in the mode! is based on management’s

best estimate taking into account the effects of non-transfarabifity, axercise restrictions, behavioural conditlons and expectad firture events.

‘The share options issued were subject to both performance and service (employment) conditions:

M

@

&
@
&)
(€
@
@

&)

Vesting is subject 1o ) a performance conditian that the Comparty's share price together with any dividend payments has risen by at least 50% at sorme point
from the market price on 30 August 2011, and b) a service condition with aptions vesting over a three-year period. These conditions have been met and the
options are fully vested and capable of exercise.

Vesting is subject 10 a) the performance conditions that § the Compary’s share price must have increased to £200 at some point since the date of grant and

(i) the Parsortix separation device nwst have been demonstrated to successfully capture circulating tumour cells from cancer patient blood (this condition has
been met), and b} a service candition with options vesting over a three-year period (this condition has been met).

Vesting is subject to 2) spedific performance conditions for senior management and b) a service condition with options vesting over 2 three-year period.

Viesting is subject to a service condition with cptions vesting over a period up to three years.

Vesting is subject to the performance conditions that a) the Company's share price must have increased to £2.00, £2.25, £2.50 and £2.75 at some point since
the date of grant for each quarter of the alloation and b) a time/event condition with cptions vesting after five years or on the sale of the Parsoribx business,
whichever is earkiest.

Options were granted as Bonus Options in accordance with the Remuneration Committee’s discretion to settle an element of the Annual Bonus in the form

of share options. The Bonus Options vest immediately and are exercisable at par value.

Vesting is subject to a) a performance condition that the Company's share price has risen by at least 100% at some point from the market price on 25 November
2016, and b) a service condition with options vesting over a three-year period.

Veesting Is subject to a) a performznce condition that the Company's share price has risen by at feast 100% at some paint from the market price an 1 November
2017 (this condition has been met), and b) a service condition with options vesting over a three-year period.

Vesting is subject to a performance condition that the Company’s share price has risen 10 at least £1.056 on 21 December 2021,

Oniee all performance andfor service conditions have been met the employee becomes unconditioraly entitled to the options and they are capable of exercise.
Based on these performance andfor service conditions a number of options have vested and become capable of exarndse. 16,567 options were exerdised in the perdod
(year ended 30 April 2019 ril).
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19 Share-based payments continued

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Tre Compary has 2 Long-Term Incentive Plan {TIP) for Exeative Diractors. Disdosures for an award made during the prior year are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report o pages 50 and 51.

The Comparyy usas a Trinomial option priting model as the basis to determine the fair value of the Company's LTIF Options.

The following assumnptions are used in the modef 1o detarmine the fir value of LTIP Options at the respective date of grant that are stil outstanding at
31 December 201%:

Expected Barrier
Share price ke of (Performance  Outstanding
Exercise at date Expectsd Risk free aptian Expected condition} mP
Date of grant price (£} of grant (f) volatifity  interest raee {years) dividends &) Gptions
20 Derember 2018 0,0000 03850 4000% 088% 50 Nil 1056 1,200000
X Decermber 2018 0.0000 0.3850 4000% 058% 50 Nil 1434 1,800000
20 December 2018 0.0000 0.3850 4000% 088% 50 Nil 2063 3000000
Total 6,000,000

20 ESOT shares

31 December 2019 30 Apri 2019
£000 £000
At perigd end 102 102

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) shares are ANGLE ple shares held by the ANGLE Employee Trust. At 31 December 2019 the Trust held 113,259 shares
(30 April 2019: 113,259 shares). The market value of these shares at 31 December 2019 was £71,013 (30 April 201%: £86,077). Shares purchased by the ANGLE
ESOT are used 1o assist In meating the obligations under employee remuneration schemes.

21 Contingent liabitities

Geometics Limited was sold to ARM Holdings pk in December 2013, As is normal for this type of transaction, the Sale and Purchase Agreement contained

varipus warranties given by the sellers to the buyer and the warrantors have indernnified the buyer in respect of any daims against Geomerics Limited in connection
with the business prior to acquisition. The warranties comprise a general warranty daim period of two years (now expired), an IP warranty daim period of four years
(now expired) and a fundamentalftax warranty ¢laim period of seven years (expires December 2020). In the unlikely event a daim is made and determined as valid then
ary amounts weuld be recoverable from the warrantors up to a capped amount.

22  Guarantees and other financial commitments
The Group has a number of retalners with professiona! advisors which can be terminated on short notice periods.

During the period, the Group entared into ertain commitrments in refation to the development of the Parsortix Gincer diagnastic product in aggregate these gave rise
ta financial commitments of up to £1.0 milion over one year (30 Apnit 201%: £1.7 milfon).

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption from audit in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for ANGLE Technology Limited and
ANGLE Tedhnology Ventures Limited. ANGLE ple has provided a statutory guarantee over these subsidiaries’ labifities in accordance with section 479C of the
Cornpanies Act 2006,

Other than these, the Group has no contractual commitments to provide financial support 1o its investments.
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23 Related party transactions
Transactions between subsidiaries within the Group are not disclosed as they are diminated on consofidation.

Directors' interests — related party interests and transactions

Apart from the interests disdosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 50 and 51 and bekow. none of the Directors had any interest at any time during
the period ended 31 December 2019 in the share apital of the Company or its subsidiaries.

At the reporting date, £nil of remuneration (30 April 2019 £164.227) was due to Andrew Newland and £nil of remuneration (30 April 2019: £104,508) was due

1o [an Griffiths.

Brian Howlett entered into 2 consultancy contract with effect from 7 January 2013 to provide spedialist cormmerdial advice outside of his normal Boand responsibilities.
Consultancy fees of £n were paid in the period to Brian Howilett under this contract (year ended 30 April 2019: £nil).

SoBold Limited provides digital marketing services and website management to ANGLE with fees in the pericd of £25450 {year ended 30 Aprii 201%: £37850)

and a babnce of £7,440 (30 April 2019: £3720) due at the reporting date. Andrew Newland's son is the managing director and a main sharehoider of SoBold Limited.
The relationship is managed by Business Development Director, Michael O'Brien.

No other Director had a material interast in 2 contract, other than a service contract, with the Company or its subsidiaries, or investrnents during the period.

24 Post reporting date event

As reported in the Chairman's Statement and eksewhere, the Company has had some short-term negative impacts from government lock downs associated

with COVID-19. Aithough this has created sorne uncertainty and a need to adapt the operating modd it is not expected to have any significant long-term impact
on the Company,
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2019

31 December 2019 30 April 2019
MNote £000 £000
Assets
Irvvestment in subsidiaries C3 4,476 4,143
Other recefvables C4 34,560 32635
Cash and cash aquivalents 17,695 9,438
Total assets 56,731 46216
Equicy
Share capital <5 17,277 14349
Share premium 67,272 53273
Share-based payments reserve 1,495 1243
Retained sarmings 29,213) (22.649)
Equity ateribucable to owners 56,731 46,216

The Company's Joss and total comprehensive loss for the eight month period to 31 December 2019 were £6,743,487 (year ended 30 April 2019: £978700).
The Financial Statements on pages 84 to 87 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 24 June 2020 and signed on #ts behalf by

fo s AL

lan F Griffiths Andrew D W Newland

Dhirector Director

Registered Mo. 04985171
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the period ended 31 December 2019

8 months ended Year ended
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£'000 £000
Operating activiter
Profit/jess) before tax (6,745) (979)
Adpstments fors
Impairment of loans 6,745 979
Net cash fromi{used in} operations - -
Investing activities
Loans 1o subsidiaries {8,664) {6,988)
Net cash from/(used i) investing activities {8,664) {8,988)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of share capital 16,921 11,996
Net cash fromf{used In) finanding activities 16,921 1199
Net increasel/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,257 3,008
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 9,438 6,430
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17,695 9,438
a []
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the period ended 31 December 2019
Equity attributable to owners
Share-based
Share Share payments Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2018 11,709 43,449 1,049 (21,808) 34,399
For the year to 30 April 2019
Profitiloss) for the year (979) G79)
Issue of shares {net of costs) 2640 5824 12464
Share-based payments 332 332
Released on forfeiture (138) 138 -
At 30 Aprii 2019 14,349 53,273 1,243 (22,649) 46,216
For the 8 morth periad to 31 December 2019
Profitilosg for the period {6.745) (6745)
lssug of shares (net of costs) 2928 13999 16927
Share-based payments 333 333
Released an forfeiture (78} 78 -
Rekeased on exercise 3 3 -
At 31 December 2019 17,277 67,272 1,495 (29.313) 56,731
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2019

€1 Accounting policies

€1.1 Basls of preparation

The Parent Comparny Finandal Staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Rinandal Reporting Standards (FRS) inissue that have been endorsed
by the EU for the eight manth period ended 31 Decarmber 2019, They have also been prepared in accordance with those parts of the Comipanies Act 2006 that apply
to companies reporting under (FRS.

The accounting polides of the Company which have been applied consistently throughout the period are the same as those of the Group and are prasented on pages
5910 67.

C1.2Presentation of Financial Statements

The finandal information, in the form of the primary statements contained in this repor, Is presentad in accordance with internationat Accounting Standard
(IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

CA.3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Accounting for Intercompany loans

in accordance with IFRS 9, the Company is required to make an assessment of expected credit fosses. Having considered the quantum and probabiity of credit
losses expected to arise across a number of scenarios, an additional adjustrment for expected cradit loss of £6.7 million (year ended 30 April 2019: £1.0 million) was
recognised in the reporting period,

The calautation of the allowance for ffetime expected credit ksses requires a significant degree of estimation and judgement, in particular i determining the probability
weighted fikely outcome for each scenario considered to determine the expected eredit foss in each scenario. Should the assumptions in the business plan vary, this
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the intercompany loars in following periads,

C1.4 Investments

Irvestrents i subsidfaries are stated at cost pilus capital contribution to the subsidiary in respect of share-based payments, less any provision far impaimnent.

The Comparyy considers the recoverabliity of loans and investrmerits o an annual basis. Where thene is an indication that the carmying value exceeds the recoverable

amournt an impairment review will be undertaken and a prevision for impairment made when corsidered necessary, An impairment kss is recognised in the profit and
loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

C2 Total comprehensive income
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Parert Company’s Staternert of Comprehensive Income has nat been induded in these Financial
Statements. The total comprehersive loss for the period was £6,745,487 (ysar ended 30 April 2019: £978,700).

The only ernployees of the Cornparyy are the Directors: the remuneration of the Directors is borne by Group subsidiary undertakings. Full detalls of thelr remuneration
aan be found in the Cirectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 50 and 5T,

Administrative expenses, including auditor's remuneration, are borme by other Group companies,
€3 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

31 December 2019 30 Apr 2019
£000 €000

Cost
At May 4,443 3an
Share-based payments charge 333 332
At periad end 4,476 4,143

Detalks of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings at 31 Decernber 2019 are shown in Note 10 to the Consolidatad Financial Statements along with other interssts held
indirectly through subsidiary undertaldngs,
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C4 Other receivables

31 December 2015 30 April 2019
£000 £000
Non-current assets: Amownts due from Group undertakings 34,554 32635
Current assets: issued share pital receivable 6 -
Total 34,560 32635
31 December 2019 30 April 2019
Non-current assets £000 £000
Amounts due from Group undertakings
Cost
At 1 May 57,309 47.853
Additions/(repayments) 8,664 9456
At period end 65,973 57309
Provision
At1 May 24,674 23695
Impairment charge 6,745 979
At period end 31,419 24674
Net book value
At period end 34,554 32635
At 1 May 32,635 24,158

The Company prowides a centralised treasury function to trading subsidiaries through ANGLE Technology Limited. The amounts due from Group undertakings are
interest free, unsecured and have no fixed date of repayment. Amounts due from Group undertakings are due on demand but are not expected to be recovered
within 12 months.

C5 Share capital

The share capital of the Company Is shown below:

31 December 2019 30 April 2019
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
172771483 (30 April 2019 143486.522) Crdinary shares of £0.10 each 17,277 14,349

Details of the Comparry's share capital and changes In its Issued share capital n be found in Note 18 to the Consciidated Financial Staterments on page 80.
Details of the Compary’s share options schemes can be found in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 80 to 82

Cé6 Related party transactions
Group transactions and balances
Details of balances owed by ANGLE Technology Limited are given in Note C4 above.

Directors’ interests — related party interests and transactions
Details are given in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 83.

C7 Post reperting date event
Detaiks are given in Note 24 to the Consolidated Fnanciat Staternents on page 83.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Directors: Registered Cffice

{ F Griffiths (Finance Directar} 10 Nugert Road

) Groen (Non-executive Director) Surrey Research Park
B Howlett (Non-executive Director) Guildford

A D W Newland (Chief Executive) GU2Z 7TAF

G R Selvey (Chalrman)

24 June 2020

Dear Sharcholder

Annual General Meeting
“ou will find Induded with this document a Notlce corvering e Aruugl Geren of Meeting (U “Meetitg”) of the Campany for 200 pm on Thursday 27 August 2020
at which the following resohstions will be proposed;
1. Resolution T to receive the Annual Report and Accounts of the Company for the eight month period ended 31 Decernber 2019,
3 Resolution 2 to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the eight month period ended 31 Detember 2019 set out on pages 50 and 51 of the Annual Report.
Mote: this is an advisory vote only.
Resolution 3 to re-appoint the auditors of the Cornpary, RSM UK Audit LLF, and authorise the Directors to determine their level of remuneration.
4. Resolution 4 to grant the Directors authority to allot unissued shares in the capital of the Compary up 1o an aggregate nominal amount of £5,759.883.
Note: the Direciors wish to renew their authorisations with respect to the allotment of new shares,
5. Resolution 5 to disapply statutory pre-emption rights,

Nate: the Directors wish to renew their autharisations for the disapplication of the statutory pre-emption rights in respect of the allotment of new shares
pursuant 1o rights issues or atherwise for cash, as detailed in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, to enable the Directors to take advantage of opporiunities
as they arise without the need for further shareholder approval.

6. Resolution § to grant the Directors authority to purchase issued shares in the capital of the Company up to an aggregate nominal arnount of £1,727.965.

Note: whilst the Directors have no present intention of purchasing the Comparty's shiat es, the Directors are seeking authorisation as they wish to have the flescbility
10 do 50 if this was generzlly in the best interests of the shareholders and (exzept in the case of purchases intended o satisty obligations under share schernes) the
expected effect of the purchase woukl be to increase earnings per share of the remaining shares,

The authorities requested in ftems 4, 5 and 6 will expira at the 2021 Annual General Meeting o, if eariier; 31 August 2021.

Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Due 10 the unprecedented situation with COVID-19 and in ine with the UK Governments measures to maintain sodal distanding, the Board has taken the degision
ta hold this vear's Meeting as a "dosed meeting” with the Chief Executive and Finance Director attending in person and the rest of the Board attending remotely.
Shareholders will not be permitted to attend the Meeting in person. it will not be possible for shareholders to vote during the Meseting and shareholders are therefore
strongly encouraged to submit their Proxy Votes online via wwwsignalshares cam or CREST where applicable. The Meeting will be streamed online and shareholders
will be able to watch the AGM remotaly via an electronic platform, detalls of which are provided in the Natice.

Business Update Presentation

The Board remains keen to encourage engagement with shareholders. The Company will provide 2 business update presentation after the formalities of the AGM are
concluded, Shareholders ara inwited to submit questions in advance of the AGM, which the Board will aim to answer during the business update presentaticn. While
it may not be possible to answer individual questions, questions will be grouped into key themes and we will endeavour to answer these during the presentation or as
part of coancluding matters. Questions should be submitied to investor@angleple.com before 5:00pm on Wadnesday 26 August 2020.

Detatls of howr to join the Meeting and the business update presentation via an elecironic platform are provided on page 92

Action to be taken

Shareholders should registar thelr Proxy Viote either online at wwwisignalshares.corm or through CREST as cutkned in the Notes to the Notice of Annual General
Mexting as socn as possible, but in ary event no later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting, Shares he!d in uncertificated form (e, in CREST) may be
voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in ac¢ondanice with the procedurgs set out in the CREST manual,

Recommendation
Your Directors consider the resolutions to be proposed at the Annua) General Meeting to be in the best irterests of the Compary and its shareholders. Accordingly,
the Directars unanimously recommiend shareholders to vote in favour of all the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Mesting.

r Selvey,
Chalrman

88 ANGLE pic Annual Report and Accounts
For the eight month perind ended 31 December 2019



Netice of Annuzl General Meeting

{Company number 04985171)

NOTICE S HEREBY GIVEN that the seventeenth ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of ANGLE pk ("the Company®) will be held at 200 pm on Thursday
27 August 2020 at ANGLE plc, 10 Nugent Road, Surrey Research Park, Guitdford GU2 7AF for the purpase of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following
resolutions of which the resolutions rumbered 1 through 4 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions numbered 5 and 6 will be proposed as special
resolitions. The meeting will be held as a "dosed meeting' and shareholders will not be permitted to attend in person Please refer to the notes to this MNotice for
details of how to watch the meeting online.

Crdinary Business
1. TO receive the Accounts of the Company for the eight month period ended 31 Decemnber 2015, and the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon

2 TO approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report as set out on pages 50 and 51 of the Annua! Report for the eight month period ended 31 Decamber 2019,
Noter this i an advisory vote only.

3. TO re-appaint RSM UK Audit LLP as auditors of the Company to hold office from the condusion of this Meeting until the conclusion of the next annwal general
meeting of the Compary at which accounts are hid and to authorise the Oirectors to determine their remuneration.

Special Business

4. THAT, for the purpases of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act™), the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised
to exarcise all pawers of the Company to aliot shares in the Compary, or grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company; up to
an aggregate nominal amount of £5,759,883 PROVIDED that this authority shall explre (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general
meeting) at the earfier of the condusion of the next Annual Generat Meeting of the Company or on 31 August 2021 EXCEPT that the Compary may, before
such expiry, mzke an cffer or agreement which woukd or might require shares to be allotted or the granting of rights to subsaribe for; or convert any security into,
shares in the Company aftar such expiry and the Directors may allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the Company
in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred herebry had not expired. This authority shall replace any exdsting like authority which is
hereby revoked with immediate effect.

5. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of Resalution 4, the Directors be and they are hereby generally empowered, in addition to all exdsting
authorities, pursuant to section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities {within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred
by Resolution 4 above as If section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to:

@) the aliotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of equity securities apen for acceptance for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of equity
securities on the register of members of the Company on a date fixed by the Directors in propartion {as nearly as may be) to their respective holdings of
such sequrities or in accordance with the rights attached thereto but SUBJECT to such exclusions, variations or other ammangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient to deal with:

i fractional entilements;

ii. directions from any holders of shares 1o deal in some other manner with their respective entitlements;
ii.  legal or practical problems arising in any oversess territory;

iv. the requirements of any regulatory body or stack exchange; or

v otherwise howsoever:

{b) the allotment of equity securities {otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph {3) abowe} up to an aggregate nominal ameunt of £1,727,965,

and the power hereby conferred shall expire {unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on 31 August 2021 or at the
condusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {whichever first occurs) EXCEPT that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or
agreernent which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer
or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

6. THAT, the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditiorally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make market purchases {within the
meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares of £0.10 each in the capiial of the Company provided that:

& the maxémum number of Ordinary shares that rmay be purchased is 17,279,648 (representing approximately 10% of the Company's issued share apital at the
date of this notice);

(b) the minimum price {exolusive of expenses) which may be paid for each Ordinary share i £0.1G;

© the maximum prics (exdusive of expenses) which may be paid for each Ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations of an Ordinary share of the Company taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Offidal List for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on whith the Ordinary share is contracted to be purchased,

and the powar hereby conferred shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Compary in general meeting) on 31 August 2021 or at the
condusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Comparry (whichever first occurs) EXCEPT that the Company may, before such expiry, enter into one or
more contracts to purchase Ordinary shares under which such purchases may be completed or executed whelly or partly after the expiry of this authority and
may make 3 purchase of Ordinary shares in pursuance of any such contract or contracts.

Registered Office By Order of the Board

10 Nugent Road

Surrey Research Park /)é”‘\ Gt
Gulldford tan F Griffiths

GU2 7AF Company Secretary

Dated 24 June 2020

Notes:

1. Under the Articles of Assodiation of the Company, a rember of the Company entitled 1o attend and vote at the Annual General Maeting may appoint one or
more proxies to vote instead of him. For the reasons given in the Chairman's letter that accompanies this iNotice, under the aurrent UK Govermiment measures in
relation to the Covonavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, shareholders and proxies will not be llewed 1o attend the Anmual General Meeting and shareholders are not
able to appoint a praxy other than the Chairman of the Meeting,

2 Tobe vall, an 2ppointment of proxy must be registered with or retumed to the Comparnys Registrars at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting
or any adjourned meeting by one of the following methods:

- by logging on to wwwisignakhares.com and foliowing the instructions:

* you may request a hard copy Form of Proxy directly from the registrars, Link Asset Services, on Tel: 0371 664 0300. Cals are charged at the standard geographic
rate ard will vary by provider. Calis outside the United Kingdomn will be charged at the applicable intemational rate. Link Asset Services are open between 0500
- 17:30, Monday to Friday exciuding public holidays in England and Wales. The Form of Proxy in hard copy duly executed, topether with the power of attomey
or other authority (f ary) under which it is signed {or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority) must be depesited at the Cornpary’s registrars, Link
Asset Services, PXS, 34 Betkenham Road, Bedkenham, Kent BR3 4TU. If a hard copy Form of Proxy is used 1o appoint more than one proxy, the Form of Praxy
should be pholocopied and completed for each proxy holder and the proxy holder's name should be written on the Forrn of Proxy together with the number
of shares in relation to which the proxy is authorised 1o act, The box on the Formn of Praxy must akso be ticked to indicate that the proxy instruction is one of
muttiple instructions being giver; or

- in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set outin Note 5
of this documnent.

3. While appointrent of a proxy electronically or completing and returning a Form of Proxy would generally net stop you from attending the Annual General
Meeting and voting in person should you so wish, under the current UK Government measures in relation ta the Coronavitus (COVID-19} pandemic, sharsholders
will hot be allowed to attend the Annual General Meeting, vote in person ar appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the Meeting.

4, Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regutations 2001, the Company has specified that. 1o be entitled to vote at the Meeting (and for the
purposa of determining the number of votes they may cast), members must be entered on the Company’s register of members at dose of business on 25 August
2020, Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after thet time shall be disregarded in detenmining the rights of any person to vote at the Meeting.

5 Toappoint a proxy or to give or amend an instruction {o a previously appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message must be received by the issuer’s
agent RA10 by at least 48 hours befors the time of the Meeting or any adjourned meeting. For this purpose, the thme of receipt will be taken to be the time (s
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the message. After this
time arty change of instructions to a proxy appointed through CREST should be communkcated 1o the proxy by other means. EUI does not make available special
pracedures in CREST for any particular messages, therefore normal systern timings and limitations will apply in refation to the input of CREST proxy instructions.
CREST Personal Members or other CREST spansored members, and those CREST Members who have appointed voting service provider(s) should contact their
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) for assistance with appointing proxies via CREST. For furtber information on CREST procedures, limitations and
systesm timings please refer 1o the CREST Manual. We may treat as invalid a proxy appointment sent by CREST in the crcumstances set out in Regulations 35(5)
{8) of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001. In any case your Proxy Vote must ba received by the Comparyy's registrars no later than at least 48 hours
before the time of the Meeting or any adjourned meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Expianatory Notes:

Resolution 7: Report and Accounts

The Directors are required to present to the Meeting the audited accounts and the reports of the Directors and the auditars for the eight month period ended
31 December 2019,

Resolution X: Directors’ Remuneration Report
Trés resohtion seeks approval of the Cirectors’ Reruneration Report for the eight month period ended 31 December 2019, The full text of the Directors’
Remuneration Report is contained on pages 50 and 51 of the Cornpany’s Annual Report.

This is an advisory vote and no enitlement to remuneration for the eight month period ended 31 December 2019 is conditional on the resohrtion being passed.

Resolution 3: Re-appointment of auditors

The Company is required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which accounts are lakd before the Company, to hold office until the end of the next such
meeting, This resclution proposes the appointrment and, in accardance with standard practice, gives authority 10 the Directors to determine the remuneration to be
paid to the auditors.

Resolution 4: Directors’ authority to allot shares

Section 551 of the Act provides that the directors of a company may not allot shares (or grant rights to subsaribe for shares or to convert any security into shares)
in 2 company ualess they have been gven prior authorisation for the proposed allotment by ordinary reschution of the Comipany’s shareholders or by the Artides of
Assodation of a company.

Accordingly, this resolution seeks to grant a new authority under section 557 of the Act to authorise the Directors to allot shares in the Comparny or grant rights
to subseribe for, o convert any securities INto, shares of the Company and will expire on 31 August 2021 or at the condusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company following the passing of this resolution, whichever occurs first.

If passed, Resolution 4 would give the Directors authority to allet shares or grant rights to subsaribe for; or convert any securkty into, shares in the Company up toa
mandrourn nominal value of £5,759,883 representing approximately one-third of the Campany's nominal value of the issued share capital at the date of this notice.

Resolution 5: Disapplication of pre-emption rights

Under section 561(1) of the Act, if the Directors wish to allot any of the unissued shares or grant rights over shares for cash (other than pursuant to an employee
share scheme) they must in the first instance offer them 1o existing shareholders in propartion to their holdings. There may be occasions, however, when the Directors
will need the flaxibility 1o finance business oppertunities by the issue of shares without a pre-emptive offer to exdsting sharehotders. This cannot be done under the Act
unless the sharehalders have first waived their pre-emption rights.

Resolution 5 empowers the Directors to allot equity securities for cash other than in accordance with the statutory pre-emption rights in respect of {) rights issues and
similar offerings, where difficutties arise in offering shares to certain overseas shareholders, and in relation to fractional entitlements and certain other technical matters
and (i} generally in respect of Ordinary shares up to a maxdmum noming! value of £1,727.965, representing approximately 10% of the Company’s nominal value of the
issied share capital at the date of this notice. This is profosed as a spedial resclution.

Resolution 6: Autharity for market purchase

Resohution & will permit the Company 10 purchase up to 17,279,648 Ordinary shares of £0.10 each &pprosdrnately 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
this notice) through the market subject to the pricing limits set out in the resclution and shall expire {unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company
in general meeting) on 31 August 2021 or at the condusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs). This is proposed as a
special resolution.

ANGLE ple Anaual Report and Actounts 9
For the eight months ended 31 December 2019



Notice of Annual General Meeting

General Information for Shareholders
In respect of the Annual General Meeting

Time of the Meeting
The AGM will start promptly at 200 pm on Thursday 27 August 2020,

The venue
The Mesting will be held at ANGLE pk, 10 Nugent Road, Surrey Research Park, Gulldford, Surrey, GU2 7AF

Attendance
Due to the unprecedented situation with COVID-19 and in line with Government’s measures o maintain social distancing, the AGM wil be held 25 2 “dosed meeting”
and shareholders will not be permitted to join the AGM i persan. Sharehoklers attempting to attend the AGM will be refused admission

Shareholders are asked to exarcise their votes by submitting their proxy as set out in the Notice of AGM above. Al shareholders are strongly recornmended to vote
efectronically at wwwaignalshares.com as your vote will automatially be counted.

Viewing the Meeting
Shareholders can join and view the AGM remotely and the Compary will provide 2 business update presentation after the formalities of the AGM are concluded.

A live webcast of the AGM may be accessed via https/iarkadin-eventwebex.comfarkadin-event/onstage/g php?MTID=eSec2c Sh7cIedeb 350876ca136eb2e56
Please register in advance and 'og on to the webeast approsimalely 5 minutes before 200pm on Thursday 27 August 2020.

Alternatively, the webxast can be accessed by telephone and istened to by calling
United Kingdom Toll-Free: 08003589473

United Kingdom Tol: +44 3333000804

PIN: S5B174213#

URL for international dial in numberx
https:fevents-fip.arkadincomievidocsNE_W2_TF_Events _International Accass_List pdf

The Board remains keen 1o encourage angagement with our sharehokers. Sharehoiders are invited 10 submit questicns in advance of the AGM, which the Board wili
aim to answer during the business update presentation. While it may not be possitle to answer individual questicns, questions will be grouped inte key themes and we
will endeavour to answer these during the presentation or as part of conduding matters. Questions should be submitted to investor@angleplecom before 5:00pm on
Wednesday 26 August 2020.

92 ANGLE ple Annual Repart and Accounts
For the eight manth period ended 37 December 2017



Additional Information

Explanation of Frequently Used Terms

Term Explanation

Antbody A protein made by white blood cells n response 1o an antigen (a taxin or foreign substance). Each antibody can bind
to only one spedfic antigen. The purpose of this binding is to help destroy the antigen

Antigen Proteins that can be used as markers in laboratory tests to identify cancerous and normal tissues or cells

ARNT The androgen receptor {AR) has been proposed as a mechanism of therapeutic resistance to AR signalling (ARS)
inhibitors, Androgen receptor variant 7 (AR-V7) participates in regulating prostate cancer cell proliferation and gene
expression and i comelated with drug resistance. Patients with kow-risk disease should receive taxanes if they are ARV7+
or ARS Inhibitors if they are ARV7-

AUC-ROC “The area under the curve (AUC) for a receiver operating characteristic (ROC) plet, 2 plot of 1-specificity on the x-ads
vs. the sensitivity on the y-axis at each possible threshold for a test’s results, is a measure of a diagnostic test’s accuracy.
The accuracy of the test depands on how well the test separates the tweo groups being compared into those with the
outcome (sensitivity] and those without the owtcome (specificity} in question. An AUC of 1 (100%) represents a perfect
test while an AUC of 0.5 (50%) represents a worthless test. The traditional academic dlassification systern for AUC-ROCs
is 90% to 100% = excellent; 80% to $0% = good; 70% to 80% = fair; 60% to 70% = poor; 50% to 60% = fail Source:
University of Cambridge MRC Unit httpsfimaging mre cbucamacukfstatswikiFAQ/roc

Berign Not cancerous. Benign tumours may grow larger but do not spread to other parts of the body. Alse clled non-malignant

Blomarker A biclogical molecule found in blood, other body fluids, or tissues that is a sign of a normal or abnormal process,
or of a condition or disease. A biomarker may be used to see how a disease is developing or how well the body
responds to a treatment for a disease or condition. Also alled molecular marker and signature molecule

Biopsy Process by which cancer cells are removed from the tumour for molecular analysis

Cancer A term for diseases in which abnormal cells divide without conirol and can invade nearby tissues. Cancer cells can also
spread to other parts of the body through the blood and lymph systems

Capture Process for capturing target celis from sample

Capture efficiency Proportion of target cells captured

Cardnogen Any substance that is directly ifvolved in causing cancer

CD4s The CD45 antibody recognises the human CD45 antigen, also known as the leukocyte common antigen. WBC are
CD45+ whereas CTCs are CD45-. Staining with CD45 often used as a negative confirmation that CTCs are not WBC

Cel® In biclogy, the smallest unit that can five on its own and that rnakes up all iving organisms and the tissues of the body.
The human body has more than 30 trifion cells

Cell cutture See cultured cells

Cel-free DINA Genomic DNA found in the plasma

Cell labedling Technique involving the staining of target cells with fluorescent andfor chromogenic markers for cell identification

Cell lines Cultured cells

CE Mark Regulatory authorisation for the marketing and sale of products for elinical use in the European Urion. The CE marking
is the manufacturer’s dedaration, following appropriate assessment by a CE Notified Body, that the product meets the
requiremnents of the applicable EC directives

Chemotherapy The treatment of cancer by chemicals (drugs), In cancer Gare the term usually means treatment with drugs that destroy
cancer cells or stop them from growing

Cinculating tumor cell Cancer celi that is circulating in the patient’s biocd

CTC Craukating tumor cell

CTC labelling CTCs are often labelled with three markers and are formalty identified as CTCs if they are CK+, CD45- DAP+

CLIA Laboratory The Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (CLIA) of 1988 are federal regulatory standards that apply to
all dinical laboratory testing performed on humans in the United States (with the exception of dinical trials and basic
rescarch). A dinical laboratory is defined by CLIA as any facility which performs labaratory testing on spedmens obtained
fram humans for the purpose of providing information for health assessment and for the diagnosis, prevention, or
treatment of disease

Clinical application Use in treating patients

Clinical sarmples Patient samples usually blood

Chinical study A type of research study that tests how well new medical approaches work in people. These studies test new methods
of screening, prevertion, diagnosis, or treatment of a disease

Clinical use Use in treating patients

Companicn diagnostic A medica! device which provides information that is essential for the safe and effective use of a carresponding drug

or biological product
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Additional Information

Explanation of Frequently Used Terms

continued

Term

Explanation

Contract Research Organisation (CRO)

A company hired by another compary or research centre to take over certain parts of running & dinical trial
The company may design, mariage, and monitor the trial, and analyse the results

ADNA CDNA, is celfree droulating tumour fragments of DINA from dead eefls, which may be found in the plasma component
of the blood

Culiured cells Cuttured calls grown inthe laboratory from human-derived cells used for experimental work

Cytokeratin {CK) Cytokeratins are a famiy of intragytoplasmic oytoskeleton proteins with members showing tissue spedfic expression

CK+ A, cell positive for the presence of cytokeratin protein o mRNA with the presence of distinct cyiokerating often used
1o identify epithefal cels

Cytopathalogical A branch of pathology that studies and diagnoses diseases at the cellular level, ganerally used on sarnples of free cells
or lissue fragments

DAPI A rudaar stain that s often used to identify the nudleus in a cell

DEPAMray™ A commercial single cell isolation system

Diagnosis The process of identifying a disease, condition, or injury fram its signs and symptoms. A health history, physical examination
and tests, such as blood tests, imaging tests, and biopsles, may be used to help make a diagnosis

Dlagnostlc LeukApheresis LA} Removal of the Hlood 1o collect specific blood calls such as leukocytes. The remaining blood Is then retumed to the body

Diagnostic test A type of test used to help diagnose a disease or condition

DiNA Demgribomuceic acid {DNA) is the molecule that encodes the genetic instructions used in the development and
functioning of all known living organisms and many viruses

Downstream technologies Technologies used to undertake molecular analysis of harvested cells after the separation has taken place

EGFR, The epiderrnal growth factor receptor ~ a signaling molecule which is typicaliy present on the: cell surface and can control
cell attivity including cell profferation. Mutations in EGFR or deregulation have been assodated with a number of cancers
induding ~30% of 2!l epithelal cancers

Enrichment Lzenerir term for concentrating targer cells or molecules in a starting heterogeneous mixture

EpCAM The Epithelial Cell Adhesion Malecule (EpCAM) proteln s found spanning the membrane Liat surrounds epithelal cefls,
where it s involved in cell adhesion

EpCAM* cells Cells that express EpCAM, CTCs a@n be either EpCAM+ or EpCAM-

Epithelial cells Cells that line the surfaces arv] cavities of the body

Epithelial-mesenchymal transition Frocess by which epithelial cells lose their cell polarity and cell-cell adhesion, and gain migratory and invasive properties
0 become mesenchymal cells EMT is thought to occur as part of the inftiation of metastasis and is often responsitle for
cancer progression

EMT Epithelial-mesenchyrmal ransiden

Epitope: A part of a molecule to which an antibody will bind

FDA IS, Food and Drug Admiinistration responsible for authonised medical preducts in the United States

FDA Class | Device Medical devices with an intended use that s considered medium or moderate risk. For nom-exernpt devices the FDA
require a pre-market clearance or approval to be issued before 3 company can legally market their device. The company
will be required to have general medical device quRlity systern controls in place as well as device specific special controls
{which may nclude device labelfing and design contrel processes and dotunentation)

FDA 1000 A 5100) Is a premarket submission made to the FDA to demonstrate that the device to be marketed is at least as safe and
effective; that is, substantially equivalent. to a legally marketed device that is not subject to Premarket Approval Subritters
must compare their device to ane or mare simllar legally marketed devices and make and support their substantial
equialency daims

FDA De Nova The De Nowa process provides a, pathway 1o classify novel medical devices for which general controls alone, or general
ard special controls, provide reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness for the intended use, but for which there
is no legally marketed predicate device (therefore the FDA S10(k) route does net apply). Devices that are dassified inte
class ) or class | through a De Nove dassification request may be marketed and used as predicates for future premarket
{510(K) submissions

Aow-Thru Chip® A disposable consumable containing a highly uriform porous substrate on which up to 576 indvidual zones are printed
with reagents that specifically bind to molecules of interest in the sample. Sample flowing through the 10 micron pores &
forced into contact with the coated surface, providing very rapid and effident captire of any targets present in soliion
that each assay Is desighed t measure
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Term

Explanation

Fuorescence In-Sity Hybridization
(AsH)

A laboratory tachnique for detecting and locating a specfic DNA sequence on genes or chromosome in tissue and cells.

The technique relies on exposing genes or chromosomes to a small DNA sequence called a probe that has a fluorescent
molecule attached 1o it The probe sequenne binds to its comesponding sequence on the genes or chromosome and they
light up when viewed under a microscope with a spedial Eght

Gene expression The process by which a gene gets turned on in a cell to make RNA, and proteins. Gene expression may be measured by
looking at the RNA or the protein made from the RNA

Genome Genetic material of an organism. The genome indudes both protein coding and non-coding sequences

Genctyping Process of determining differences in the genetic make-up (genotype) by examining the DNA sequence

Gleason Score A system of assessing how aggressive prostate cancer tissue is based on how it looks under a microscope. Gleason scores
range from 2 to 10 and indicate how aggressive and fast-growing the cancer is. A low Gleason score means the cancer
tissue is similar to normal prostate tissue and the tumour is less kely to spread; a high Gleason scare means the ancer
tissue is very different from narmal prostate tissue and the tumeur is more Ikely to spread

Gynaecological cincer Cancer of the female reproductive tract, induding the corvix, endometrium, fallapian tubes, ovaries, Uterus, and vagina

Harvest Process for recovering captured cells from the separation system to allow molecular analysis

Harvest effidency Propartion of target cells harvested

Harvest purity The number of @rget cells (such as CTCs) in the harvest as a proportion of the WBC. The minimum purity from
which downstream analysic is possible is 0.5%. Analysis of one target cel therefore requires no more than 200 WEBC
be in the harvest

HER2 A member of the epidermal growth facior receptor (EGFR/ERBB) famnily: Amplification or averexpression of HERZ has
been shown to play an important role in the development and progression of certain aggressive types of breast cancer.
In recent years the protein has bacome an Important biomarker and target of therapy for ~ 30% of breast cancer patlents

Heterogeneity A word that signifies diversity

Histopathclogy The study of diseased cells and tissues using a microscope

HNV Healthy normal volurteer

HT29 Cuttured colorectal cancer cell Ine

HyCEAD™ Hybrid Capture, Enrichment, Amplification and Detection
A sample preparation methed far capturing targeted nudeic acid sequences (RNA or DNA) directly from biological
samples without the need for extraction, introduding universal priming sequences into coples of those specific sequence
regions, and permitting amplification of all targets simultaneously in a single PCR reaction for direct detection on Ziplex

Imrunohistochermistry A lab test that uses antibodies to test for certain antigens (markers) in a sample of tissue. Immunohisiochernistry is used
to help diagnose diseases, such as cancer: It may also be used to help tefl the difference between different types of cancer

Immunostain A general tarm that applies to any use of an antibody-based method to detect 2 spadfic protein or antigen in a sample

Immunotherapy Treatment that stimulates the body’s immune: system to fight cancer

In-cassette abelling or in-situ labeling

CHC tabelling for cell identification undertaken inside the separation system

indolent cancer

A type of low risk cancer that grows slowly

I vitras diagnostic (VD) Anin vitro diagnostic is 2 method of performing a diagnostic test outside of a living body in an artificial ervironment,
usually a laboratory

Key opinion feader Key opinion leaders (KOLs) are research centres and/or physicians who influence their peers’ medical practice

KRAS A signalling malecule frequently mutated in the development of many cancers

Leukocytes White blood celis

Liquid biopsy Term used for the process of abtaining cancer cells (or cellHree DINA} from a blood sample. Unilike solid biopsy, liquid
bicpsy is non-irvasive and repeatable

Localsed Describes disease that is lirnited 1o a certain part of the body. For example, localised cancer s usually found only inthe
tissue ar organ where it began, and has not spread to nearby lyrnph rodes or to other parts of the body. Some localised
cancers can be completely removed by surgery

Lymphocyte A type of immune cel that is made in the bone marrow and is found in the blood and in bymph tissue A lymphocyte
is a type of white blood cell

Lysts The breaking down of a cefi, often by viral, enzyrmatic, or osmetic mechanisms that compromise its integrity

Malignarit Cancerous. Maligrant cells form part of the tumosr; and can invade and destroy nearby tissue and spread to ather parts

of the body
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Additional Infarmation

Explanation of Frequently Used Terms

continued

Term Explanation

Marker A, diagnostic indication that disease may develop or i aiready present. A chemical substance produced by a cancer and
wed to monitor the progress of the disease, These chemicals are usially measured by a bloed test

meEGFR Arginine methylation of the epidermal growth factor receptor

Megakaryocyte A large bone marrow cell with 2 lobulated riudieus responsible for the production of blood thrombocytes (platelets),
which are necessary for normal blood dotting

Mesenchymai CTCs CTGs generally lacking epithelial markers with mesenchymal features

Metastasis Spread of a cancer from o site to ancther

Microflyidic device An instrumenit that uses very small amounts of fluid on a microchip to do certain laboratory tests A microfluidic device
may use body fluids or solutions containing cells or cel parts to diagnose diseases

Microtentacles Microtubule-based membrane protusions in detached cancer celis

Mclecular analysis Analysis of DINA, RNA and protein often used ta determine the mutational statys of a patient

Morphoiogy The study of the form and structure of cells

Mouse model The use of special strains of mice to study a human disease or condition, and how t© prevent and treat it

mRNA Messenger RINA used 1o direct the synthesis of proteins

Mutaticn A gene mutation f a permanent change in the DNA sequence that makes up a gene. Gene mutations an be inherfted
from a parent or can happen during a person’s lifetime. Mutations passed from parent to child are called hereditary
or germiine mutations. Mutations that happen during a persoris Ife, known as somatic mutations, can be caused by
ernvironmental factors such as Uitraviolet radiation from the sun. Or they can occur if a mistake is made as DNA copies
itself during cell division

Meutational anatysis Testing far the presence of a spedfic mutation o set of mutations

Next Generation Sequencing (NGS) Also known as high-throughput sequencing, is the <atch-all term used to describe a number of different modern
sequendng technologies induding liumina (Solexa) sequencing. Roche 454 sequencing. Thermo Fisher lon toment:
Proton/PGM sequending, It is a method by which the bases of DNA and RNA can be deterrnined, which is used in
biological research and to ablain dlinically relevant informatior:

MNICE Abbreviation for the Mational Institute for Health and Care Excellence

Non-nvasive in medidne, it destribes a procedure that does not require inserting an instrument through the skin or into a body
opening, Although a needle & inserted to draw blood, liquid blopsies are referred to as non-invasive as they do not
require surgery

NSCLC MNon Srnall Cell Lung Cancer

Offchip labelling CTC habelling for cell identification of harvested cells undertaken outside the separation system

Oncologist A dottor who has special training in diagnosing and treating cancer and may also spedialise in certain cancers or techniques

Oncology A branch of medidne that spacialises in the diagnosis and treatment of cancer. It incdudes medice! oncology (he use of
chemotherapy. homone therapy and other drugs to treat cancer), radiation encology (he use of radiation therapy to treat
cancer) and surgical ancology (the use of surgery and other procedures 10 treat cancer)

Palred samples Two related samples often used to compare different systems

Parsortix® system The name of the core technologies developed and used by ANGLE to capture and harvest CTCs comprising the
automated instrument to run blood samples through the microfluidic cassette and all the assodiated operating procedures
and protocols

Pathologist A doctor who has special training in identifing diseases by studying cells and tissues under a microscape

PattVision The name of the Abbott Molecular test kit, The PathiVirsion HER-2 DINA Probe Kit I (PathVyston Kit ) is designed to
detect amplification of the HER-2/neu gene via FISH in formalin-faced, paraffin-embedded human breast and gastric
cancer tissue specmens, The PathVision HER-2 DINA Probe Kit li is one of the first examples of what is recognised as
genomic disease management, or personalised medicine. This means that the test helps enable the accurate assessment
of a patient's HER-2 status at the DNA level with a high degree of accuracy and helps guide doctors to make the most,
appropriate therapy dedisions based on the patient's awn genetic profile

Patient study A type of research siudy, on a srmaller scale than a dinical study that tests how well new medical approaches work
in people These studies test new methods of screening, prevention, diagnosis, or treatment of a disease

PCR See Polymerase Chaln Reaction

PD-L1 Programmed death ligand 1 (PD-L1) is the prindinal ligand of programmed death 1 {PD-1), 2 colnhibitory receptor that
can be constitutively expressad or induced in royelold, lymphoid, normal epithelial cells and in cancer

Pehic mass A general term for any growsh or tumour on the ovary or in the pelvis. A pelvic mass <an be Cystic {oystadenomal, salid
(fbroma) or both (denmwid), A pelvic mass can be benign or malignant
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Term Exphanation

Peripheral blood Blood circulating throughout the body

Personabised cancer care Treating a patient individually based on their persoral data often induding mutational and disease status

Phenotype A phenotype is the composite of an organisrm's observable characteristics or traits, such as its morphology, development,
biochemical or physiological properties, behaviour and products of behaviour. A phenatype results from the expression of
an Organism’s genes as well as the influence of ervironmental factors and the interactions between the two

Pitot study The initial study esamining a new method or treatment

Plagma Pale-yellow liquid compenant of Blood obtained following removal of celle

Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) A lzboratory tachnique used to amplify DNA sequences. The method irvolves using short DNA sequences called primers
to select the portion of the genoma to be amplified. The temperature of the samgle is repeatedly raised and lowered to
help a DNA replication enzyme copy the target DINA, sequence. The technique can produce a bilion copies of the target
saquence in just a few hours

Precision medicine The customisation of healthcare — with medical decisions, practices, and/or products being tailored to the individual patient.

In this model, diagnostic testing is often employed for selecting appropriate and optimal therapies basad on the context of
a patient’s genetic content or other molecular or ceflular analysis

Prelabelled cell linas

Cells which are labelled often with a fluorescent label ta facilltate identification during analysis or enrichment

Prognasis The likely outcome or course of a disease; the chance of recovery or recurrence

Prostate-Specific Antigen (PSA) A protein made by the prostate gland and found in the blood. PSA blood levels may be higher than normal in men who
have prostate cancer, benign prostatic hyperplasia (BPH), or infection or inflammation of the prostate gland

Protoccl A detaied plan of a scientific or medical experiment, treatment, or procedure. in dinical studies, it states what the study
wilt do, how it will be dans, and why it is being done. It explains how many people will be in the study, who is eligitle to
take part in it, what study drugs or other interventions will be given, what tests will be done and how often, and what
information will be collected

PSA See Prostate-Specific Antigen

Purity The relative absence of extraneous matter in a sample

Q-Submission The FDA's Pre-Submission Program which alows medical device and VD manufacturers to discuss specific aspects
of the regulatory process and requirements with FDA experts

Regulatory authorisation The authorisation by the appropriate regulatory body for a specific territary that allows an in vitre diagnostic product
to be sold for dinical use in that territory

Relapse ‘When an iliness that has seemed to be getting better; or to have been cured, comes back or gets worse again

Rernission If a canicer is in remission, there is no sign of it n examinations or tests, Generally, the longer the remission, the less likely
it is that the patient will refapse

Research use Sales can be made to certain organisations of in vitro diagnostic products without the need for regulatory authorisation
provided they are hbelked as Research Use Only (RUO) or Investigational Use Only (IUO)

RNA Rivonucleic add performs multiple vital roles in the coding, decoding, regulation, and expression of genes. Together with
DNA, RNA comprises the nudeic acids, which, along with proteins, constitute the three major macromolecules essential
for al known forms of life

RNA-Sequencing {(RNA-seq) Also called whole transariptome shotgun sequencing (WT5S), uses next-generation sequencing {(NGS) to reveal the
presence and quantity of RNA in a biological sample at a given moment in time

Scresning Checking for disease when there are no symptams, Since screening may find diseases at an early stage, there may be
2 better chance of curing the disease

Sensitivity Refers to the percentage of people who test positive for a specfic disease or condition among people who actually have
the disease or condition

Separation Term used for precessing of a sample through the Parsortix system

Single cell analysis Extraction of a single target cell from the harvest for analysis

Sofid biopsy Standard process for surgically exdsing (cutting out) cells from 2 solid turnour when that tumour is accessible

Specificity Refers to the percentage of peopie who test negative for a specific disease or condition among a group of people who

do not have the disease or condition

Spiked cell experiments

Experiments where culured cells are added (spkad) to HNV biood to assess the apture and harvest efficency of the system

Stage

The extent of a cancer in the body. Staging is usually based on the size of the tumour; whether lymph nodes contain
cancer and whether the cancer has spread from the ariginal site to other parts of the body
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Explanation of Frequently Used Terms

continued
|
Term Explanation '
Standard Operating Procedure Written instructiors for doing a spedific task in a certain way. In dinical trials, Standard Operating Procedures are set up to
(SCP) store records, collect data, screen and enrol subjects and submit Institutional Review Board (IRB) applications and renewals
Transcriptome {whole) The transeriptome is the set of 28 messenger RNA molerules in one cell or a population of tells
Translationa research A term used to describe the process by which the results of rasearch done in the laboratory are used to develop new
ways to diagnose and treat disease
Triage Fhe process of determining the pricrity of patients' treatments based on the severity of their condition
Tumor/Tumour An abnormal miass of tissue that results when cells divide more than they sheuld or do nat die when they should.
Turnaurs may be benign {not cancer), or malignant {cancer)
Turer is the American English spelling and Tumour s the standard English spelling
Tumour heterogeneity Describes the observation that different turnour cells Gan show distinct morpholegical and phenotypic profiles, induding
celhdar morphology, gene expression, metabolism, motikty, proliferation, and metastatic potential This phenomenaon ecaurs
both between tumaurs (intertumour heterogeneity) and within tumours {ntra-tumour heterogenelty)
The heterogeneity of cancer cells introduces significant chaflenges in designing effective treatment strategies
Tumour marker A substance found in tissue, blocd, or other body fluids that may be a sign of cancer or eertain benign {on-cancerous)
conditions. Most tumour markers are made by both normal cells and cancer cells, but they are made in larger amounts by
cancer cells, A tumour marker may help to diagnose cancer, plan treatment, or determine how well treatment is working
or if the patient has relapsed
Examples of tumeur markers indude CA-125 (n ovarian cancer), CA 15-3 {in breast cancer), CEA (in colen cancer),
and PSA (in prostate cancer)
wac White blood cells
WGA Whole genome ampiffication
‘Whole genome ampification Method for amplification of an entire genome necessary for the picogram arounts of genonic DNA present in
a single cel
Ziplex® An autormated hybridization array platform that combines chemiluminescence and Row-Thru Chips for the detaction

of minute amounts of up to 500 nudeic add or protein targets simukaneously

Primary source: www.cancergovipublications/dictionaries/cancer-terms
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